
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Commissioners Packet 

July 20, 2023 

5:00 p.m. - Regular Meeting 

CDA Office, 705 N. Walnut Street, Chaska 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



I. CONVENE CARVER COUNTY CDA BOARD 
MEETING

II. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIR

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

IV. AGENDA REVIEW & ADOPTION



CARVER COUNTY CDA  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Agenda 

Meeting Date: July 20, 2023          5:00 pm CDA Boardroom, Chaska, MN 

1. Call To Order and Roll Call

2. Audience
Anyone wishing to address the CDA Board on an item not on the agenda, or an item on the consent agenda, may 
notify Kari Steen (karis@carvercda.org or 952-448-7715) and instructions will be given to participate during the 
meeting or provide written comments. Verbal comments are limited to five minutes.

3. Approval of Agenda and Meeting Minutes

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2023 Regular Meeting

4. Consent Agenda

A. Approval of July 2023 Dashboard
B. Approval of Write-Off of Past Tenant Balances for June 2023
C. Approval of Record of Disbursements – June 2023
D. Approval of the Creation of a Limited Partnership and Limited Liability Company General Partner – Carver 

Place
E. Approval of County-Wide Housing Study

5. Regular Agenda
A. Approval of the 2024 Budget and Levy-Karen Reed
B. Approval of Chaska Yards Development Agreement-Chuck Swanson
C. Approval of Community Growth Partnership Initiative Grant Awards-Chuck Swanson
D. Approval of Community Growth Partnership Initiative Grant Award-Chuck Swanson
E. John Fahey, Carver County Commissioner
F. Nick, Koktavy, Assistant County Administrator Carver County

6. Information
A. CDA Housing Roundtable July 19, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 2:00 pm
B. CDA Strategic Planning August 10, 2023 from 8:30 am to 4:00 pm

7. Adjournment

For More Information, call 952-448-7715 

Carver County CDA Board meeting agendas are available online at: 
https://www.carvercda.org/about-cccda/board-of-commissioners/ 

Next Meeting: 

CDA Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 
August 17, 2023 at 5:00 pm 
Carver County CDA Boardroom, 705 N Walnut St Chaska, MN 55318 

mailto:karis@carvercda.org
https://www.carvercda.org/about-cccda/board-of-commissioners/


Board of Commissioners 
Meeting Minutes 

 

Meeting Date: June 15, 2023          5:00 pm   CDA Boardroom, Chaska, MN 

Board Chair Carlson called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 

COMMISSIONER ROLL CALL: 

                 Present           Absent 
Chair     Sarah Carlson      
Vice Chair    Molly Koivumaki     
Secretary/Treasurer   Darrel Sudheimer     
Commissioner    Adam Teske       
Commissioner    Greg Anderson      
 
CDA Staff in attendance: 
Executive Director   Julie Frick    
Deputy Director    Allison Streich    
Director, Finance   Karen Reed    
Director, Housing   Shanika Bumphurs   
Director, Economic Development Chuck Swanson    
Human Resources   Janette Meyer    
Office & Media Coordinator  Kari Steen    
 
Others in attendance: 
John Fahey, Carver County Commissioner          
Nick Koktavy, Assistant County Admin. CC 
Matt Udermann, Carver County Commissioner  
Nick Johnson, City of Mayer 
      
 
AUDIENCE 
 
No audience members addressed the board. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MEETING MINUTES 
 
23-17  Approval of Agenda and Meeting Minutes 
    

Commissioner Anderson made a motion to approve the agenda. Chair Carlson made a motion to amend the 
agenda by removing the Community Growth Partnership Initiative agenda item to be discussed at the August 
2023 board meeting. Chair Carlson indicated that Vice Chair Koivumaki was in agreement. Commissioner 
Sudheimer seconded the amended motion.  

 
  BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners,   
  that the agenda for the June 15, 2023 Regular CDA Board meeting be approved as amended. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of   
  Commissioners that the minutes for the May 18, 2023 Regular meeting be approved as written. 
 
  Motion: Anderson    
  Motion to Amend Agenda: Carlson     Second to Amended Agenda: Sudheimer 



 
 Ayes: 3      Nays: 0       Absent: 2     Abstain: 0 
     
   Yes   No   Absent   Abstain 
Carlson          
Koivumaki         
Sudheimer         
Teske          
Anderson         
 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
23-18 Approval of the June 2023 Dashboard 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners, that the 
June 2023 Dashboard is approved as written.  

 
23-19  Approval of Record of Disbursements – May 2023 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners, that the 
May 2023 Record of Disbursements is approved as written. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Approval of Community Growth Partnership Initiative Grant Awards 
 
Removed from agenda to be discussed at the August 2023 board meeting. 
 
INFO Strategic Plan Discussion 
  Julie Frick provided update. 
 
INFO County-Wide Tourism Tour 
  Carver County Commissioner Udermann presented for CDA Board discussion. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE REVISED CDA DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 
 
23-20  Approval of the Revised CDA Drug Free Workplace Policy 
  Janette Meyer presented. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners, that 
after review and consideration, the Drug Free Workplace Policy will be amended to Drug & Alcohol-Free 
Workplace & Testing Policy and is approved as written. 

 
Motion: Anderson     Second: Sudheimer 

 
 Ayes: 3      Nays:             Absent:           Abstain:       
 
   Yes   No   Absent   Abstain 
Carlson          
Koivumaki         
Sudheimer         
Teske          
Anderson         
 



 
INFO Commissioner update 
  Carver County Commissioner Fahey provided an update. 
 
INFO Carver County update 
  Carver County Assistant County Administrator provided an update. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
23-19 Adjournment  
   
  BE IT RESOLVED that the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners hereby  
  adjourns until Thursday, July 20, 2023. 

 
Motion: Anderson     Second: Sudheimer 
 
 Ayes: 3      Nays:             Absent:           Abstain:       
 
   Yes   No   Absent   Abstain 
Carlson          
Koivumaki         
Sudheimer         
Teske          
Anderson         

 
  The CDA Board meeting adjourned at 6:42 p.m. 



DASHBOARD/DEPARTMENT BOARD REPORT JUNE 2023      4A

HOUSING UPDATES 

HOUSING OCCUPANCY 

Workforce Senior Total 

# Units 395 339 734 

# Leased 386 327 713 

Occupancy Rate 98% 96% 98% 

*The 12 Month Occupancy Report includes 13 vacant units at Hilltop/Mayer, that will not be leased until they are
rehabbed*

2023 Capital Improvements in Process 

Property Improvement Project Status and Tentative Schedule 

Brickyard 

1. Brick and concrete repairs
around entire building.

2. Hallway Lighting Replacement

1. Working on bid documents for phased 
approach. 80% documents due in July

2. Still waiting on back-ordered lights and 
confirmation from City regarding Energy 
Efficiency Rebate.

82.00

84.00

86.00

88.00

90.00

92.00

94.00

96.00

98.00

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

12 Month Occupancy



Centennial 
1. Roof Replacement
2. Fire Alarm Panels

1. Main roof completed, flat roof and tin work are
being completed. Soffit being completed the
week of 7/17.

2. Reviewing bids for updating outdated Fire
Alarms panels.

Crossings 
1. Roof Replacement
2. Entryway Concrete Replacement
3. Magic Pak Replacements

1. Final walk through on 7/13. Project starting on 
8/30, expected to take 3 weeks.

2. Reviewing Bids
3. 15 Magic Paks being replaced, waiting on a 

start date from the vendor.

Hilltop/Mayer 1. Property Transition and Rehab

2. Unit kitchens and bathrooms measured, colors,
and styles selected. Demo work is scheduled to
start in the beginning of September. Expected
completion of the project is Spring 2024.

Oak Grove 
1. Concrete Work: Sidewalks,

Catch Basin, and Entry
1. Still working with the City of NYA on how to

move forward with the work.

Waybury 
1. Concrete and Drainage Repair

1. Anticipating the first week of August start time.

Windstone 
1. Stoop Repair and Replacement

1. Project starting first week of August.

Spruce 1. Lighting Project Completion
1. Project started; half of the project has been

completed as of 7/14.

Lake Grace 

1. Building Electrical Panel
Replacements

2. Water Softener Installation
3. Parking Lot Repairs

1. Waiting for the panels to come in.
2. Work began on 7/13, expected completion

timeframe is mid-August.
3. Still in Progress.

202 Building 
1. Exterior Tuckpointing/Masonry

Work
1. Project starting 7/17, estimated to take about a

one week.

Staffing News: 

• Ryker Anderson has been hired as a Property Manager to cover Hilltop, Mayer, and Oak Grove; he
started July 10th.

• Benjamin Hernandez has been hired as a Maintenance Technician to cover Centennial Hill and
Brickyard Apartments; he started July 10th.

• Totaram Doobay has been hired as a Property Manager to cover Scattered Sites; he is scheduled to
start July 17th.

• We are still in need of filling the following positions: 2-Property Manager positions, 5-Caretaker
positions, and 2-Maintenance Technician positions.

Congratulations to: 
The Trail’s Edge South team for an amazing First Year Investor Audit, all benchmarks were met, with very few 
corrections!  
Shanika, Angela, Andra, and Tracy for completing the HUD Today training, focused on the HOTMA changes 
scheduled to take effect in January of 2024. 



 

 

Centennial Hill Roof Project: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

202 Screen Door Replacement: 
 

                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Bluff Creek Parking Lot Sealcoating: 
 

                     
 

                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Windstone Mulching and Sealcoating: 
 

             
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS 

Program Grant Term # Units Under Contract % Under Contract 

Bridges 7/1/23-6/30/25 13 100%  

Bridges RTC 7/1/23-6/30/25 3 100% 

Housing Trust Fund 10/1/21-9/30/23 16 80% (1 lease up, 1 searching, 1 briefing) 

CoC PSH  8/1/22-7/31/23 14 80% (1 application pending) 
 
 

Resident Services  
 

Presentations (2023) 

Agency Property Number of Residents 

SW Transit Waybury 
Centennial 

9 
17 

River Valley Health Services Waybury 12 

WeCAB Waybury 
Centennial 

7 
19 

 

 
2023 YTD: 

# of 
appointments 

# of 
residents/clients 

Mobile food shelf 
participants 

Energy Assistance Program Application 
assistance 

26 25 

Waybury-26 
Centennial-3 
Crossings-4 
Brickyard-4 

Trail’s Edge-5 

11 new 
 

 



 

 

CDA SERVICES BY COMMUNITY 
 
The table below lists the main CDA services and number of participants or units for each Carver County Community. Numbers are year to date 
(or are noted accordingly).  
 

 M
etro

 H
R

A
 H

o
u

sin
g 

C
h

o
ice V

o
u

ch
ers  

C
D

A
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le 

R
en

tal U
n

its 

C
D

A
 Su

b
sid

ized
 

R
en

tal U
n

its 

C
D

A
 R

en
tal 

A
ssistan

ce 

P
articip

an
ts 

Sep
tic Lo

an
s an

d
 

G
ran

ts 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity G
ro

w
th

 
P

artn
ersh

ip
 In

itiative 

(aw
ard

s sin
ce 2

0
1

6
) 

p
lu

s o
u

tstan
d

in
g 

B
u

sin
ess Lo

an
 Fu

n
d

s 

En
trep

ren
eu

r 
Su

p
p

o
rt P

ro
gram

 
(Th

ru
 Q

4
 2

0
2

1
) 

Lan
d

 Tru
st U

n
its 

H
o

u
sin

g R
e

h
ab

 
(sin

gle
 fam

ily an
d

 
m

u
ltifam

ily re
n

tal) 

C
o

m
m

ercial an
d

 
M

ixed
-U

se R
eh

ab
 

Carver 17 9 9 6  3 3    

Chanhassen 45 59 20 2  5 3    

Chaska 145 183 174 24  3 9 27 2  

Cologne   3 2  1 5 1   

Hamburg           

Mayer   10     1   

New 
Germany 

   1  4    
 

NYA 3 47 10 1  3 5  3 7 

Victoria  3 3   4 4 1   

Waconia 13 119 51 7  2 4 9   

Watertown 2  34   4 2 1 7 9 

Townships     17 1     

Other       1    

TOTAL 225 420 314 43 17 30 36 40 12 16 



FINANCE 

FINANCE 

June 2023 
YTD Actual 

June 2023  
YTD Budget 

Variance 

CDA Revenue 7,305,880 7,456,532 (150,652) 

Expenses 5,160,978 5,609,392 448,414 

Cash Balance 6,604,040 

June 2023 
YTD Actual 

June 2023 
YTD Budget Variance 

Properties Revenue 3,864,736 3,830,672 34,064 

Expenses 2,445,127 2,636,784 191,657 

Cash Balance 2,951,610 

Revenue Recapture collected through June 
Note-Write-off amounts and collected amounts may not be from the same year. 

Property: Written off: Collected: Notes: 

Lake Grace $5,392 $836 

Carver Homes $10,568 $14,967 

Bluff Creek $     21  

Oak Grove 

Hilltop $1,310 

Centennial $1,289 

Crossings 

Waybury $569 

Windstone $2,095 

Total: $21,244 $15,803 

Other Finance updates 
Consolidated YTD revenues for the CDA through June were $7,305,880 and expenses were $5,160,978.  Net Operating 
Income was $2,144,902, 16% over budget. YTD Revenues for the properties were $3,864,736 and expenses were 
$2,445,127.  Net Operating Income was $1,419,609, 19.0% over budget.  



 

 

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

COMMUNITY LAND TRUST (CCCLT) 

Total Units 40 

Total resales YTD 1 

# of families helped 72 

Waiting list 2 

Acquisition this month 2 

Funding amount by source for current acquisitions N/A 

Community N/A 

Notes:   

Vacant Lot at 413 Franklin Ave NE, Watertown, will apply for funding in 2023 

Chaska Yards (Ernst/Ess Project) Construction/Rehab phase. Start fall 2023, complete fall 2024. 
 

 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT - NEXTSTAGE 

 Q1 2023  Q2 2023 Q3 2023 Q4 2023 Total 2023 

Total Carver County 
Clients Assisted  

15 12   27 

# of Financing Events 3 0   3 

Total 
Financing/Investment 

$111,000 $0   $111,000 

New Business Starts -     

New FT Jobs -     

New PT Jobs -     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 COMMUNITY GROWTH PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVE (CGPI) 

Open Grants: 

Year Grant City Project Budget 

2020 Community 
Development 

CDA – Carver 
103 Unit Senior 
Workforce Hsg 

$85,000 

2020 Community 
Development 

CDA – Chaska 
Ernst House Rehab $85,000 

2021 Community 
Development 

CDA – Chaska 
Ernst House Rehab $92,500 

2022 Pre Development Mayer Old Firehall $7,500 

2022 Pre Development Victoria Downtown West $7,500 

2022 Pre Development Chaska Sewer Feasibility $7,500 

 
 

MINNESOTA CITIES PARTICIPATION PROGRAM (MCPP) – 
2023 allocation is $1,943,009 (increase of 9.4% from 2022).   Numbers through June 2023. 

 # Committed loans Total $ % of allocated funds 

First Mortgage Loans 8 $2,022,099 104% 

Additional Start-up loans 4 $1,213,087 N/A 

Step up loans  11 $3,229,704 N/A 

Down payment assistance  $150,800 N/A 

TOTALS  23 $6,464,890 N/A 

 
 

   

 
 

SEPTIC / WELL LOAN PROGRAM (SSTS) 

 2024 new 
assessments 

Underway (anticipated 
2024 assessment) 

2023 Paid Off 
Total active 
assessments 

Applications 1 5 1 53 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TOURISM 
 TOURISM WEBSITE visitcarvercounty.com 

 Q1 2022  Q2 2022 Q3 2022 Q4 2022 Total 2022 

Page Views  763 747 868 734 3,112 

Average Engagement 1m 51s 46s 1m 27s 1m 45s 1m 33s 

Top 3 Pages Home/Events/To 
Do 

Home/Events/To 
Do 

Home/Events/To 
Do 

Home/Events/To 
Do 

Home/Events/To 
Do 

 Q1 2023 Q2 2023 Q3 2023 Q4 2023 Total 2023 

Page Views  826 941   1,767 

Average Engagement 1m 3s 57s   1m 

Top 3 Pages Home/Events/To 
Do 

Home/Events/To 
Do 

   

 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT/TOURISM 
FACEBOOK choosecarvercounty     (CDA officially took over social media March 9th, 2023) 

 Q1 2023 Q2 2023 Q3 2023 Q4 2023 Total 2023 

Facebook Reach  94 3,982    

Facebook Visits 87 422    

Facebook Page new 
likes 

2 31    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE/OTHER ITEMS OF INTEREST 
 
 
Housing Roundtable: 
The CDA will be hosting a Housing Roundtable on Wednesday, July 19 from 12:00 pm to 2:00 pm at the MN Landscape 
Arboretum. The roundtable will include city staff and elected officials. The event will include a discussion of housing needs 
and the establishment of a local housing trust fund.  
 

 
 



Board of Commissioners  

Request for Board Action  

 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023      Agenda number: 4B 

DEPARTMENT: Housing 

FILE TYPE: Regular Consent 

TITLE: Approval of Write-Off of Past Tenant Balances for June 2023 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approve write-off of Past Tenant Balances 

SUMMARY: The Carver County CDA’s policy is to write off past tenant balances that have been 

submitted to MN Revenue Recapture and was approved by the CDA Board. When a past tenant moves out 

with a balance, the tenant has 10 business days to contact the CDA to either pay the balance in full or set 

up a repayment agreement. If the past tenant does not contact the CDA, the balance due is submitted to MN 

Revenue recapture. The CDA will “write-off” the past balance in Yardi once it has been submitted to MN 

Revenue Recapture. Any former resident that has been submitted to MN Revenue Recapture due to that 

past balance will remain there until such time as that balance is paid or the six-year statute of limitations 

has passed. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommend approval of the write-off of past tenant balances. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested  

RESOLUTION: 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of Commissioners that the 

Past Tenant balance for June 2023 is hereby approved to be written off. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Past tenant balances 

 
BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Shanika Bumphurs, Director of Property Management 

Author: Allison Streich, Deputy Director 



Unit

Code

Tenant

Status

Current

Owed

Amount

Paid

105 Past $60.00 $0.00

105 Past $597.50 $0.00

105 Past $1,454.00 $512.00

105 Past $3,014.00 $0.00

$5,125.50 $512.00

325SS205 Past $214.01 $270.99

325SS205 Past $1,321.79 $0.00

$1,535.80 $270.99

325SS302 Past $287.90 $167.10

$287.90 $167.10

308TERRI Past $171.82 $411.18

$171.82 $411.18

325SS104 Past $14.68 $525.42

325SS104 Past $1,800.00 $0.00

$1,814.68 $525.42

220 Past $0.20 $172.80

220 Past $80.00 $0.00

$80.20 $172.80

F110527 Past $1,778.33 $0.00

F110527 Past $1,946.78 $0.00

F110527 Past $100.00 $0.00

F110527 Past $450.00 $0.00

RENT

LATE

CLEAN

Resident 7

DAMAGE

Total for Resident 6

windstn

DAMAGE M

a

Resident 6

RENT R

E

waybury

Total For Resident 5

DAMAGE

CLEAN r

e

Total For Resident 4

Resident 5

CLEAN r

e

Resident 4

Total for Resident 3

LEGAL l

e

Resident 3

Total For Resident 2

CLEAN r

e

Resident 1

TPA R

e

ph

Total For Resident 1

CLEAN r

e

LEGAL a

t
RENT

Resident 1

LATE T

e

hilltop

Charge

Type

R

e

Tenant Unpaid Charges

Status =  Past

Property

Code

 Tenant Unpaid Charges  Tuesday, July 11, 2023



$4,275.11 $539.22

W110511 Past $94.64 $0.00

W110511 Past $43,050.22 $555.22

$43,144.86 $555.22

Grand Total 56,435.87

DAMAGE 80.00

RENT 0.20

waybury 80.20

UTILITIE 94.64

windstn 47,419.97

waybury 

LATE 100.00

RENT 1,946.78

windstn 

CLEAN 450.00

DAMAGE 44,828.55

TPA 214.01

ph      3,810.20

Charge Type SubTotal

CLEAN 3,014.00

Total for Resident 8

DAMAGE

LATE 60.00

LEGAL 597.50

RENT 1,454.00

hilltop 5,125.50

ph      

hilltop 

Property Code

CLEAN 1,508.29

DAMAGE 1,800.00

LEGAL 287.90

Total For Resident 7

Resident 8

UTILITIE E

l

 Tenant Unpaid Charges  Tuesday, July 11, 2023



Board of Commissioners 

Request for Board Action 

Agenda number: 4C Meeting date: July 20, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Finance 

FILE TYPE: Regular Consent 

TITLE: Approval of Record of Disbursements - June 2023 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approve Record of Disbursements for June 2023 

SUMMARY: In June 2023, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) had 
$1,117,296.67 in disbursements and $135,034.42 in payroll expenses.  Attachment A provides 
the breakdown of disbursements.  Additional detail is available from the Finance Department. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Record of Disbursements for June 
2023. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other  Amendment requested  New FTE(s) requested 

RESOLUTION: 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of 
Commissioners, that the June 2023 Record of Disbursements is approved as written. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Record of Disbursement - June 2023 

BOARD GOALS 
 Focused Housing Programs   Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 
 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 



 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 
 
CONTACT 
Department Head: Karen Reed, Director of Finance 
Author: Karen Reed, Director of Finance 
 



4C - Attachment A
Carver County CDA

Record of Disbursements
For the Month of June 2023

Date Amount Total
Carver Homes 06/01/23 $9,827.03

06/13/23 $15,182.64
06/21/23 $7,379.98
06/27/23 $39,215.47

$71,605.12

CDA 06/01/23 $71,672.20
06/08/23 $164,206.32 (1)
06/13/23 $28,038.12
06/21/23 $31,211.29
06/27/23 $220,117.98 (2)

$515,245.91

Properties 06/01/23 $110,989.71 (3)
06/13/23 $171,639.56 (4)
06/21/23 $221,027.41 (5)
06/27/23 $26,788.96

$530,445.64

Total June 2023 Disbursements $1,117,296.67

June 2023 Payroll
06/07/23 $68,236.95
06/21/23 $66,797.25

$135,034.20

Disbursement detail is available in the Finance Office

(1) US Bank - property levy payments - Oak Grove $37,500, Brickyard - $35,000
Centennial Hill -  $15,500, Lake Grace - $20,000

(2) Land Title - $144,000 - Land cost for 2 Habitat for Humanity units

(3) US Bank - $34,000 debt service - Waybury
PuroClean - $10,000 contract cleaning/restoration - Windstone

(4) SR Mechanical - $66,000 (MagicPak x 15) - Crossings

(5) Clear interfund Properties to CDA - $191,000



Board of Commissioners  

Request for Board Action  

 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023      Agenda number: 4D 

 

DEPARTMENT: Housing 

FILE TYPE: Regular Consent 

 

TITLE: Approval of the Creation of a Limited Partnership and Limited Liability Company 

General Partner-Carver Place 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize the creation of a Limited Partnership and 

Limited Liability Company General Partner in connection with the construction and financing of 

low-income housing tax credit project to be known as Carver Place Apartment Project 

 

SUMMARY: The CDA submitted an application for funding to MN Housing in July 2022 to 

develop Carver Place Apartments. Carver Place will be a general occupancy project consisting of 

60 units, with a mix of 1, 2 and 3-bedroom units. This development will be located at 1591 

Hartwell Dr in Carver. Carver Place was recommended for funding at the December 15, 2022 

MN Housing Board Meeting. 

The Project Owner of Carver Place Apartments will be a Limited Partnership, consisting of a 

General Partner (“LLC”), the CDA and an Investor Limited Partner (TBD). In order to move 

forward with a reservation agreement for the tax credits, the CDA must provide MN Housing 

with the Tax Identification Number (TIN) of the Limited Partnership. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: CDA staff recommends the board authorize the creation of the 

Limited Partnership and Limited Liability Company General Partner.  

 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested  

 

RESOLUTION: 



 WHEREAS, the CDA is authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.012, Subd. 2j, 

to become a partner in a limited partnership and a member in a limited liability company for the 

purpose of developing, constructing, rehabilitating, managing, supporting, or preserving housing 

projects and housing development projects, including low-income housing tax credit projects; 

and  

WHEREAS, limited partnerships, limited liability companies and other entities created 

by the CDA pursuant to Section 469.012, Subd. 2j, are subject to the provisions of Minnesota 

laws applicable to housing and redevelopment authorities as if they were housing and 

redevelopment authorities; and 

WHEREAS, the CDA, as sponsor, previously submitted a funding application to the 

Minnesota Housing Finance Agency to develop a low-income housing tax credit project to be 

known as Carver Place Apartments Project (the “Project”), and, in December, 2022, the 

Minnesota Housing Finance Agency selected the Project for an allocation of tax-exempt bonds 

and related "4%" low-income housing tax credits in the approximate annual amount of $695,886 

(the “Tax Credits”); and 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency requires the Project owner to be a 

duly formed and validly existing limited partnership or limited liability company as a condition 

to, among other things, entering into the agreement reserving the Tax Credits for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, any institutional tax credit investor will require the general partner of the 

Project Owner to be a single purpose entity as a condition to being admitted as a limited partner 

in the Project Owner and as a condition to investing capital in the Project Owner; and 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the CDA to form a limited partnership pursuant to 

Minnesota Statutes, including, without limitation, Section 469.012, Subd. 2j, to serve as the 

owner of the Project (the “Project Owner”) that will develop, construct, operate and own the 

Project; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the CDA to form a single purpose limited liability 

company to serve as the general partner of the Project Owner (the “General Partner”) pursuant to 

Minnesota Statutes, including, without limitation, Section 469.012, Subd. 2j; and 

 WHEREAS, sole member of the General Partner will be the CDA, and, until an 

institutional tax credit investor is admitted as a limited partner of the Project Owner, the sole 

limited partner of the Project Owner also will be the CDA. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Carver County 

Community Development Agency as follows: 

1. There is hereby authorized the formation of a limited partnership to serve as the Project 
Owner pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.012, Subd. 2j and Chapter 321 for the 
purpose of, among other things, reserving the Tax Credits for the Project in order to develop, 
construct, operate and own the Project.



2. There is hereby authorized the formation of a limited liability company pursuant to 

Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.012, Subd. 2j and Chapter 322C for the purpose of creating a 

single purpose entity to serve as the General Partner of the Project Owner.   

3. All actions taken by staff of and counsel to the CDA to create the Project Owner and the 

General Partner in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota are hereby ratified and 

confirmed;   

4. The Executive Director is authorized and directed to execute and deliver on behalf of the 

CDA any and all documents necessary or convenient to transfer the CDA’s interests in the 

Project to the Project Owner.  The Executive Director is authorized and directed to take such 

actions and execute such documents as may be necessary or convenient in connection with the 

establishment, and the acquisition by the CDA, of the sole membership interest in the General 

Partner and of a limited partnership interest in the Project Owner, including, without limitation, 

causing the CDA to make initial capital contributions to such entities in the approximate 

aggregate amount of $200; 

5. The Certificate of Limited Partnership of the Project Owner, which is to be filed with the 

Minnesota Secretary of State, is adopted and approved; and when and as received from the 

Minnesota Secretary of State, the original Certificate of Limited Partnership and the Certificate 

of Formation for the Project Owner shall be inserted in the Project Owner’s minute book and 

made a permanent part of its records; 

6. The form of Agreement of Limited Partnership on file with the CDA as of the date hereof 

is adopted and approved as the initial partnership agreement of the Project Owner; the Executive 

Director of the CDA is directed to execute the Agreement of Limited Partnership on behalf of the 

General Partner in her capacity as Chief Manager and President of the General Partner, and the 

Executive Director of the CDA is directed to execute the Agreement of Limited Partnership on 

behalf of the CDA as the initial limited partner in her capacity as the Executive Director of the 

CDA; and the original of the Agreement of Limited Partnership shall be inserted in the Project 

Owner’s minute book and made a permanent part of its records; 

7. The Articles of Organization of the General Partner, which are to be filed with the 

Minnesota Secretary of State, are adopted and approved; and when and as received from the 

Minnesota Secretary of State, the original Articles of Organization and the Certificate of 

Organization for the General Partner shall be inserted in the General Partner’s minute book and 

made a permanent part of its records; 

8. The form of Operating Agreement on file with the CDA as of the date hereof is adopted 

and approved as the Operating Agreement of the General Partner; the Executive Director of the 

CDA is directed to execute the Operating Agreement on behalf of the CDA as sole member of 

the General Partner in her capacity as the Executive Director of the CDA; and the original of the 

Operating Agreement shall be inserted in the General Partner’s minute book and made a 

permanent part of its records; 



9. The CDA, as the sole member of the General Partner, is authorized to pay, or cause to be 

paid, all charges and expenses arising out of the organization of the General Partner and/or the 

Project Owner, and to reimburse any persons who have made any disbursements therefore, 

consistent with the policies and procedures of the CDA. 

10. The initial fiscal year of the Project Owner and the General Partner shall end December 

31, 2023; thereafter the Project Owner and General Partner’s fiscal year shall begin the first day 

of January and shall end on the last day of December; provided, however, the Project Owner’s 

fiscal year may change at a later date depending on the requirements of the institutional tax credit 

investor; 

11. The CDA’s Executive Director or her designee is authorized to open an account or 

accounts in the name of the General Partner and the Partnership with Old National Bank, which 

is hereby designated as the General Partner’s and the Partnership’s depository, and to execute 

such documents or certificates necessary or convenient in order to open such accounts; and that 

each of the persons named in the master certificate of authority for the CDA and its subsidiaries 

are authorized and empowered to sign checks and other orders for withdrawals of funds and to 

take such other actions as are in accordance with such certificate;  

12. The Project Owner shall be managed by the General Partner, and the General Partner 

shall be managed by the CDA, its sole member, rather than by a Board of Governors.   

13. As long as the sole member of the General Partner is the CDA and the General Partner is 

the General Partner of the Project Owner, the Project Owner and the General Partner are and 

shall be subject to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 to 469.047, and other 

laws that apply to housing and redevelopment authorities, as if the Project Owner and the 

General Partner were a housing and redevelopment authority, in accordance with Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 469.102, Subd. 2j. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

N/A 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 

 

BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Allison Streich, Deputy Director 

Author: Allison Streich, Deputy Director 

 



Board of Commissioners 

Request for Board Action 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023 Agenda number: 4E 

DEPARTMENT: Housing 

FILE TYPE: Regular Consent 

TITLE: Approval of County-Wide Housing Study 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize the acceptance of a County-Wide Housing 

Study. 

SUMMARY: Maxfield Research and Consulting completed a County-wide Housing Study in 

2014 for the CDA. In 2017, Community Partners Research, Inc. completed an Affordable 

Housing Update by city for each city to use in their 2040 Comprehensive Planning process. The 

CDA has been the lead agency in implementing the housing goals in the County’s 2020-2024 

Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) Priorities, Goals, Strategies and Objectives. The 

County is in the beginning stages of the County Community Health Assessment that will 

determine the goals for the next Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP), which will 

include housing goals. As part of this assessment, staff is recommending an updated county-wide 

housing study be completed by Maxfield. Carver County has agreed to share the cost of this 

update with the CDA. The total cost of the study would be $39,380. 

RECOMMENDATION: CDA staff recommends the board authorize the acceptance of the 

approval from Maxfield Research and Consulting for a cost of $39,380, to be split between the 

CDA and Carver County with each paying $19,690. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested 

RESOLUTION: 

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) “the “Authority” and 

the Carver County “the County” has identified a need for affordable housing by developing new 

affordable housing, preserving and rehabilitating the existing housing stock in Carver County; 

and 



WHEREAS, the Carver County CDA has successfully implemented a county-wide housing 

study in 2007 and 2014 and is in need of an update for planning and financing purposes and has 

the legal authority and staff ability and resources to make the study beneficial and cost effective 

for Carver County residents and cities; and 

WHEREAS, the Carver County CDA and the cities in Carver County have identified a need for 

planning for a wide variety of housing in their communities; and 

WHEREAS, the CDA operates numerous housing programs in cooperation with the Minnesota 

Housing Finance Agency, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the 

USDA Rural Development, etc. and has identified a need for housing opportunities in Carver 

County and in its cities; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed study would fill a much-needed gap in county housing study research 

after the completion of the 2020 US Census Data and conducting the Carver County Community 

Health Assessment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development 

Agency Board of Commissioners that:  

1.) The Carver County CDA shall engage the services of Maxfield Research and Consulting, 

Inc. to prepare a Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Carver County.  

 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION  
Resolution 13-38 Approving Maxfield Research Carver County 2014 Housing Study Update 

Proposal  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Maxfield Research and Consulting, Inc. Proposal to Prepare a Comprehensive Housing Needs 

Analysis for Carver County, Minnesota 
 

BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Allison Streich, Deputy Director 

Author: Allison Streich, Deputy Director 

 



 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 

Carver County Community Development Agency 
Chaska, Minnesota 
 
June 2023 
 
 
                                                                                                       

2823 Hamline Avenue North 
Roseville, MN  55113 
612.338.0012 
www.maxfieldresearch.com 
 

A Proposal to Prepare a 
Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for 

Carver County, Minnesota 



 

(main) 612-338-0012     (fax) 612-904-7979 
2823 Hamline Avenue North, Roseville, MN  55113 

www.maxfieldresearch.com 

June 19, 2023 
 
Ms. Alison Streich 
Executive Director 
Carver County Community Development Agency 
705 North Walnut Street 
Chaska, MN  55318 
 
Ms. Streich: 
 
Thank you for contacting Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC to provide a proposal for a Comprehen-
sive Housing Needs Analysis for Carver County, Minnesota.  The study would examine demographic and 
economic factors, current housing market conditions and would determine the market potential for de-
veloping additional housing products in the County.  We would provide recommendations (number of 
units/lots; unit mix and sizes; price/rent; housing features and amenities, etc.) for the housing types 
identified as being needed in the short- and long-term.  In addition, recommendations would be pro-
vided on programs and incentives that may be initiated to attract specific housing products.  
 
The work program for this housing market study is outlined on the following pages.  The total fee for 
staff time for the housing needs analysis would be $39,380.00, including expenses for outside data pur-
chases, telephone expenses, mileage for travel, photocopying, etc.  Costs are presented for each major 
component of the work program.  Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC would be able to deliver a 
draft report of the housing analysis in an estimated 160 to 180 days.    
 
Along with the proposal is a statement of qualifications for our firm which provides a company back-
ground, outlines our services and representative clients, and provides resumes of staff who would be 
conducting the housing study.  We welcome the opportunity to work with you on this project.  If this 
proposal meets with your approval, please sign and return one copy of the contract.  Please call me at 
(612) 904-7971 if you have any questions about the proposed work program or if you need any other 
information.  I can also be reached via email at mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 
 

 
Mary C. Bujold 
President 
(612) 904-7977 direct dial office 

mailto:mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com


 

(main) 612-338-0012     (fax) 612-904-7979 
2823 Hamline Avenue North, Roseville, MN  55113 

www.maxfieldresearch.com 

June 19, 2023 
 
Ms. Alison Streich 
Executive Director 
Carver County Community Development Agency 
705 North Walnut Street 
Chaska, MN  55318 
 
 
 PROPOSAL/CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC proposes to provide market research and consulting ser-
vices to the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) (the “Client”) to prepare a 
Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis.  The market study will determine the market potential 
for developing different types of owned and rented housing in Carver County to 2040 based on 
an examination of demographic and employment growth trends and current housing market 
conditions.  Detailed recommendations (number of units/lots; unit mix and sizes; prices/rents; 
housing features and amenities, etc.) for the housing types identified as needed in the short-
term (2024 to 2030) and long-term (2030 to 2040) would be provided.  
 
 
DESCRIPTION AND BIOGRAPHY OF FIRM 
 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC has 40 years of experience in assisting communities to 
determine market conditions for planning and development efforts, providing demographic es-
timates and projections, and analyzing county and municipal commercial and residential real 
estate needs.  Our thorough knowledge of market trends in the real estate industry allows us to 
support our clients with valuable information that affects planning and development.  We are 
able to determine viable solutions to the issues that communities face.  We are local, regional 
and national with work completed in over 40 states.   
 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC provides research and analysis in the areas of general 
market housing, student housing, senior housing, office, retail, hospitality, industrial and finan-
cial institutions.  Maxfield also has experience in organizing and conducting focus groups, pre-
paring and administering on-line and mail surveys, holding public forums for large scale plan-
ning documents and organizing and making presentations to city councils, planning commis-
sions and economic development authorities.  A more detailed company overview is in the Ap-
pendix.  



Ms. Alison Streich   June 19, 2023 
Carver County Community Development Agency Page 2 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

METHODOLOGY 
 
It is our understanding that the primary objective of this analysis is to provide Carver County 
Community Development Agency with a market-based analysis that will identify current and fu-
ture housing needs in Carver County and help decision makers develop a greater understanding 
of the County’s housing market.  Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC will provide detailed 
recommendations and an action plan for housing development (short-term and long-term) and 
recommend tools and policies that will assist implementation.  Our findings will provide a basis 
for community leaders, stakeholders, and decision-makers to guide future efforts when ad-
dressing housing needs.  
 
The hallmark of Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC.’s approach to comprehensive housing 
studies is a thoughtful, in-depth combination of primary and secondary research.  Primary re-
search includes surveys of existing housing properties, one-on-one interviews with major em-
ployers, developers, builders, Realtors, property managers, city and government agency staff 
and others familiar with housing issues and the local housing market.  Secondary research in-
cludes data obtained from reliable published sources including the Census Bureau, ESRI, Inc. (a 
national demographics firm), State demographic centers and economic development agencies, 
among others.  
 
Secondary published data is always 
reviewed carefully considering other 
local factors revealed through the 
primary research that may have an 
impact on the analysis.  The result is 
a custom report that provides the 
Client with information that is timely 
and locally pertinent. 
 
Our work approach will draw on our 
experience and expertise in conduct-
ing housing studies on behalf of pub-
lic entities and private developers.   
 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, 
LLC routinely completes over 100 
housing studies annually and is a 
market leader on housing research 
and consulting in the Upper Mid-
west.  
  
  

Housing Stock

Demographics &  
Employment

Economic 
Analysis

Demand & Gap 
Analysis

Recommendations 
& Conclusions

Policies & 
Implementation

Comprehensive
Housing

Needs Analysis



Ms. Alison Streich   June 19, 2023 
Carver County Community Development Agency Page 3 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

WHY MAXFIELD RESEARCH? 
 

 
 

We Know the Region

• Benefit: Work efficiency – our past experience in Carver County and the Twin 
Cities Metro Area will allow us to be on the ground immediately

Housing Inventory

• Benefit: Maxfield Research’s proprietary housing data includes detailed 
information on multifamily properties across the Twin Cities Metro Area

Experience Counts

• Benefit: Committed team of senior-level leaders; the four team members 
dedicated to this project have a combined 70-plus years of experience and have 
completed nearly 30 Comprehensive Housing Studies over the past two years

Local Knowledge - National Experience

• Benefit: Our work is grounded in local issues/reality and we can integrate best 
practices from elsewhere

Relationships

• Benefit: We have deep relationships with the development community; we 
understand their barriers and opportunities, we know what they want, and they 
will talk to us

Full-Service Real Estate Advisory Firm

• Benefit: We understand the connection between all real estate types and we 
advise both public- and private-sector clients

Comprehensive Approach

• Benefit: Data-driven analyses generate conclusions and recommendations based 
on market realities

On the Ground Field Research

• Benefit: Hands-on field work, in-person interviews, telephone surveys, combined 
with the analysis of the Census and other data to gain the most information 
possible.  

Proven Methodologies & Results Oriented

• Benefit: Our process for projecting housing demand has proven to be effective and 
we deliver action-oriented strategies



Ms. Alison Streich   June 19, 2023 
Carver County Community Development Agency Page 4 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

RESEARCH STAFF 
 
Mary Bujold, CRE, President, Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC, will 
serve as principle-in-charge of the project and serves as a consultant for 
the recommendations.  Ms. Bujold has nearly 40 years of experience in 
housing market research and is regarded as a market expert in the field 
of residential real estate.  Ms. Bujold has been involved in numerous 
housing and commercial analyses for private developers and public agen-
cies.  She recently completed analyses for Washington County CDA and 
Scott County CDA. 
 
Mr. Joe Hollman, Senior Analyst would assist Mr. Mullins on the project 
as a principal analyst.  With over 20 years of experience, Mr. Hollman 
would complete a portion of the data gathering, prepare conclusions and 
recommendations, and compile the written report.  Mr. Hollman was the 
lead analyst on several recent research studies that focused on the de-
mand for residential and commercial real estate, including comprehen-
sive housing studies for Scott County, City of Luverne, Minnesota, Rock 
County, the City of Maple Grove, Minnesota and Goodhue County, Min-
nesota.  Mr. Hollman recently completed studies in northern Minnesota 
and as well as the Twin Cities Metro Area.    
 
Mr. Andrew McIntyre, Research Associate, will provide data gathering 
services for this project.  Mr. McIntyre will be responsible for compiling 
demographic and employment data, gathering base market information 
and GIS mapping.  Mr. McIntyre has assisted on several comprehensive 
housing needs analyses during his tenure with Maxfield Research and 
Consulting, LLC, including studies for the Cities of St. Cloud and Edina, 
Minnesota and is currently working on an update of the housing needs 
analysis for the City of Owatonna, Minnesota.  



Ms. Alison Streich   June 19, 2023 
Carver County Community Development Agency Page 5 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

Consultant’s Name:  Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC 
Year Established:  1983 
Type of Ownership: LLC 
Federal ID Number: 41-1463801 
Employees:  7 
 
Primary Contact: 
Ms. Mary C. Bujold 
President 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC 
2823 Hamline Avenue North 
Roseville, MN  55113 
email:  mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com 
www.maxfieldresearch.com 
 
 

Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC 
Organization Chart 

 

 
 
  

Management

Mary Bujold
President

Years Experience:  40

Matt Mullins
Vice President

Years Experience:  25

Senior Analysts

Joe Hollman
Years Experience:  27

Brian Smith
Years Experience:  22

Associates

Rob Wilder
Years Experience:  9  

Max Perrault
Years Experience:  8

Andrew McIntyre
Years Experience:  5

mailto:mbujold@maxfieldresearch.com
http://www.maxfieldresearch.com/


Ms. Alison Streich   June 19, 2023 
Carver County Community Development Agency Page 6 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

SCOPE AND COST OF SERVICES – Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis 
 
A. Project Kickoff Meeting/Field Work 

1. Meet with representatives of the Carver County CDA, Carver County, and other 
stakeholders to review project goals and objectives.  Refine work program if re-
quired.  This report will require some assistance from the stakeholders; data re-
quests and other project assistance will be discussed during this time.   

2. Conduct a windshield survey of the housing stock in the County. 
3. Data will be provided for comparison purposes to other counties/communities simi-

lar to Carver County.  Peer counties will be discussed during the kick-off meeting. 
 
B. Review of Past Studies/Planning Documents 

1. Obtain information on past housing studies/planning documents, ordinances, or 
other research reports/publications with information pertinent to the assignment.  
Review these documents and identify information that is relevant to this analysis; 
identify how current conditions have changed.   

2. Summarize information obtained from previous documents and their impact on the 
current analysis; include conflicting information or document key issues and their 
relevance to the current project. 

 
C.  Demographic Analysis  

1. Identify housing draw areas/submarkets for the communities/townships in Carver 
County (see map on following page for potential submarkets).    

2. Examine population and household growth trends and projections to 2040. 
3. Examine demographic information on: 

a) Population age distribution 
b) Persons per household (household size) 
c) Household incomes by age of householder 
d) Household incomes be tenure 
e) Household net worth 
f) Household tenure 
g) Household tenure by age of householder 
h) Household tenure by household size 
i) Household type 
j) Diversity/ethnicity/culture 

4. Present information on mobility trends. 
5. Summarize links between the demographic profile and housing demand. 
6. Discuss the implications of the findings on housing demand in Carver County. 

 



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 7 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

D. Employment Trends  
1. Examine local data on resident employment (based on place of residence). 
2. Examine local data on covered employment (based on location of jobs). 
3. Provide data on jobs by NAICS industry sector. 
4. Identify major employers. 
5. Identify commuting patterns of area workers. 

a) Place of residence vs. place of employment 
b) Wage ranges 
c) Demographic characteristics 

6. Project job growth to 2040.  Analyze any business expansions/contractions and their 
effect on the local housing market. 

7. Interview economic development specialists, major employers, and local officials re-
garding major employment changes and other issues that may impact long-term em-
ployment growth (i.e. adequate supply of workforce housing).  

8. Discuss the implications of the findings on housing demand in the County.  
 

E. Housing Characteristics & Condition 
1. Compile statistics on the age of the housing stock in the County by submarket. 
2. Compile residential building permit data by type of housing to the most current 

available figures for each submarket.   
3. Analyze U.S. Census and American Community Survey (ACS) findings collected be-

tween 2010 and 2021 (or most current data).  Compile the following: 
a) Renter-occupied units by contract rent 
b) Owner-occupied housing units by value 
c) Owner-occupied housing units by mortgage status 
d) Housing units by structure and occupancy 
e) Housing units by occupancy status and tenure 

4. Review housing market value data from City/County tax records (if available) or ACS. 
5. Interview area housing professionals and local government staff regarding housing 

conditions, economic development trends and other factors that affect the local 
housing markets.   

6. Identify the residential land supply and its impact on potential housing production. 
7. Conduct a windshield survey of housing properties in the County.  The windshield 

survey provides a visual assessment of the general conditions of the housing stock.  
Comment on properties or neighborhoods with code enforcement concerns and 
other substandard housing issues that have undesirable housing conditions.  

8. Discuss the implications of the findings on housing demand in Carver County.   
 

 



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 8 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

F. For-Sale Housing Market Analysis 
1. Collect data on housing resale values (single-family and multifamily); examine price 

distribution and average/median sale price of home resales in Carver County.  (Note: 
this may require assistance from the county assessor).  

2. Analyze data on the inventory and list price of homes currently for sale.     
3. Survey active and recently completed for-sale housing developments (single-family 

homes, townhomes, twinhomes, etc.) in the County; analyze information on product 
types, lot sizes, home sizes, sale prices, buyer profile, and absorption (if available).      

4. Identify the residential lot supply in the various submarkets and the impact on 
potential housing production.  Present information on vacant lots by year platted, 
subdivision, pricing, etc. 

5. Identify pending for-sale housing developments in the County by submarket and 
discuss the likely impact of these developments on the housing market. 

6. Interview real estate sales agents, developers, and builders to assess the overall 
strength of the for-sale housing market, buyer profiles, the impact of 
foreclosures/short sales on the housing market, desired housing types and price 
range, and unmet market niches. 

7. Based on a windshield survey of homes in the County as well as interviews with 
City/County staff and Realtors discuss the overall condition of the owner-occupied 
housing stock in the County. 
 

G. General Occupancy Rental Market Analysis 
1. Survey larger (eight units or more) general occupancy rental housing properties, in-

cluding subsidized (deep subsidy/extremely low income), affordable (shallow sub-
sidy/low income), workforce housing (80% to 120% of AMI) and market rate devel-
opments in the County.  Map locations of the multifamily housing stock.  

2. Analyze data collected from the rental survey on year built/remodeled, monthly 
rents, vacancies, rents per foot, unit types/sizes and features, common area ameni-
ties, and resident profiles. 

3. Inventory pending (planned or under construction) rental developments in the 
County and assess their potential impact on the market. 

4. Interview owners/managers of rental housing in the area to assess rental trends and 
the need for additional rental housing in the County.  Identify appropriate rental 
rates and the target markets for new rental construction in the community. 
 

H. Senior Housing Market Analysis 
1. Inventory existing senior housing developments in the County, including subsidized 

(deep subsidy), affordable (shallow subsidy) and market rate developments.  Pro-
jects will include rental and for-sale active adult, independent living with services 
available, assisted living, and memory care senior housing developments.  In addi-
tion, collect information on skilled nursing facilities.   

2. Map locations of the senior housing stock.  



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 9 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

3. Analyze data collected from the survey on year opened, number of units, vacancies, 
pricing, unit types and features, common-area amenities, services provided (if appli-
cable) and resident profile.  

4. Inventory pending senior developments in the County and assess their potential im-
pact on the market. 

5. Interview senior housing managers/sponsors in the area to assess market trends and 
the potential need for additional senior housing or skilled nursing care in the County. 

 
I. Housing Affordability 

1. Review and present income limits, maximum gross rents, and fair market rents by 
household size in Carver County. 

2. Based on income guidelines, present maximum rents based on household size and 
Area Median Income. 

3. Based on the average rents by unit type from the General Occupancy Rental Market 
Analysis Section, present information on income-qualified renter households. 

4. Based on the median home resale value from the For-Sale Housing Market Analysis 
Section, present information on income-qualified owner households.  

5. Identify the number of cost burdened households (i.e. households paying more than 
30% of their income on housing) in the County.  Present cost burdened information 
for renters and owners. 

6. Discuss housing voucher program in Carver County and present information on his-
toric housing vouchers; both ported in and in the County. 
 

J. Conclusions and Recommendations 
1. Quantify demand for housing (subsidized, affordable, and market rate) by submar-

ket in the County to 2040 based on employment and household growth projections, 
pent-up demand, turnover/mobility, and estimated replacement needs. 

2. Identify potential target markets for new for-sale, rental, and senior housing. 
3. Identify potential unmet market niches and discuss the primary deficiencies in the 

current market situation. 
4. Prioritize housing needs and action steps to implement recommendations.   
5. Based on lot supply and absorption trends, discuss the current land supply and 

whether more lots should be platted to meet projected demand.  
6. Suggest an appropriate housing mix by product type (rental, ownership, and senior) 

and price point and discuss the target markets for each.   
7. Suggest appropriate development concepts in the short-term (developments 

needed by 2030) and long-term (2030 to 2040), including number of units, unit mix, 
sizes, sale prices or monthly rents, and in-unit features and common area amenities. 

8. Discuss the potential need for public/private partnerships to achieve housing devel-
opment goals and support economic development in Carver County. 

9. Discuss housing programs and resources that may be administered by the County or 
communities in the County to help achieve housing goals (i.e. home improvement 



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 10 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

loans, energy and environmental sustainability, fix-up funds, foreclosure assistance, 
first-time home buyer classes, etc.).   

10. Review current programs provided by Carver County communities and recommend 
other successful programs offered at other communities similar in size to communi-
ties in the County.   

11. Provide recommendations on other challenges and opportunities that relate to the 
housing stock and housing development in the County.     

 
L. Meetings and Client Contact 

1. One kick-off meeting with Client (in person or via conference call). 
2. Review of the Draft analysis (via conference call) that would address report findings. 
3. Formal presentation (in person) to appropriate governing body. 
4. Report Preparation. 

 
Cost for Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis (Staff Time) $39,380.00 
 
 
GIS MAPPING 
 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC will present key data visually and spatially through GIS 
mapping.  However, Maxfield Research will require assistance from the Client to obtain parcel 
level data and the County assessor database. We will provide a detailed data request list that 
will outline the mapping and data needs. 
 
 
COST OF SERVICES 
 
The work outlined under the Scope of Services – Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis will be 
performed for Thirty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Dollars ($39,380.00), including out-
of-pocket expenses postage, long-distance telephone, data purchases, mileage expenses and an 
electronic version.    
 
Work completed on the assignment would be billed to the Client monthly as costs are incurred.  
Additional research or meeting time requested by the Client beyond that set forth in the ac-
companying Scope of Services will be billed at our normal hourly rates ($55 to $160).   
 
The following fee proposal provides a detailed summary of staff hours needed to complete this 
project.  The fee proposal includes a breakdown of costs by project task along with Maxfield Re-
search and Consulting, LLC staff assigned to the project. 
 



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 11 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

 
 
 
WORK PRODUCT 
 
Findings will be presented in an electronic PDF format.  The Comprehensive Housing Needs 
Analysis is accepted by many lenders, limited partners, investors or governmental bodies who 
require such documentation to satisfy their financing criteria. 
 
 
COMPLETION TIME 
 
The work outlined under the Scope of Services will be completed in draft form within 160 to 
180 days of the execution of this agreement unless delayed by unexpected emergencies, forces 
beyond the control of the parties, or by written agreement of the parties.  A final report would 
be issued within two weeks of receiving all comments and feedback from the Client.   
 

Mary Joe Andrew Admin. Maxfield Cost by
Bujold Hollman McIntyre Assistant Research Task

President Sr. Analyst Associate Support Total Total

A. Project Kick-off & Windshield Survey 4 2 4 0 10 $1,280
B. Review of Past Studies 3 4 8 0 15 $1,760
C. Demographic Analysis 4 14 24 0 42 $4,780
D. Employment Trends 4 11 16 0 31 $3,650
E. Housing Characteristics and Condition 3 8 12 0 23 $2,700
F. For-Sale Housing Market Analysis 4 10 18 0 32 $3,670
G. General Occupancy Rental Analysis 4 10 24 0 38 $4,180
H. Senior Housing Market Analysis 6 10 14 0 30 $3,620
I. Housing Affordability 4 10 12 0 26 $3,160
J. Conclusions and Recommendations 8 14 10 0 32 $4,230
K. Meetings and Report Preparation 8 8 4 6 26 $3,150
L. Mapping & GIS 0 10 20 0 30 $3,200
Total Hours 52 111 166 6 335
(times) Hourly Rate $160 $150 $85 $55
Total Cost for Staff Time $8,320 $16,620 $14,110 $330 $39,380

(Plus) Travel Cost (estimate)* Incl.
Total Cost for Staff Time plus Travel $8,320 $16,620 $14,110 $330 $39,380

*Mileage billed at the standard IRS rate of $0.655 per mile (2023 rate)
**Printing cost billed at our direct cost estimated at $90 per copy.

FEE PROPOSAL
COMPREHENSIVE HOUSING NEEDS ANALYSIS FOR CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA

Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC Staff

Project Task



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 12 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

 
 
 
PAYMENT 
 
All invoices are payable to Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC within fifteen (15) days of 
receipt of an invoice showing the work completed and the direct costs for expenses.  A finance 
charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month will be added to the unpaid balance of 
each invoice not paid within thirty (30) days.  All invoices are sent via email.  A current email 
address needs to be supplied to Maxfield Research for billing purposes.  A final invoice will be 
sent with the release of the draft report. 
 
 
DISCLAIMER 
 
The objective of this research assignment is to gather and analyze as many market components 
as is reasonable within the time limits and projected staff hours set forth in this agreement.  We 
assume no responsibility for matters legal in character.   
 
The property/land is assumed to be free and clear of any indebtedness, liens or encumbrances; 
and good and marketable title and competent management are assumed, unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
If building plans or site plans are included in the report, they are to be considered only 
approximate and are submitted to assist the reader in visualizing the property.  We assume no 
responsibility for the accuracy of any building or site plans.  

Project Task
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4
Wk.

1
Wk.

2
Wk.

3
Wk.

4

A. Project Kickoff

B. Review of Past Studies

C. Demographic Analysis

D. Employment Trends

E. Housing Characteristics & Condition

F. For-Sale Market Analysis

G. Rental Market Analysis

H. Senior Housing Market Analysis

I.  Housing Affordability

J. Conclusions and Recommendations

Delivery of Draft Report

Formal Presentation

Month 6

PROPOSED COMPLETION TIMEFRAME
COMPREHENSIVE HOUSING NEEDS ANALYSIS FOR CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA

Month 5Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 13 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

Certain information and statistics contained in the report, which are the basis for conclusions 
contained in the report, will be furnished by other independent sources.  While we believe this 
information is reliable, it has not been independently verified by us and we assume no 
responsibility for its accuracy. 
 
The conclusions in the report are based on our best judgments as market research consultants.  
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC disclaims any express or implied warranty of assurance 
of representation that the projections or conclusions will be realized as stated.   
 
The result of the proposed project may be achieved, but also may vary due to changing market 
conditions characteristic of the real estate industry, changes in facts that were the basis of 
conclusions in this report, or other unforeseen circumstances. 
 
This agreement will be construed according to the laws of the State of Minnesota. 
 
 
TERMINATION 
 
This agreement may be terminated upon written notification of either party to the other.  In 
the event of termination, the Client will pay Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC for staff 
hours performed at the firm's normal hourly rates, plus all expenses incurred through the date 
of termination.   
 
If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and return one copy to the offices of 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC.  The costs outlined in the Scope of Services shall remain 
in effect for a period of 90 days from the date listed at the top of this contract. 
 
Agreed to this                    day of                                                             2023. 
 
 
MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC CARVER COUNTY CDA 

 
         

Mary C Bujold  Alison Streich 
President  Executive Director 
  



Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 14 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

SELECTED HOUSING STUDIES/REFERENCES 
Maxfield Research and Consulting, LLC  

 
 

1. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Two Harbors, Minnesota   2022 
Client:  City of Two Harbors 
Contact:  Jennifer Sterbenz, (218) 834-8804, jsterbenz@twoharborsmn.gov 
 

2. Comprehensive Housing Needs Update for Scott County, Minnesota   2021 
Client:  Scott County Community Development Agency 
Contact:  Julie Siegert, (952) 641-5185, jsiegert@scottcda.org 
 

3. Comprehensive Housing Needs Assessment for Waseca, Minnesota   2021 
Client:  City of Waseca 
Contact:  Mike Anderson, (507) 835-9741, mikea@ci.waseca.mn.us 
 

4. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Marshall, Minnesota    2021 
Client:  Marshall Economic Development Authority 
Contact:  Lauren Deutz, (507) 337-9013, lauren.deutz@ci.marshall.mn.us 
 

5. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Sherburne County, Minnesota   2020 
Client:  Sherburne County  
Contact:  Dan Weber, (763) 765-3007, Dan.Weber@co.sherburne.mn.us 
 

6. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Goodhue County, Minnesota   2020 
Client:  Goodhue County Economic Development Authority 
Contact:  Ron Zeigler, (507) 867-3164, ron.zeigler@cedausa.com  
 

7. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Olmsted County, Minnesota   2020 
Client:  Olmsted County | Rochester Area Foundation 
Contact:  Jeremy Emmi, (507) 282-0203, jeremy@rochesterarea.org 
 

8. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Luverne, Minnesota    2019 
Client:  Luverne Economic Development Authority 
Contact:  Holly Sammons, (507) 449-5033, hsammons@cityofluverne.org 
 

9. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for St. Cloud, Minnesota    2019 
Client:  City of St. Cloud 
Contact:  Matt Glaesman, (320) 650-3110, matt.glaesman@ci.stcloud.mn.us 

 
10. Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis for Chisago County, Minnesota   2018 

Client:  Chisago County HRA-EDA 
Contact:  Nancy Hoffman, (651) 674-5664, nancy@chisagocounty.org  
 

 
 

mailto:jsiegert@scottcda.org
mailto:lauren.deutz@ci.marshall.mn.us
mailto:Dan.Weber@co.sherburne.mn.us
mailto:ron.zeigler@cedausa.com


Ms. Alison Streich    June 19, 2023 
Carver County CDA  Page 15 

MAXFIELD RESEARCH AND CONSULTING, LLC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

--APPENDIX--



 

 

 



VI. DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A. Finance

B. Economic and Community Development

C. Housing

D. Administrative



Board of Commissioners 
Request for Board Action 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023 Agenda number: 5A 

DEPARTMENT: Finance 

FILE TYPE: Regular Agenda 

TITLE: Approval of the 2024 Budget and Levy 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approving the 2024 General Administrative Operating 
Budget and the 2024 (Payable) Special Benefits Tax Levy and Authorizing Certification of the 
Levy to Carver County for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. 

SUMMARY: The proposed budget for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, projects 
revenue of $16,549,904 and expenses of $16,549,904. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the general administrative operating 
budget and the 2024 (Payable) Special Benefits Tax Levy and Authorizing Certification of the 
Levy to Carver County request for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested 

RESOLUTION: 

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (the “Agency”) is duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota, including Laws of Minnesota 
for 1980, Chapter 482, as amended (the “Special Law”); and 

WHEREAS, with the approval of the Carver County Board of Commissioners (the “Carver 
County Board”), the Agency may levy special benefit taxes as authorized under Minnesota 
Statutes, section 469.107 or 469.033, Subd 6; and 



WHEREAS, the Agency has prepared its 2024 General Administrative Operating Budget (the 
“2024 Budget”) and seeks the approval of the Carver County Board for the 2024 Budget and, to 
the extent required by law, the Agency’s levy of its special benefits tax, in order to continue the 
work of the Agency in Carver County; 

WHEREAS, the Agency is required to certify a proposed special benefits tax levy to the Carver 
County Auditor (the “Auditor”) on or before September 30th, 2023, as required by Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 275.065, Subdivision 1(a), and to certify to the Auditor a final special benefits 
tax levy on or before December 27, 2023, which is five working days after December 20th, as 
required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 275.07; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Carver 
County Community Development Agency as follows: 

1. The 2024 Budget is hereby approved and directed to be submitted to Carver County 
pursuant to the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.033 and 275.065. 

2. Subject to the consent of the Carver County Board, to the extent required under 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.033, and the Special Law, the Executive Director of the Agency 
is hereby authorized to certify to the Auditor on or before September 30, 2023, a proposed levy 
of the Agency’s special benefits tax for taxes payable in 2024 in the amount of $3,775,425 
which, based on current estimates of market value for property in Carver County, is the 
maximum permitted by law, and to determine the final maximum amount of such levy and 
certify the final levy to the Auditor on or before December 27, 2023.   

3. Upon approval of the Carver County Board of the Agency’s budget and levy of the 
special benefits tax, the County’s approving resolution shall be attached hereto and made a part 
of this resolution. 

 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 5A 
 
BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 
 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 
 
CONTACT 
Department Head: Karen Reed, Director of Finance 
Author: Karen Reed, Director of Finance 
 



CARVER COUNTY CDA
2024

 BUDGET DETAIL

5A - Attachment

Carver County CDA - 2024 Budget Detail 2023 2024
Approved Requested

REVENUES
        Administrative Revenues
             Federal

Housing Counseling 0
Shelter + Care 10,385 9,100
SCDP - NYA 0

             State and Local
Bridges 9,360 9,360
Bridges RTC 1,632 1,752
Housing Trust Fund 5,760 5,760
HECAT 0
MHFA - RLP & ELP

        Total Administrative Revenues $27,137 $25,972

        Pass-Through Grant Funds
             Federal

Shelter Plus Care 137,978 120,174
SCDP - NYA

             State and Local
Bridges 123,974 140,257
Bridges RTC 13,250 20,308
Housing Trust Fund 69,000 69,000
MHFA - RLP & ELP

        Total Pass-Through Grant Funds $344,202 $349,739

        Operating Revenues
Carver Well/Septic Program Fees 400 600
Investment Earnings 12,135 10,685
Land Trust 10,800 10,800
Enterprise Revenue 1,734,220 2,207,142
Clover Field Owners Association Dues 4,200 12,600
Property Management Fees 607,752 704,975
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,160                            2,160                            

        Total Operating Revenues $2,371,667 $2,948,962

        Housing Revenues
Housing Revenues 9,064,000 9,449,806

        Total Housing Revenues $9,064,000 $9,449,806

        CDA Special Benefit Levy
Special Benefit Levy 3,131,889 3,775,425

        Total CDA Special Benefit Levy $3,131,889 $3,775,425

TOTAL REVENUES $14,938,895 $16,549,904

Page 1



CARVER COUNTY CDA
2024

 BUDGET DETAIL

5A - Attachment

Carver County CDA - 2024 Budget Detail 2023 2024
Approved Requested

EXPENDITURES
        Administrative & Operating Expenses

Salaries 2,455,000 2,840,500
Benefits 902,000 1,149,500
Employee Wellness 5,000 6,000
Temporary Services 30,000 50,000
Board Member Expenses/ Per Diem 7,100 7,100
Audit Fees 55,275 57,000
Marketing/Advertising 15,000 165,000
Bad debt expense 1,000 1,000
Conferences & Training 20,000 20,000
Consulting 31,000 36,000
Credit Bureau 750 750
Dues & Subscriptions 13,000 13,000
HR Recruiting 40,000 40,000

Insurance 30,000 30,000
Legal 80,000 66,000
Mileage 20,000 20,000
Bank fees 3,000 3,000
Miscellaneous 12,968 13,009
Office Equipment 34,000 29,000
Payroll Fees 8,600 9,000
Postage 6,000 6,000
PILOT and Tax Assessments 3,000 3,000
Property Inspections 6,000
Recorder Fees 1,500 1,000
Rent 76,000 76,000
Maintenance - CDA & Econ Development 7,000 7,000

Software License fees 13,000 25,000
Supplies 13,000 13,000
IT Support/Website/Internet 110,000 110,000
Telephone 15,000 15,000
Cell Phones 28,000 30,000
Utilities 2,500 2,500
Vehicle Maintenance 30,000 30,000
Capital Reserves 160,000

        Total Administrative & Operating Expenses 4,074,693.00$              5,034,359.00$              

Page 2



CARVER COUNTY CDA
2024

 BUDGET DETAIL

5A - Attachment

Carver County CDA - 2024 Budget Detail 2023 2024
Approved Requested

        Pass-Through Grant Funds
             Federal

Shelter Plus Care 137,978 120,174
SCDP - NYA 0
Bridges 123,974 140,257
Bridges - RTC 13,250 20,308
Housing Trust Fund 69,000 69,000
MHFA - RLP & ELP 0 0

             Total Pass-Through Grant Funds $344,202 $349,739

         Housing Expenditures
Housing Expenditures 9,064,000 9,449,806

        Total Housing Expenditures $9,064,000 $9,449,806

       GO Bond Obligations
Transfers to Lake Grace 40,000 40,000
Transfers to The Crossings 35,000 35,000
Transfers to Centennial Hills 31,000 31,000
Transfers to Chaska Brickyard 70,000 70,000
Transfers to Bluff Creek 25,000 25,000
Transfers to Oak Grove Senior Residence 75,000 75,000

        Total GO Bond Obligation Expenditures $276,000 $276,000

       Community/Economic Development
            Home Ownership Programs

Pre-development costs - housing 140,000 175,000
Housing Development 240,000 250,000
Home Improvement Loans 50,000

            Economic Development Programs 400,000
NextStage 55,000
Greater MSP 30,000
CEO Next 10,000
Business Loan Fund 125,000
Choose Carver County (website) 25,000
Other 180,000

            Tourism
Choose Carver County  125,000

            Community Development Initiative 400,000 415,000
        Total Community/Economic Development 1,180,000 1,440,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $14,938,895 $16,549,904

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $0 $0

Page 3



Board of Commissioners 

Request for Board Action 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023 Agenda number: 5B 

DEPARTMENT: Community & Economic Development 

FILE TYPE: Regular Agenda 

TITLE: Carver County Community Land Trust – Chaska Yards Redevelopment Agreement 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of Redevelopment Agreement with City of 

Chaska. 

SUMMARY: The CDA and City of Chaska have been working together since the summer of 

2020 on redeveloping the Ernst house and adjacent vacant land.  The City of Chaska Planning 

Commission and Heritage Preservation Commission have voted in favor of the latest project 

designs.  In June 2023, the City of Chaska City Council approved the final plat for the project.  

The final steps to move the project forward are to sign the Redevelopment Agreement with the 

City and negotiate final contracts with the General Contractor. 

RECOMMENDATION: CDA staff recommends authorizing the Executive Director in signing 

the Redevelopment Agreement with the City of Chaska. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested 

continued on next page 



RESOLUTION: 

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) established a Community Growth 

Partnership Initiative program (Initiative) in 2016 to assist Carver County cities with redevelopment goals and 

promote the development of affordable housing; and   

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) runs the Carver County Community 

Land Trust (CCCLT) which seeks to provide permanently affordable homeownership options in Carver 

County; and    

WHEREAS, the City of Chaska and the CDA have partnered together to preserve one unit and develop three 

new units of permanently affordable housing in the City’s historic downtown area; and     

WHEREAS, funding has been received from a number of sources for gap financing in order to bring these 

units into the CCCLT portfolio; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Chaska Heritage Preservation Commission, the City of Chaska Planning Commission, 

and the City of Chaska City Council have approved the final plat for development.  

WHEREAS, the CDA staff recommends entering into a Redevelopment Agreement with the City of Chaska; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of 

Commissioners as follows: 

The CDA Board of Commissioners will enter into a new Amended and Restated Purchase and 

Redevelopment Agreement with the City of Chaska. 

 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

NA 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement 

 

BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 

Author: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 

 



4835-9996-3636\9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED PURCHASE AND REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

By and Among 

CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA 

And 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA 

And 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

for the 

ERNST HOUSE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT  

 

Dated as of _________________, 2023 

 

 



-i- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I RECITALS; EXHIBITS, DEFINITIONS ............................................................................... 2 

1.1 Recitals................................................................................................................................ 2 
1.2 Exhibits ............................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3 Definitions .......................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ..................................................................... 4 

2.1 City Representations ........................................................................................................... 4 
2.2 EDA Representations .......................................................................................................... 4 
2.3 Developer Representations ................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE III PROPERTY TRANSFER; LAND WRITE DOWN; RIGHT OF REVERTER .................. 5 

3.1 Property Transfer ................................................................................................................ 5 
3.2 Use and Ownership of Development Property ................................................................... 5 
3.3 Time and Place .................................................................................................................... 6 
3.4 Purchase Price; Land Write Down ...................................................................................... 6 
3.5 Title to the Development Property ...................................................................................... 6 
3.6 Due Diligence ..................................................................................................................... 6 
3.7 Conditions Precedent to Closing ......................................................................................... 7 
3.8 Land Transfer Closing ........................................................................................................ 8 
3.9 Right of Reverter ................................................................................................................ 9 

ARTICLE IV PROJECT REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................... 10 

4.1 Commencement and Completion of Project ..................................................................... 10 
4.2 Zoning Land Use Approvals; Building Permit ................................................................. 10 
4.3 EDA Review of Development Plans ................................................................................. 11 
4.4 Undertaking of Project ...................................................................................................... 11 
4.5 Certificate of Completion ................................................................................................. 11 
4.6 Progress Reports ............................................................................................................... 12 
4.7 Access to Development Property ...................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE V PROJECT FINANCING; PUBLIC ASSISTANCE ............................................................ 12 

5.1 Project Financing .............................................................................................................. 12 
5.2 Grant Applications ............................................................................................................ 12 
5.3 Waiver of Area Fees ......................................................................................................... 12 
5.4 City Contribution to Design Fees ..................................................................................... 13 
5.5 Housing Trust Fund Contribution ..................................................................................... 13 
5.6 TIF Assistance .................................................................................................................. 13 
5.7 Funding Gap; Funding Surplus; Public Assistance Adjustment ....................................... 14 
5.8 Legal and Administrative Expenses .................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE VI PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER .................................... 15 

6.1 Transfer of Property and Assignment ............................................................................... 15 



-ii- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

ARTICLE VII EVENT OF DEFAULT; FEES ......................................................................................... 15 

7.1 Events of Default .............................................................................................................. 15 
7.2 Remedies on Default ......................................................................................................... 16 
7.3 No Remedy Exclusive ...................................................................................................... 16 
7.4 Waivers ............................................................................................................................. 16 
7.5 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees ................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE VIII INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE ............................................................................ 17 

8.1 Indemnification ................................................................................................................. 17 
8.2 Insurance ........................................................................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE IX OTHER COVENANTS ..................................................................................................... 19 

9.1 Real Property Taxes .......................................................................................................... 19 
9.2 Action to Reduce Taxes .................................................................................................... 19 
9.3 Damage or Destruction ..................................................................................................... 19 
9.4 Relocation Costs ............................................................................................................... 20 
9.5 Restrictions on Use ........................................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE X GENERAL PROVISIONS .................................................................................................. 20 

10.1 Conflicts of Interest; City Representatives Not Individually Liable ................................. 20 
10.2 Equal Employment Opportunity ....................................................................................... 20 
10.3 Titles of Articles and Sections .......................................................................................... 20 
10.4 Business Subsidies Act ..................................................................................................... 20 
10.5 Term of Agreement ........................................................................................................... 21 
10.6 Provisions Surviving Termination .................................................................................... 21 
10.7 Notices and Demands ....................................................................................................... 21 
10.8 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury ................................... 22 
10.9 Binding Effect ................................................................................................................... 22 
10.10 Severability ....................................................................................................................... 22 
10.11 Amendments, Changes and Modifications ....................................................................... 22 
10.12 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments ............................................................... 22 
10.13 City/EDA Approval .......................................................................................................... 22 
10.14 No Waiver of Governmental Immunity and Limitations on Liability .............................. 22 
10.15 Memorandum of Agreement ............................................................................................. 23 
10.16 Superseding Effect ............................................................................................................ 23 
10.17 Data Practices Act ............................................................................................................. 23 
10.18 City and EDA Regulatory Authority ................................................................................ 23 
10.19 Time is of the Essence ...................................................................................................... 23 
10.20 Relationship of Parties ...................................................................................................... 23 
10.21 Captions ............................................................................................................................ 23 
10.22 Counterparts ...................................................................................................................... 23 
10.23 Amendment and Restatement ........................................................................................... 23 

 



-iii- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

List of Exhibits 

Exhibit A Legal Description of the Development Property 
Exhibit B Sources and Uses Budget 
Exhibit C Qualified Costs 
Exhibit D Form of Certificate of Completion 
Exhibit E Form of Ground Lease 
Exhibit F Form of Limited Tax Increment Revenue Note 
Exhibit G Form of Project Funding Certificate 
Exhibit H Form of Trust Fund Grant Agreement 
Exhibit I Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement 

 



-1- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

AMENDED AND RESTATED PURCHASE AND REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (this “Agreement”), is made 
and entered into as of _________ ___, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and among the CITY OF CHASKA, 
MINNESOTA, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), 
the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA, a body 
corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota (the “EDA”), and CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Developer”).  

Recitals: 

A. The City has designated a Redevelopment District in the City denominated the 
Redevelopment Project Area No. 4 (the “Redevelopment District”) and adopted a Redevelopment Plan (the 
“Redevelopment Plan”) therefor, pursuant to and in accordance with Minnesota Statutes (“M.S.”), 
Sections 469.124 to 469.133, as amended.  

B. The City adopted a resolution establishing Tax Increment Financing (Redevelopment) 
District No. 22, a “redevelopment district” (the “TIF District”) pursuant to M.S., Section 469.174, 
Subdivision 10, and approved a Tax Increment Financing Plan therefor (the “TIF Plan”).  

C. The TIF District includes certain real property currently owned by the EDA and located at 
211 Walnut Street and 217 Walnut Street in the City and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto 
(collectively, the “Development Property”). 

D. Developer has proposed an affordable housing redevelopment project on the Development 
Property (the “Project”) that consists of (i) the rehabilitation of that certain existing historical structure 
located on that portion of the Development Property having an address of 211 Walnut Street and known as 
the “Ernst House” to create a new single-family housing unit (the “Ernst House”) and (ii) the construction 
of three (3) new single-family townhome housing units on that portion of the Development Property having 
an address of 217 Walnut Street (the Ernst House and such new single-family townhome housing units are 
each referred to herein as a “Residential Unit” and, collectively, the “Residential Units”). 

E. Developer has further proposed that all four (4) such Residential Units be made part of the 
Carver County Community Land Trust (the “Land Trust”) such that the improvements constituting each 
Residential Unit shall be thereafter sold to households having incomes at or below 80% of the Area Median 
Income for the Minneapolis-Saint Paul-Bloomington Metropolitan Statistical Area (including adjustments 
for household size) (“Qualified Households”) and the Development Property underlying each such 
Residential Unit shall be leased to each such Qualified Household pursuant to a long-term ground lease 
substantially, and in all material respects, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (each, a “Ground 
Lease”). 

F. In order to achieve the objectives of the Redevelopment Plan and the TIF Plan, the City 
and EDA intend to provide certain assistance to Developer, to finance the Project including, without 
limitation, through (i) tax increment financing (“TIF”), as described in M.S., Sections 469.174 through 
469.1794 (the “TIF Act”) and (ii) transferring the Development Property to the Land Trust for no cost.  

G. The City and EDA have determined that, in order to accomplish the purposes specified in 
and to carry out the Redevelopment Plan and the TIF Plan, it is necessary and desirable for the City and the 
EDA to reimburse Developer for certain costs to be incurred and paid by Developer in connection with the 
Project.  



-2- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

H. The City will apply tax increment revenues generated from the TIF District to (i) pay or 
reimburse the City for administrative expenses relating to the TIF District to the extent permitted by the 
TIF Act and (ii) reimburse Developer, with interest, for certain costs incurred in connection with the 
construction of the Project.  

I. The City and EDA believe that the development activities associated with the Project 
pursuant to this Agreement are in the best interests of the City and benefit the health, safety, morals and 
welfare of its residents, and comply with the applicable state and local laws and requirements under which 
the Project has been undertaken and is being assisted. 

J. As more particularly described in Section 20.23, this Agreement amends, restates, 
supersedes, and replaces, in its entirety, the Original Agreement (as defined in Section 20.23). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual obligations set 
forth in this Agreement, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

Article I 
Recitals; Exhibits, Definitions 

1.1 Recitals. The Recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated into this 
Amendment by this reference, including the definitions set forth therein. 

1.2 Exhibits. All Exhibits referred to in and attached to this Agreement upon execution are 
incorporated in and form a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 

1.3 Definitions. Unless the context otherwise specifies or requires, the following terms have 
the following definitions. Certain other capitalized terms are defined elsewhere in this Agreement. All 
defined terms may be used in the singular or the plural, as the context requires. 

“Act” means M.S., Sections 469.124 to 469.133. 

“Agreement” means this Agreement, as the same may be from time to time modified, amended or 
supplemented. 

“Available Tax Increment” has the definition given it in Section 5.6(a)(iv). 

“Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the EDA. 

“Business Subsidies Act” means M.S., Sections 116J.993 through 116J.995. 

“Certificate of Completion” means a certification in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, to be 
provided to Developer pursuant to this Agreement. 

“City” means the City of Chaska, Minnesota. 

“City Council” means the City Council of the City. 

“Commencement” means actual physical construction of the first visible improvement to the 
Development Property made in furtherance of the construction of the Project, specifically including pouring 
footings and foundations, but specifically excluding demolition of and environmental remediation, if any, 
related to the improvements on the Development Property existing of the Effective Date. 



-3- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

“Completion” means Developer’s receipt of the Certificate of Completion. 

“County” means the County of Carver, Minnesota, a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota.  

“Default” or “default” means any event which would with the passage of time or giving of notice, 
or both, be an Event of Default hereunder. 

“Default Notice” means written notice from the City and/or the EDA to Developer setting forth the 
default and the action required to remedy the same. 

“Developer” means Carver County Community Development Agency.  

“Development Property” means that certain real property located at 211 Walnut Street and 217 
Walnut Street in Chaska, Minnesota and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

“Ernst House” means that certain existing historical structure located on that portion of the 
Development Property have an address of 211 Walnut Street. 

“Escrow Agent” means Title Mark, LLC or a different reputable title insurance company 
selected by Developer and reasonably approved by the EDA and having an office in Carver County, 
Minnesota. 

“Event of Default” means as any of the events set forth in Section 7.1 hereof. 

“Land Trust” means Carver County Community Land Trust, a program of the Carver County 
Community Development Agency. 

“Mortgage” means any mortgage made by Developer which covers, in whole or in part, the 
Development Property. 

“Mortgagee” means the owner or holder of a Mortgage. 

“M.S.” means Minnesota Statutes.  

“Project” means the rehabilitation of the Ernst House and the construction of the other Residential 
Units for the creation of four (4) new affordable homeownership units, as described in Recital D.  

“Project Approvals” has the definition given it in Section 4.2. 

“Qualified Costs” means costs incurred by Developer in connection with construction of the Project 
that are reimbursable from tax increment pursuant to Sections 469.174, Subd. 10 and 469.1761 of the TIF 
Act, and which are shown on Exhibit C to this Agreement or are otherwise approved in advance by the 
City and the EDA in writing; which costs include, but are not limited to the costs of renovation of the Ernst 
House.  

“Redevelopment District” means Redevelopment Project Area No. 4, designated pursuant to the 
Act. 

“Redevelopment Plan” means the Redevelopment Plan developed for Redevelopment Project Area 
No. 4. 



-4- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

“Sources and Uses Budget” means a detailed sources and uses pro forma for the Project, in the 
form attached as Exhibit B. 

“State” means the State of Minnesota. 

“Termination Date” means the earlier of (i) the date the TIF Note is paid in full, (ii) the date on 
which the TIF District expires or is otherwise terminated, or (iii) the date this Agreement is terminated or 
rescinded in accordance with its terms. 

“TIF Act” means M.S., Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, as amended. 

“TIF Assistance” means the Available Tax Increment to be paid under Section 5.6 hereof. 

“TIF District” means Tax Increment Financing (Redevelopment) District No. 22, a redevelopment 
district, established by the City Council on April 15, 2019.  

“TIF Note” means the Tax Increment Revenue Note (Ernst House Redevelopment) to be executed 
by the City and delivered to Developer pursuant to Section 5.6 hereof, the form of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit F. The total principal amount of the TIF Note issued to reimburse Developer for Qualified Costs 
of the Project will not exceed $180,000.  

“TIF Plan” means the Tax Increment Financing Plan for the TIF District approved by the City 
Council.  

“Unavoidable Delay” means a failure or delay in a party’s performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement, or during any cure period specified in this Agreement which does not entail the mere payment 
of money, not within the party’s reasonable control, including but not limited to acts of God, governmental 
agencies, the other party, strikes, labor disputes (except disputes which could be resolved by using union 
labor), fire or other casualty, lack of materials, or declarations of any state, federal or local government, 
pandemics, epidemics (including the COVID-19 virus); provided that within 10 days after a party impaired 
by the delay has actual (as opposed to constructive) knowledge of the delay it shall give the other party 
notice of the delay and the estimated length of the delay, and shall give the other party notice of the actual 
length of the delay within 10 days after the cause of the delay has ceased to exist. The parties shall pursue 
with reasonable diligence the avoidance and removal of any such delay. Unavoidable Delay shall not extend 
performance of any obligation unless the notices required in this definition are given as herein required. 

Article II 
Representations and Warranties 

2.1 City Representations. The City makes the following representations to Developer: 

(a) The City a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State. Under the 
provisions of the Act and the TIF Act, the City has the power to enter into this Agreement and carry 
out its obligations hereunder. 

2.2 EDA Representations. The EDA makes the following representations to Developer: 

(a) The EDA is a public body corporate and politic and a governmental subdivision of 
the State, duly organized and existing under State law and the EDA has the authority to enter into 
this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 



-5- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

2.3 Developer Representations. Developer represents and warrants that: 

(a) Developer is a local government agency created by the Minnesota Legislature and 
has power to enter into this Agreement and has duly authorized, by all necessary corporate action, 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

(b) Developer will, subject to and as required by Agreement, construct the Project in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the TIF Plan and all applicable local, state and federal 
laws and regulations. 

(c) At such time or times as may be required by law, Developer will have complied 
with all local, state and federal environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Project, and 
will have obtained any and all necessary environmental reviews, licenses and clearances. Developer 
has received no written notice from any local, state or federal official that the activities of Developer 
or the City with respect to the Development Property may be or will be in violation of any 
environmental law or regulation. Developer has no actual knowledge of any facts the existence of 
which would cause it to be in violation of any local, state or federal environmental law, regulation 
or review procedure with respect to the Development Property. 

(d) Neither the execution or delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement is prevented by, limited by, conflicts with, or results in a breach of, 
any restriction, agreement or instrument to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer 
is bound. 

(e) Developer has no actual knowledge that any member of the City Council, or any 
other officer of the City has any direct or indirect financial interest in Developer, the Development 
Property, or the Project. 

(f) Developer reasonably expects that it will be able to obtain financing in the amount 
shown in the preliminary Sources and Uses Budget attached hereto as Exhibit B, which amounts 
will be sufficient, together with funds provided by the City and the EDA and any other public 
agencies, to enable Developer to construct the Project, as provided herein. 

(g) Developer would not undertake the Project without the financial assistance to be 
provided by the City pursuant to this Agreement and the TIF Plan.  

Article III 
Property Transfer; Land Write Down; Right of Reverter 

3.1 Property Transfer. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the EDA shall 
sell and convey to the Land Trust, and Developer will cause the Land Trust to accept from the EDA, fee 
ownership of the Development Property (the “Land Transfer”). 

3.2 Use and Ownership of Development Property. Upon the Land Transfer, the use and 
ownership of the Development Property shall be made perpetually subject to the terms and conditions of 
the Land Trust, such that the Development Property will be owned by the Land Trust for the purpose of 
preserving the affordability of housing units on the Development Property through the sale of the 
Residential Units only to Qualified Households and long-term leasing of the Development Property 
underlying the Residential Units only to Qualified Households or other persons and families of low and 
moderate income in compliance with M.S. Section 462A.31 and any successor statute, regulation, or law 



-6- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

governing community land trusts in Minnesota (the “Land Trust Use”), each pursuant to a Ground Lease. 
At the closing of any sale of a Residential Unit to a Qualified Household, Developer shall prepare, execute, 
and record on the title to the applicable portion of the Development Property a Ground Lease with such 
Qualified Household and promptly thereafter deliver to the City and EDA a fully executed and recorded 
Ground Lease for each Qualified Household. During the term of this Agreement, Developer shall also 
deliver to the City and EDA any amendments, modifications, restatements, and/or replacements of any 
Ground Leases affecting the Development Property. Developer shall otherwise cause the Development 
Property and Project to be in compliance with all of the conditions, covenants, restrictions and limitations 
imposed by this Agreement and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations.  

3.3 Time and Place. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the 
Land Transfer (the “Closing”) shall be on a date mutually agreeable to the EDA and Developer the 
(“Closing Date”), but in no event later than October 1, 2023 (the “Outside Closing Date”). 

3.4 Purchase Price; Land Write Down. In consideration of Developer’s fulfillment of its 
obligations under this Agreement, and the conditions precedent to closing set forth in Section 3.7, the EDA 
agrees to sell the Development Property to the Land Trust for $400,000.00 (the “Purchase Price”), allocated 
as follows: (i) $100,000 to the portion of the Development Property located at 211 Walnut Street and 
$300,000 to the portion of the Development Property located at 217 Walnut Street. Developer 
acknowledges that the EDA previously acquired the Development Property for a market price and the 
EDA’s book value for the Development Property is as set forth on the Sources and Uses Budget attached 
here to as Exhibit B and, therefore, the Land Transfer to the Land Trust for the Purchase Price represents 
the EDA’s write down of the full cost of the Development Property (the “Land Write Down”), such Land 
Write Down being provided for the purposes of facilitating the financial feasibility of the Project and the 
creation of affordable housing in the City.  

3.5 Title to the Development Property. Developer shall be responsible for performing any and 
all title and survey examination or due diligence of the Development Property that Developer deems 
prudent, at Developer’s sole cost and expense. No later than 30 days after the Effective Date, Developer 
may, by written notice to the EDA, object to any defects in the title to the Development Property. If 
Developer fails to so object, Developer will be deemed to have waived any right to object to title matters. 
If Developer so objects, the EDA may either (i) elect by written notice to Developer not to address such 
objections, in which case, Developer may elect to terminate this Agreement within three business days after 
such notice from the EDA or (ii) elect by written notice to Developer to attempt to address one or more of 
any such objections to the reasonable satisfaction of Developer, and if any such objection is not 
satisfactorily addressed by the Outside Closing Date, Developer may, as its sole remedy, elect to terminate 
this Agreement for failure of a Closing condition within three business days thereafter.  

3.6 Due Diligence. Developer shall have until the date this is 60 days after the Effective Date 
(the “Due Diligence Deadline”) to conduct non-invasive inspections or reviews customary in the sale of 
commercial real estate in Minnesota of the Development Property. During this period, the EDA will make 
reasonable accommodations for Developer, or Developer’s agents, to enter and inspect and evaluate the 
Development Property. Developer may terminate this Agreement, at Developer’s sole and absolute 
discretion, if the Development Property is not satisfactory and if Developer provides notice to the EDA 
before the expiration of the Due Diligence Deadline. If Developer so terminates, Developer shall provide 
the EDA any reports or information relating to due diligence that were prepared by Developer or 
Developer’s agents. Developer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the EDA and the City, and their 
respective tenants, agents, employees and contractors, and the Development Property, from and against any 
and all loss, cost, damage, liability, settlement, cause of action or threat thereof or expense (including, 
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) relating to the inspections or the activities at the 



-7- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Development Property of Developer, its employees, agents, and contractors. The foregoing indemnity shall 
survive the Closing or the earlier termination this Agreement.  

3.7 Conditions Precedent to Closing.  

(a) EDA Contingencies. The EDA’s obligation to close on the Land Transfer is 
expressly conditioned upon each of the following contingencies being satisfied or waived by the 
EDA on or before the Outside Closing Date: 

(i) Developer shall have performed all of its obligations required to be 
performed by Developer under this Agreement as of the date of Closing Date and shall not 
be in default under this Agreement. 

(ii) Developer shall have delivered to the EDA all of the Developer Deliveries 
in accordance with Section 3.8(a). 

(iii) Developer shall have delivered Project Funding Certificate to the EDA and 
the EDA shall have approved the same. 

(iv) Developer shall have obtained all Project Approvals, which may be 
conditioned only on Developer’s acquisition of the Development Property. 

(v) Developer shall have obtained all required construction and building 
permits necessary to immediately Commence construction of the Project. 

(i) The representations and warranties of Developer hereunder shall be true 
and correct as the Closing Date. 

(b) Developer Contingencies. Developer obligation to close on the Land Transfer is 
expressly conditioned upon each of the following contingencies being satisfied or waived by 
Developer on or before the Outside Closing Date: 

(i) The EDA shall have delivered to Developer all of the EDA Deliveries in 
accordance with Section 3.8(b). 

(ii) The EDA shall have approved the Financing Commitment. 

(vi) Developer shall have obtained all Project Approvals, which may be 
conditioned only on Developer’s acquisition of the Development Property. 

(iii) The EDA shall have cured any objections to the title of the Development 
Property agreed to cured by the EDA in writing in accordance with Section 3.5, if any  

(c) EDA and Developer Options. In the event that any of the foregoing contingencies 
are not satisfied on or before the Outside Closing Date Developer or the EDA, as applicable, may: 

(i) terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other party; or 

(ii) waive such failure and proceed to Closing. 

In the event that all of the above conditions required to be satisfied as provided in this 
Section 3.7 have not been satisfied (or waived by the applicable party) by the Outside Closing Date, 



-8- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

then either the City and the EDA or Developer may terminate this Agreement if such conditions 
are not satisfied within 30 days following notice to the non-terminating party by the terminating 
party. Upon such termination, the provisions of this Agreement relating to the Project shall 
terminate and, except as provided in Section 10.6, neither Developer, the City nor the EDA shall 
have any further liability or obligation to the other hereunder. 

3.8 Land Transfer Closing. The Closing of the Land Transfer will close, as provided below. 

(a) Developer Deliveries. At the Closing, Developer shall execute, where appropriate, 
and deliver all of the following to the City and/or EDA, as applicable (collectively, the “Developer 
Deliveries”): 

(i) The Purchase Price in immediately available funds. 

(ii) Developer’s original executed counterpart to the Trust Fund Grant 
Agreement. 

(iii) Such affidavits of Developer and/or the Land Trust or other documents as 
may be reasonably required by the Escrow Agent (including a Certificate of Real Estate 
Value) to record the Deed and issue any title insurance policy required by Developer. 

(iv) A resolution of the governing body of Developer authorizing and 
approving the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, certified as true and correct by 
an officer of Developer. 

(v) Any other instruments or other deliveries required by this Agreement or 
otherwise reasonably requested by the Escrow Agent, the City, or the EDA to consummate 
the Closing. 

(a) EDA Deliveries. At the Closing, the City and/or the EDA, as applicable, shall 
execute, where appropriate, and deliver all of the following (collectively, the “EDA Deliveries”): 

(i) A quit claim deed in the Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank form 
properly executed on behalf of the EDA conveying the Development Property to the Land 
Trust (the “Deed”). 

(ii) A Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank Form 50.1.3 Affidavit 
Regarding Business Entity. 

(iii) A non-foreign affidavit containing such information as required by 
Internal Revenue Code Section 1445(b)(ii) and any regulations relating thereto. 

(iv) A Minnesota Well Disclosure Certificate unless the Deed includes this 
Statement: “Seller certifies that Seller does not know of any wells on the described real 
property.” 

(v) The City’s and EDA’s original executed counterpart to the Memorandum. 

(vi) The City’s original executed counterpart to the Trust Fund Grant 
Agreement. 



-9- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

(vii) Such information as required by Developer or Escrow Agent to permit 
Developer or Escrow Agent to file an electronic certificate of real estate value. 

(viii) Any other instruments or other deliveries required by this Agreement or 
otherwise reasonably requested by the Escrow Agent or Developer to consummate the 
Closing. 

(b) Prorations. The EDA and Developer shall make the following prorations and 
allocations of costs and expenses of each Land Transfer: 

(i) Developer will be responsible for title examination costs, title insurance 
premiums and the cost of any survey.  

(ii) Developer will be responsible for all costs and expenses associated with 
the Project Approvals.  

(iii) Developer will pay the closing fee and any escrow fees imposed by the 
Escrow Agent in connection with the Land Transfer. 

(iv) Developer shall pay the state deed tax due on the Deed to be delivered by 
the EDA under this Agreement. 

(v) Developer shall pay the cost of recording the Deed and all other 
documents. 

(vi) All real estate taxes, special assessments, utility charges and other costs of 
the Development Property will be prorated to the Closing Date. 

(vii) All costs incidental to the Land Transfer and Closing not otherwise 
specifically allocated in this Agreement shall be allocated in accordance with the custom 
and practice for similar transactions in the area in which the Project is located. 

(c) “AS IS” Sale. DEVELOPER HEREBY EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES THAT IT IS PURCHASING THE DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY “AS IS,” AND 
“WITH ALL FAULTS,” AFTER SUCH INSPECTION, ANALYSIS, EXAMINATION AND 
INVESTIGATION DEVELOPER CARES TO MAKE AND EXPRESSLY WITHOUT 
COVENANT, WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION BY EITHER THE CITY OR THE EDA 
AS TO PHYSICAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION, TITLE, LEASES, RENTS, 
REVENUES, INCOME, EXPENSES, OPERATION, FLOOD PLAIN, SHORELAND, 
WETLANDS, ZONING OR OTHER REGULATION, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW, 
SUITABILITY FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSES, ALL OTHER MATTERS WHICH 
DEVELOPER DEEMS RELEVANT TO ITS PURCHASE OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
PROPERTY OR ANY OTHER MATTERS WHATSOEVER, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE 
EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT. 

3.9 Right of Reverter. 

(a) Subject to an Unavoidable Delay, if Developer fails to cause the Commencement 
of construction of the Project by November 1, 2023, then the EDA may, in addition to such other 
rights and remedies that are available to the EDA hereunder, require that the Development Property 
be transferred back to the EDA. The EDA may, but shall not be obligated to, cause Developer to 



-10- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

reconvey the Development Property and all improvements thereon to the EDA by giving Developer 
notice of the EDA’s exercise of its right of reverter pursuant to this section. The right of reverter 
under this section for the Development Property shall terminate and no longer be of any force and 
effect upon the Commencement of the Project. 

(b) Within 15 days following Developer’s receipt of the EDA’s notice exercising its 
right of reverter (the “Reverter Closing Date”), Developer will convey fee title to the Development 
Property and all improvements thereon to the EDA by deed (the “Reverter Deed”), as follows: 

(i) The EDA will pay Developer $325,000.00 as consideration for receiving 
the Reverter Deed, with the balance of the original Purchase Price paid to the EDA at the 
Closing to be retained by the EDA as liquidated damages for Developer’s default in failing 
to timely construct the Project as provided herein, and the parties hereto acknowledge the 
difficulty and inconvenience of ascertaining the EDA’s actual damages in the event of such 
Developer default and agree that the foregoing represents a fair and reasonable estimate of 
such damages; 

(ii) Developer will convey the Development Property and any improvements 
thereon to the EDA free and clear of all encumbrances other than encumbrances that existed 
when the EDA conveyed the Development Property to Developer and easements or other 
encumbrances which the EDA has previously approved in writing; 

(iii) Upon Developer’s delivery of the Reverter Deed to the EDA, this 
Agreement shall terminate, Developer shall have no further rights to the Development 
Property or any improvements thereon, and neither the EDA nor Developer will have any 
rights or obligations under this Agreement other than obligations which, by the express 
terms of this Agreement, expressly survive a termination of this Agreement; 

(iv) On or before the Reverter Closing Date, Developer will execute and 
deliver to the EDA a Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank Form 50.3.1 Affidavit 
Regarding Business Entity confirming that there has been no labor or materials provided 
to the Development Property since the EDA’s conveyance of the Development Property to 
Developer for which payment has not been made; and 

(v) Developer shall deliver an updated title insurance commitment to the EDA 
evidencing the status of title to the Development Property. 

Article IV 
Project Requirements 

4.1 Commencement and Completion of Project. Developer shall cause the Commencement of 
the Project no later than November 1, 2023 and Completion of the Project by no later than December 31, 
2024. 

4.2 Zoning Land Use Approvals; Building Permit . Developer shall use diligent, commercially 
reasonable efforts to obtain, in a timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, 
in a timely manner, all requirements of all local, state and federal laws and regulations, in each case, which 
must be obtained or met in connection with the development and construction of the Project, including, 
without limitation, all necessary building permits, variances, conditional use permits and zoning changes 
related to the Project from the City and all necessary approvals from Minnesota State Historic Preservation 
Office for the rehabilitation of the Ernst House (collectively, the “Project Approvals”). Nothing in this 



-11- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Agreement shall limit the authority of the City with respect to zoning and land use approvals and all zoning 
and land use approvals shall be by the City Council or the City planning commission in accordance with 
the ordinances of the City. Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the governmental authority of the City 
with respect to its building and construction permitting process for the Project. Developer shall comply 
with all applicable City building codes and construction requirements and shall be responsible for obtaining 
all building permits prior to construction. 

4.3 EDA Review of Development Plans. Prior to submitting any development and/or 
construction plans for the Project to City for any step of the City’s regulatory review and approval process, 
Developer shall first make such plans available to the EDA’s review and approval. The EDA shall not 
unreasonably withhold its approval of such plans if, in the reasonable discretion of the EDA, such plan: (a) 
conform to the Redevelopment Plan, the TIF Plan, this Agreement, and to any subsequent amendments 
thereto approved by the City; (b) conform to all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations; (c) are adequate to provide for construction of the Project; and (d) no Event of Default has 
occurred and no default is then existing. No approval by the EDA shall relieve Developer of the obligation 
to comply with the terms of this Agreement, applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, or to properly construct the Project. No approval by the EDA shall constitute a waiver of a 
default or Event of Default. Any disapproval of any such plans shall set forth the reasons therefore and shall 
be made within 30 days after the date of their receipt by the EDA. If the EDA rejects any such plans, in 
whole or in part, Developer shall submit new or corrected plans within 30 days after written notification to 
Developer of the rejection. The provisions of this Section relating to approval, rejection and resubmission 
of the applicable plans shall continue to apply until such plans have been approved by the EDA.  

4.4 Undertaking of Project. 

(a) All work with respect to the Project shall be in substantial conformity with the 
Project Approvals.  

(b) Developer shall not interfere with, or construct any improvements over, any public 
street or utility easement without the prior written approval of the City. All connections to public 
utility lines and facilities shall be subject to approval of the City (in accordance with City code) 
and any applicable private utility provider. Except for public improvements, which are undertaken 
by the City or other governmental body and assessed against benefited properties, all street and 
utility installations, relocations, alterations and restorations shall be at Developer’s expense and 
without expense to the City. Developer, at its own expense, shall replace any public facilities or 
utilities damaged during the Project by Developer or its agents or by others acting on behalf of or 
under the direction or control of Developer. 

4.5 Certificate of Completion. 

(a) Upon Developer’s request following the EDA’s certification that the Project is 
completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the EDA, the EDA will furnish Developer with a 
Certificate of Completion for the Project, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, as 
conclusive evidence of satisfaction and termination of the agreements and covenants of this 
Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer to complete the Project. The furnishing by 
the EDA of such Certificate of Completion shall not constitute evidence of compliance with or 
satisfaction of any obligation of Developer to any Mortgagee. 

(b) If the EDA shall refuse or fail to provide a Certificate of Completion following 
Developer’s request, the EDA shall, within 10 business days after Developer’s request, provide 
Developer with a written statement specifying in what respects Developer has failed to complete 



-12- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

the Project in accordance with this Agreement, or is otherwise in default, and what measures or 
acts will be necessary, in the reasonable opinion of the EDA, for Developer to obtain the Certificate 
of Completion. 

4.6 Progress Reports. Until the Certificate of Completion is issued for the Project, Developer 
shall make, in such detail as may reasonably be required by the EDA, and forward to the City and EDA, 
upon request by the City or EDA, a written report as to the actual progress of construction and the 
sale/leasing of the housing units to Qualified Households. 

4.7 Access to Development Property. Developer agrees to permit the City, the EDA, and any 
of their respective officers, employees or agents access to the Development Property at all reasonable times 
for the purpose of inspection of all work being performed in connection with the Project; provided, however, 
that neither the City nor the EDA shall not have an obligation to inspect such work. 

Article V 
Project Financing; Public Assistance 

5.1 Project Financing. Except as provided herein, and otherwise subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Developer shall be responsible to pay all of the costs and expenses of the 
Project. Developer shall certify to the EDA no later than October 1, 2023, that Project funding sources 
sufficient to complete the Project have been committed to (or otherwise remain available to) Developer by 
delivering to the EDA a Project funding certificate in substantially the form attached here to as Exhibit G 
and containing an updated Sources and Uses Budget (the “Project Funding Certificate”). Promptly 
following the EDA’s request, Developer agrees to submit to the EDA evidence of commitment(s) for 
financing which is adequate, in the EDA’s reasonable discretion, for the construction of the Project. If the 
EDA reasonably finds that the financing complies with the terms of this Section 5.1 and is sufficiently 
committed and adequate in amount, to provide for the construction of the Project, the EDA shall notify 
Developer in writing of its approval, such approval shall not be unreasonably defined, conditioned, or 
delayed. If the EDA rejects the evidence of financing as inadequate, it shall do so in writing specifying the 
basis for the rejection and Developer shall have 30 days thereafter to submit evidence of commitment(s) 
for additional or alternate financing acceptable to the EDA. If Developer fails to submit such 
commitment(s) for financing acceptable to the EDA within said period of time or any additional period to 
which the EDA may agree, the EDA may notify Developer of its failure to comply with the requirement of 
this Section 5.1, such failure being a default hereunder. 

5.2 Grant Applications. Developer, the City, and the EDA will cooperate in efforts to obtain 
available public grant funding to undertake the Project. The EDA shall contract for grant writing assistance 
to pursue grant funds from the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency. Other costs of preparing the grant 
applications shall be borne by Developer. City and EDA staff shall have the final authority to review and 
submit the grant applications to the applicable agency. 

5.3 Waiver of Area Fees. In consideration of Developer’s fulfillment of its obligations under 
this Agreement, the City hereby agrees to waive the following City development fees: (a) water area, (b) 
sanitary sewer area, (c) storm water area, (d) parkland dedication and (e) trails. The foregoing wavier does 
not include and Developer shall be responsible, for (i) all other standard charges and fees due with respect 
to real estate developments and allocable to the Development Property under City ordinances and the City 
code, including, but not limited to, building permit fees, plat fees, and inspection fees, and (ii) any and all 
water and/or sewer availability charges required by the City and/or the Metropolitan Council in connection 
with the Project. If Developer fails to achieve Completion of the Project in accordance with this Agreement 
or if this Agreement is terminated due to an Event of Default by Developer, then Developer shall be 
responsible for paying to the City any such fees waived by the City under this Section. 



-13- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

5.4 City Contribution to Design Fees. Developer will pay all architectural and engineering fees 
for the concept design for the Project. Thereafter, the City will be responsible for architectural and 
engineering fees incurred by Developer for the design development and construction documents for the 
Project up to an amount of $200,000. Such fees shall initially be paid by Developer and shall be reimbursed 
by the City after issuance of the Certificate of Completion as provided herein and not more than 60 days 
after the request for reimbursement is delivered to the City by Developer together presentation of paid 
invoices and other documentation of such costs. Any design and engineering costs not reimbursable by the 
City as provided in this Section will be the responsibility of Developer. 

5.5 Housing Trust Fund Contribution. In consideration of Developer’s fulfillment of its 
obligations under this Agreement, the City agrees to provide a grant (the “Trust Fund Grant”) to Developer 
in the original principal amount of up to $300,000.00 to reimburse Developer for Qualified Costs, pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of a grant agreement in substantially the form attached as Exhibit H (the “Trust 
Fund Grant Agreement”). The Trust Fund Grant will be funded from the City’s Housing Trust Fund. The 
City shall fund the Trust Fund Grant pursuant to the Trust Fund Grant Agreement upon completion of the 
Project, the issuance of the Certificate of Completion, and Developer providing evidence of Qualified Costs 
in accordance with Section 5.6(b). 

5.6 TIF Assistance.  

(a) Generally. The City, in order to encourage Developer to proceed with the 
construction of the Project, and to assist Developer in paying the costs thereof, is willing to provide 
certain TIF assistance as permitted by the TIF Act and in accordance with the TIF Plan and 
otherwise in accordance with this Section. The City shall reimburse Developer, using Available 
Tax Increment on a pay-as-you-go basis, for Qualified Costs of the Project. The City shall, upon 
completion of the Project and the issuance of the Certificate of Completion therefor, issue the TIF 
Note to Developer and thereafter make reimbursement payments pursuant to the TIF Note, with 
said payments of principal and interest to be made on the dates (the “Payment Dates”) specified in 
the TIF Note, subject to the following terms and conditions: 

(i) The total principal amount of the TIF Note issued for the Project will not 
exceed $180,000.  

(ii) The unpaid principal of the TIF Note shall bear simple non-compounding 
interest from the date of issuance of the TIF Note, at 4.0% per annum. Interest shall be 
computed on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve (12) 30-day months. 

(iii) The City shall be obligated to make the payments to Developer required 
pursuant to the TIF Note and this Section 5.6 only from and to the extent of the Available 
Tax Increment actually received from the TIF District for any tax year, and such payments 
shall never be considered to be a general obligation or indebtedness of the City or the EDA. 

(iv) Calculated on an annual basis, the City will retain five percent (5.0%) of 
the Tax Increment generated from the Project for administrative costs and apply the 
retained Tax Increment first to pay any administrative expenses relating to the 
Development Property to the extent permitted by the TIF Act and to the extent that such 
expenses have not been paid or reimbursed to the City by Developer. Any of the retained 
Tax Increment remaining after the payment of any administrative expenses then due and 
owing (the “Available Tax Increment”) shall first be paid to Developer for reimbursement 
of the Qualified Costs plus interest on the Payment Dates, and any increment remaining 
thereafter shall be retained by the City.  



-14- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

(v) Upon 30 days’ written notice to Developer, the City may prepay all or a 
portion of the outstanding principal balance due to Developer pursuant to this Section 5.6 
without penalty, on any date at a prepayment price equal to the outstanding principal 
balance to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the prepayment date. 

(vi) The City shall not be obligated to make any payments hereunder 
subsequent to the termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 7.2 hereof, and any 
amounts remaining unpaid as of such date (other than by reason of failure of the City to 
comply with the terms of this Agreement) shall be considered forgiven by Developer and 
shall cease to be owing. 

(vii) Developer may assign its rights under this Agreement (including the 
payments to be made to Developer hereunder) to secure financing incurred by Developer 
to pay costs of the Project, including but not limited to any Mortgagee. 

(b) Evidence of Qualified Costs. Upon payment by Developer of Qualified Costs for 
the Project, Developer will deliver to the City an instrument executed by Developer (i) specifying 
the amount and nature of the Qualified Costs to be reimbursed and (ii) certifying that such costs 
have been paid to third parties unrelated to Developer, or if any costs have been paid to third parties 
related to Developer, that such costs do not exceed the reasonable and customary costs of services, 
labor or materials of comparable quality, dependability, availability and other pertinent criteria and 
that such costs have not previously been contained in an instrument furnished to the City pursuant 
to this Section 5.6. Together with such instrument, Developer shall deliver to the City evidence 
reasonably satisfactory to the City of the payment by Developer of such costs to be reimbursed. 

(c) Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained herein, the City’s obligation to reimburse Developer for Qualified Costs under the TIF 
Note shall be subject to satisfaction, or waiver in writing by the City, of all of the following 
conditions precedent: 

(i) the Certificate of Completion has been issued for the Project; 

(ii) Developer has provided written evidence reasonably satisfactory to the 
City that Qualified Costs in the amount to be reimbursed from the Available Tax Increment 
have been incurred for the Project and paid by Developer; and 

(iii) Developer shall not be in default under the terms of this Agreement or any 
Project Approvals beyond any applicable cure period.  

5.7 Funding Gap; Funding Surplus; Public Assistance Adjustment. The financial assistance to 
Developer under this Agreement is based on certain assumptions regarding likely costs and expenses 
associated with constructing the Project. The parties hereto agree that those assumptions may be reviewed 
in connection with Developer’s delivery of the Project Funding Certificate. If the total Project costs 
reflected in the Project Funding Certificate are higher than set forth in the initial Project Sources and Uses 
Budget attached hereto, thereby creating a Project funding gap (the “Funding Gap”), then Developer shall 
first endeavor to cover the Funding Gap by increasing the sale prices of the housing units thereon to the 
Qualified Households. If the Funding Gap cannot be reasonably covered by such price increases and/or 
other funding sources reasonably available, the City and the EDA will consider undertaking to cover the 
Funding Gap by increasing the Trust Fund Grant and/or providing Developer with additional TIF 
Assistance in the manner provided in Section 5.6. Any increase in the Trust Fund Grant or provision of TIF 
Assistance will require approval by City Council and the Board. If the total Project costs reflected in the 



-15- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Project Funding Certificate are lower than set forth in the initial Project Sources and Uses Budget attached 
hereto, thereby creating a Project funding surplus (the “Funding Surplus”), then such Funding Surplus shall 
first be applied to reduce the Trust Fund Grant and thereafter any remaining Funding Surplus be applied as 
directed by the City and the EDA.  

5.8 Legal and Administrative Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each 
party shall pay its own legal and administrative expenses that are incurred in connection with the 
negotiating, approval and documentation of this Agreement.  

Article VI 
Prohibitions Against Assignment and Transfer 

6.1 Transfer of Property and Assignment. Other than conveyance of the Development Property 
to the Land Trust as provided herein and leases or other conveyances of the Development Property 
permitted under the Land Trust to Qualified Households made to in the ordinary course of business, 
Developer has not made and will not make, or suffer to be made, any total or partial sale, assignment, 
conveyance, lease, or other transfer, with respect to this Agreement, the Project or Development Property 
or any part thereof or any interest therein (other than any Mortgage or Mortgages securing financing for the 
Project or other than any assignment of the payments to be made to Developer under Section 5.6 hereof 
that is permitted under Section 5.6 hereof), or any contract or agreement to do any of the same, without the 
prior written approval of the City and the EDA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The 
City and the EDA shall be entitled to require as conditions to any such approval that: (a) the proposed 
transferee have the qualifications and financial responsibility, as reasonably determined by the City and the 
EDA, necessary and adequate to fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by Developer; (b) the 
proposed transferee, by recordable instrument satisfactory to the City and the EDA shall, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, assume all of the obligations of Developer under this Agreement. No transfer of, or 
change with respect to, ownership in the Project or the Development Property or any part thereof, or any 
interest therein, however consummated or occurring and whether voluntary or involuntary, shall operate, 
legally or practically, to deprive or limit the City and the EDA of or with respect to any rights or remedies 
or controls provided in or resulting from this Agreement with respect to the Project or the Development 
Property and the completion of the Project that the City and the EDA would have had, had there been no 
such transfer or change. There shall be submitted to the City and the EDA for review all legal documents 
relating to the transfer. In the absence of specific written agreement by the City and the EDA to the contrary, 
no approval of any assignment or transfer by the City and the EDA thereof with respect to any transfer or 
assignment shall be deemed to relieve Developer, or any other party bound in any way by this Agreement 
or otherwise with respect to the Completion of the Project, from any of their obligations with respect thereto.  

Article VII 
Event of Default; Fees 

7.1 Events of Default. The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Agreement and 
the term “Event of Default” shall mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement (unless the context otherwise 
provides), any one or more of the following events which occurs and continues for more than 15 days after 
written notice thereof to Developer setting forth with specific particularity the default and the action 
required to cure or remedy the same (the “Default Notice”); provided, however, if a longer period is 
reasonably required to complete the cure, then the cure period shall be extended as may be reasonably 
required to complete the cure as soon as reasonably possible under the circumstances not to exceed 90 days 
and so long as Developer is diligently and continuously attempting to cure such failure: 

(a) Subject to Unavoidable Delay, failure of Developer to achieve Commencement 
and Completion of the Project by the applicable dates set forth in Section 4.1. 



-16- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

(b) Failure of Developer to otherwise construct or reconstruct the Project as required 
hereunder. 

(c) Failure of Developer to obtain the EDA’s approval of any development plans for 
the Project as required by Section 4.3. 

(d) Failure of Developer to pay to the City or the EDA any amounts required to be 
paid by Developer hereunder. 

(e) Failure of Developer to observe and perform any other covenant, condition, 
obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed hereunder. 

(f) Failure of Developer to pay any taxes on the Development Property prior to the 
same becoming delinquent. 

(g) Filing of any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings by 
Developer; general assignment for the benefit of creditors made by Developer or admission in 
writing by Developer of inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; or filing of any 
involuntary petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings against Developer which are not 
dismissed or stayed within 60 days. 

7.2 Remedies on Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the City and/or the 
EDA, as applicable, may take any one or more of the following actions at any time prior to Developer’s 
curing or remedying the Event of Default: 

(a) terminate this Agreement; 

(b) suspend its performance under this Agreement and/or the TIF Note until Developer 
cures its default to the satisfaction of the City and the EDA and thereafter continues its performance 
under this Agreement. 

(c) withhold the Certificate of Completion. 

(a) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to the 
City or the EDA to collect any payments due under this Agreement, or to enforce performance and 
observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant of Developer under this Agreement; and 

(b) exercise any remedies available at law and in equity to enforce performance of this 
Agreement, including a right to specific performance.  

7.3 No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the City, or to 
Developer is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or 
power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver 
thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 
expedient. In order to entitle the City, or Developer to exercise any remedy reserved to them, it shall not be 
necessary to give notice, other than such notice as may be required under this Agreement. 

7.4 Waivers. All waivers by any party to this Agreement shall be in writing. If any provision 
of this Agreement is breached by any party and thereafter waived by another party, such waiver shall be 



-17- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other concurrent, previous 
or subsequent breach hereunder. 

7.5 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees. Whenever any Event of Default occurs and the City 
and/or the EDA shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments due or to 
become due or for the enforcement or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the 
part of Developer herein contained, Developer agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the City 
and/or the EDA, as applicable, the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred 
by the City and/or the EDA. 

Article VIII 
Indemnification; Insurance 

8.1 Indemnification. 

(a) Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and the EDA and their 
respective governing body members, officers, and agents including the independent contractors, 
consultants, and legal counsel, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for the purposes of this 
Section, collectively the “Indemnified Parties”) for any expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees), loss (excluding consequential, special or punitive damages except to the extent payable to 
third parties by any Indemnified Parties), damage to property, or death of any person occurring at 
or about, or resulting from any defect in, the Project; provided, however, Developer shall not be 
required to indemnify any Indemnified Party for any claims or proceedings that Developer proves 
arose from any grossly negligent, intentional misconduct, or unlawful acts or omissions of such 
Indemnified Party. Promptly after receipt by the City or the EDA of notice of the commencement 
of any action in respect of which indemnity may be sought against Developer under this Section 
8.1, such person will notify Developer in writing of the commencement thereof, and, subject to the 
provisions hereinafter stated, Developer shall assume the defense of such action (including the 
employment of counsel, who shall be counsel reasonably satisfactory to the City and the EDA) and 
the payment of expenses insofar as such action shall relate to any alleged liability in respect of 
which indemnity may be sought against Developer. The City and the EDA shall have the right to 
employ separate counsel in any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees 
and expenses of such counsel shall not be at the expense of Developer unless the employment of 
such counsel has been specifically authorized by Developer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the 
City or the EDA has been advised by independent counsel that there may be one or more legal 
defenses available to it which are different from or in addition to those available to Developer, 
Developer shall not be entitled to assume the defense of such action on behalf of the City or the 
EDA, as applicable, but Developer shall be responsible for the reasonable fees, costs and expenses 
(including the employment of counsel) of the City and/or the EDA, as applicable, in conducting 
their defense. Developer shall not be liable to indemnify any person for any settlement of any such 
action effected without Developer’s consent. The omission to notify Developer as herein provided 
will not relieve Developer from any liability which they may have to any Indemnified Party 
pursuant hereto, otherwise than under this Section. 

(b) Developer agrees to protect and defend the Indemnified Parties, and further agrees 
to hold the aforesaid harmless, from any claim, demand, suit, action or other proceeding whatsoever 
by any person or entity arising or purportedly arising from the actions or inactions of Developer 
(or other persons acting on its behalf or under its direction or control) under this Agreement, or the 
transactions contemplated hereby or the acquisition, construction, installation, ownership, and 
operation of the Project; provided that this indemnification shall not apply to the warranties made 
or obligations undertaken by the City or the EDA in this Agreement but shall, in any event, apply 



-18- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

to any pecuniary loss (excluding consequential, special or punitive damages except to the extent 
payable to third parties by any of the Indemnified Parties) or penalty (including interest thereon 
from the date the loss is incurred or penalty is paid by the City or EDA at a rate equal to the prime 
rate) as a result of the Project, as constructed and operated by Developer, causing the TIF District 
to cease to qualify as an “redevelopment district” under the TIF Act or to violate limitations as to 
the use of the revenues therefrom as set forth in the TIF Act. 

(c) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City and 
the EDA contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements 
and obligations of the City or the EDA, as applicable, and not of any governing body member, 
officer, agent, servant or employee of the City, as the case may be. 

8.2 Insurance. 

(a) Developer shall obtain and continuously maintain insurance on the Project and, 
from time to time at the request of the City or the EDA, furnish proof to the City and the EDA that 
the premiums for such insurance have been paid and the insurance is in effect. The insurance 
coverage described below is the minimum insurance coverage that Developer must obtain and 
continuously maintain, provided that Developer shall obtain the insurance described in clause (i) 
below with respect to the Project prior to the Commencement of construction thereof and is only 
obligated to maintain the insurance described in clause (i) until Developer receives a Certificate of 
Completion: 

(i) Builder’s risk insurance, written on the so-called “Builder’s Risk-
Completed Value Basis,” in an amount equal to 100% of the insurable value of the Project 
at the date of Completion, and with coverage available in non-reporting form on the so-
called “all risk” form of policy. 

(ii) Fire, extended coverage perils, vandalism and malicious mischief, boiler 
explosion (but only if steam boilers are present), collapse on a replacement cost basis in an 
amount equivalent to the full insurable value thereof. (“Full insurable value” shall include 
the actual replacement cost of the Project, exclusive of foundations and footings, without 
deduction for architectural, engineering, legal or administrative fees or for depreciation.) 

(iii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 
contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations and contractual 
liability insurance) together with an Owner’s/Contractor’s Policy naming the City and the 
EDA, as an additional insured, with limits against bodily injury and property damage of 
not less than $5,000,000 for each occurrence (to accomplish the above-required limits, an 
umbrella excess liability policy may be used), written on an occurrence basis. 

(iv) Workers compensation insurance, for employees of Developer if and to 
the extent required by Law. 

(b) All insurance required in this Article shall be obtained and continuously 
maintained by responsible insurance companies selected by Developer which are authorized under 
the laws of the State to assume the risks covered by such policies. If available on commercially 
reasonable terms, each policy must contain a provision that the insurer will not cancel nor modify 
the policy in a manner that would adversely impact coverage without giving written notice to the 
insured at least 30 days before the cancellation or modification becomes effective. Not less than 15 
days prior to the expiration of any policy, Developer must renew the existing policy or replace the 



-19- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

policy with another policy conforming to the provisions of this Section. In lieu of separate policies, 
Developer may maintain a single policy, blanket or umbrella policies, or a combination thereof, 
having the coverage required herein. The policies required by this Section 8.2 shall be subject to a 
no coinsurance clause or contain an agreed amount clause, and may contain a deductibility 
provision not exceeding $25,000. 

Article IX 
Other Covenants 

9.1 Real Property Taxes. Prior to the Termination Date, Developer shall pay all real property 
taxes payable with respect to all and any parts of the Development Property acquired and owned by it until 
Developer’s obligations have been assumed by any other person pursuant to the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

Developer agrees that prior to the Termination Date: 

(a) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability 
of any tax statute relating to the ad valorem property taxation of real property contained on 
the Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or 
Developer or raise the inapplicability of any such tax statute as a defense in any 
proceedings with respect to the Development Property, including delinquent tax 
proceedings; provided, however, “tax statute” does not include any local ordinance or 
resolution levying a tax; 

(b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the 
constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property contained on the 
Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or 
Developer or raise the unconstitutionality of any such tax statute as a defense in any 
proceedings, including delinquent tax proceedings with respect to the Development 
Property; provided, however, “tax statute” does not include any local ordinance or 
resolution levying a tax; 

(c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or 
prospectively authorized under M.S., Section 469.1813, or any other State or federal law, 
of the ad valorem property taxation of the Development Property between the date of 
execution of this Agreement and the Termination Date. 

9.2 Action to Reduce Taxes. Developer may seek through petition or other means to have the 
market value for the Development Property reduced. Until the TIF Note is fully paid, such activity must be 
preceded by written notice from Developer. Upon receiving such notice, or otherwise learning of 
Developer’s intentions, the City may suspend payments due under the TIF Note until the actual amount of 
the reduction is determined, whereupon the City will make the suspended payments less any amount that 
the City is required to repay the County as a result any reduction in market value of the Development 
Property. During the period that the payments are subject to suspension, the City may make partial payments 
on the TIF Note if it determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that the amount retained will be 
sufficient to cover any repayment which the County may require. The City’s suspension of payments on 
the TIF Note pursuant to this Section shall not be considered a default under this Agreement. 

9.3 Damage or Destruction. Subject to any mortgage requirements, upon any damage or 
destruction of the Project, or any portion thereof, by fire or other casualty, Developer shall within 60 days 
after such damage or destruction, commence the process required to repair, reconstruct and restore the 



-20- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

damaged or destroyed Project, or portion thereof, to substantially the same condition or utility value as 
existed prior to the event causing such damage or destruction and shall diligently pursue such repair, 
reconstruction and restoration. 

9.4 Relocation Costs. Developer shall pay all relocation costs or expenses required under 
federal or state law to be paid to any owner or occupant of the Development Property as a result of the 
Project, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its governing body members, officers, and agents 
including the independent contractors, consultants, and legal counsel, servants and employees thereof from 
any such relocation costs and expenses in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.1. 

9.5 Restrictions on Use. During the term of the TIF District, Developer shall (a) not permit the 
Development Property to be exempt from real estate taxes notwithstanding the ownership or use of the land; 
(b) not permit the Development Property to be used for any use which would cause the Development 
Property to be valued and assessed for real estate tax purposes at a lower percentage of its market value 
than the Development Property is then being valued and assessed for real estate tax purposes or would 
result in the Development Property becoming exempt from real estate taxes; (c) cause the Development 
Property to be devoted to uses consistent with an “redevelopment district” under Minnesota Statutes, 
Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, and the uses specified in the Redevelopment Plan, this Agreement and 
other agreements entered into between Developer and the City; (d) cause the owner of the Development 
Property to not discriminate upon the basis of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, 
disability, status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, and familial status in the sale, lease, 
or rental or in the use or occupancy of the Development Property, the Project or any part thereof; and (e) 
develop the Development Property in an orderly manner consistent with the City’s zoning ordinances and 
comprehensive plan. 

Article X 
General Provisions 

10.1 Conflicts of Interest; City Representatives Not Individually Liable. No member, official, 
employee, or consultant or employee of a consultant of the City or the EDA shall have any personal interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, official, consultant or the consultant’s 
employees or employee participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her 
personal interests or the interests of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she is directly 
or indirectly interested. No member, official, consultant or consultant’s employee, or employee of the City 
or the EDA shall be personally liable to Developer, or any successor in interest, in the event of any default 
or breach by the City or the EDA or for any amount which may become due to Developer or successors or 
on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. No member, official, consultant or consultant’s 
employee, or employee of Developer shall be personally liable to the City or the EDA, or any successor in 
interest, in the event of any default or breach by Developer or for any amount which may become due to 
the City and/or the EDA on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

10.2 Equal Employment Opportunity. Developer, for itself and its successors and assigns, 
agrees that during the construction of the Project it will comply with any applicable affirmative action and 
nondiscrimination laws or regulations. 

10.3 Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, Articles, and Sections of this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in construing or 
interpreting any of its provisions. 

10.4 Business Subsidies Act. The parties hereto agree that the Project is exempt from the 
requirement for entering into a business subsidy agreement within the meaning of the Minnesota Business 



-21- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Subsidy Act, Minnesota Statutes, Sections 116J.993 through 116J. 995, because the TIF Assistance 
provides assistance for housing within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, Section 116J.993, subd. 3(7). 

10.5 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate upon the Termination Date; it being 
expressly agreed and understood that the provisions of this Agreement are intended to survive the expiration 
and satisfaction of any security instruments placed of record contemporaneously with this Agreement, if 
such expiration and satisfaction occurs prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement, as stated in 
this Section 10.5. 

10.6 Provisions Surviving Termination. The following section will survive any termination, 
rescission, or expiration of this Agreement with respect to or arising out of any event, occurrence, or 
circumstance existing prior to the date thereof: Section 3.9 [Right of Reverter]; Section 7.2 [Remedies on 
Default] to the extent of any Event of Default arising prior to such termination or expiration Section 8.1 
[Indemnification]; Section 8.2 [Insurance]; Section 10.7 [Notices and Demands]; and Section 10.8 
[Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury]. 

10.7 Notices and Demands. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, a notice, 
demand, or other communication under this Agreement by any party to another party shall be sufficiently 
given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, 
or delivered personally as follows: 

(a) in the case of Developer, addressed to or delivered personally to: 

Carver County Community Development Agency 
705 N. Walnut Street 
Chaska, MN 55318 
Attention: Executive Director  

(b) in the case of the City, addressed or delivered personally to: 

City of Chaska 
500 4th Avenue NE  
Chaska, MN 55912 
Attention: City Administrator 

with a copy to:  

Jay R. Lindgren 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP 
50 South Sixth Street, Suite 1500 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

(c) in the case of the EDA, addressed or delivered personally to: 

Chaska Economic Development Authority 
500 4th Avenue NE  
Chaska, MN 55912 
Attention: Executive Director 

with a copy to:  



-22- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Jay R. Lindgren 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP 
50 South Sixth Street, Suite 1500 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

Each party, by notice given hereunder to the other parties, may designate different addresses to 
which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications should be sent. 

10.8 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury. All matters, whether 
sounding in tort or in contract, relating to the validity, construction, performance, or enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be controlled by, interpreted and determined in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Minnesota without regard to its conflict and choice of law provisions. Any litigation arising out of this 
Agreement shall be venued exclusively in Carver County District Court, state of Minnesota and shall not 
be removed therefrom to any other federal or state court. Developer, the City, and the EDA hereby consent 
to personal jurisdiction and venue in the foregoing court. Developer, the City, and the EDA hereby waive 
trial by jury for any litigation arising out of this Agreement. 

10.9 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
City, the EDA, and Developer and their respective successors and assigns. 

10.10 Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

10.11 Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Agreement may be amended or any of its 
terms modified only by written amendment authorized and executed by the City, the EDA, and Developer.  

10.12 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The City, the EDA, and Developer agree 
that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged 
and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be required for 
correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Development Property or the Project or for 
carrying out the expressed intention of this Agreement. 

10.13 City/EDA Approval. Unless the City Council or Board, as applicable, determines otherwise 
in its discretion, whenever this Agreement provides for the consent or approval by the City or the EDA, 
such approval shall be given by, respectively, the City Administrator or the Executive Director of the EDA 
(or in either case his/her designee), unless (a) this Agreement explicitly provides for approval by the City 
Council or the Board, (b) approval by the City Council or Board is required by law or (c) the approval, in 
the opinion of the City Administrator or the Executive Director, would result in a material change in the 
terms of this Agreement. 

10.14 No Waiver of Governmental Immunity and Limitations on Liability. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall in any way affect or impair the City’s or the EDA’s immunity or the immunity of the 
City’s and the EDA’s employees, consultants and contractors, whether on account of official immunity, 
legislative immunity, statutory immunity, discretionary immunity or otherwise. Nothing in this Agreement 
shall in any way affect or impair the limitations on the City’s or the EDA’s liability or the liability of the 
City’s and the EDA’s employees, consultants and independent contractors. By entering into this Agreement, 
neither the City nor the EDA waives any rights, protections, or limitations as provided under law and equity 
for the EDA, the City, or of their respective employees, consultants and contractors. 



-23- 
 Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Ernst House) 
4835-9996-3636\9 

10.15 Memorandum of Agreement. Neither party shall cause this Agreement to be recorded or 
filed in the real estate records of the County. However, at Closing, the parties shall execute, and Developer 
shall cause to be recorded on the title to the Development Property, a memorandum of this Agreement in 
substantially the form attached as Exhibit I (the “Memorandum”). 

10.16 Superseding Effect. This Agreement reflects the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the items covered by this Agreement, and supersedes in all respects all prior agreements of the 
parties, whether written or otherwise, with respect to the items covered by this Agreement. 

10.17 Data Practices Act. Developer acknowledges that all of the data created, collected, 
received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by Developer with regard to the performance of its 
duties under this Agreement are subject to the requirements of Chapter 13, Minnesota Statutes. 

10.18 City and EDA Regulatory Authority. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit 
or modify the City’s or the EDA’s regulatory authority. 

10.19 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every term 
and condition hereof; provided, however, that if any date herein set forth for the performance of any 
obligations by Developer, the City, or the EDA or for the delivery of any instrument or notice as herein 
provided should not be on a business day, the compliance with such obligations or delivery shall be deemed 
acceptable on the next following business day. 

10.20 Relationship of Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or shall be construed, to 
create a partnership or joint venture among or between the parties hereto, and the rights and remedies of 
the parties hereto shall be strictly as set forth in this Agreement. 

10.21 Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 
way define, limit or describe the scope of intent of any provisions or Sections of this Agreement. 

10.22 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

10.23 Amendment and Restatement. This Agreement amends, restates, supersedes, and replaces, 
in its entirety that certain Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement dated December 20, 2021 executed by 
the parties hereto (the “Original Agreement”).  

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature(s) on following page(s)] 

 







S-3 
4835-9996-3636\9 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF CARVER ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 
202___, by _________________, the ________________, and _________________, the 
________________, of the Carver County Community Development Agency, on behalf of the agency. 

 

  
Notary Public 

 

 



A-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Development Property 

The real property and interests in such property located in the County of Carver, State of Minnesota 
and described as follows: 

Parcel 1: 

Lot 2, Block 37, except the Northerly 6 feet of the Westerly 48 feet thereof and also including the 
South 4 feet of the Easterly 94 feet of Lot 1, Block 37, City of Lots of Chaska, Carver County, Minnesota. 

Parcel 2: 

Lot 3, Block 37, City of Lots Chaska, Carver County, Minnesota. 



B-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit B 

Sources and Uses Budget 
ER

N
ST

 R
IE

D
EL

E 
H

O
U

SE
 

Source - Ernst Funding Accessed 
Ernst Sales $ 250,000.00 
TIF $ 180,000.00 
Land Grant $ 100,000.00 
CDA Contribution $ 50,000.00 
Total $ 580,000.00 

 

Project Costs - Ernst  

Ernst House (includes contingency) $ 531,732.00 
Land  $ 100,000.00 
Fees $ - 
Special assessment costs $ 6,043.68 
Total $       637,775.68 
  

 

3 
SI

N
G

LE
 F

A
M

IL
Y 

H
O

M
ES

 

Source - Townhomes  

Townhome Sales $ 600,000.00 
Land Grant $ 339,210.00 
City Trust Fund $ 300,000.00 
CDA Grant (2020) $ 85,000.00 
CDA Grant (2021) $ 100,000.00 
CDA Contribution $ 110,000.00 
Met Council (2020) $ 30,000.00 
Met Council (2023) $       180,000.00 
Total $   1,744,210.00 
 

Project Costs - Townhomes  

3 Townhomes (includes 
contingency) 

$     1,589,793.00 

Land - Payable to City of Chaska $ 300,000.00 
Fees $ 7,455.00 
Special assessment costs $ 5,272.90 
Total $     1,902,520.90 
  

 

A
RC

H
IT

EC
TU

RA
L 

FE
ES

 

Sources - Architectural Fees  

CDA $ 40,000.00 
City TIF/HTF $ 200,000.00 
Total $ 240,000.00 
 

Uses - Architectural Fees  

Preliminary concept $ 50,000.00 
Design Development & Construction $ 275,000.00 
Total $          325,000.00 

  

 

 
 

TOTAL SOURCES $ 2,564,210.00 
TOTAL USES $ 2,865,296.58 
GAP $ (301,086.58) 

 



C-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit C 

Qualified Costs 

The estimated Qualified Costs of the TIF District are listed below that are eligible for 
reimbursement from tax increments of the TIF District. The categories below identify the categories of 
expenses that the parties agree may be reimbursed through tax increment financing. The amounts assigned 
to each category are estimates only and not independent limitations of Developer’s Qualified Costs. 
 

Costs of eliminating structurally substandard condition within 
the Ernst House consistent with M.S. Section 469.174, subd. 10 

$180,000 

  
Total $180,000* 

 

* Developer’s Qualified Cost. The total principal amount of the TIF Note issued to reimburse Developer 
for Qualified Costs of the Project will not exceed $180,000. 



D-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit D 

Form of Certificate of Completion  

 

WHEREAS, CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the 
“Developer”), is the Developer of the property in the County of Carver and State of Minnesota described 
on Exhibit A hereto and made a part hereof (the “Development Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Development Property is subject to the provisions of a certain Amended and 
Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (the “Agreement”) in the Redevelopment Project Area 
No. 4 and Tax Increment Financing (Redevelopment) District No. 22, dated as of _____________, 202___, 
between Developer, the City of Chaska, Minnesota, and the Economic Development Authority of the City 
of Chaska, Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has fully and duly performed all of the covenants and conditions of 
Developer under the Agreement with respect to the completion of the Project (as defined in the Agreement);  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby certified that all requirements of Developer under the Agreement 
with respect to the completion of the Project have been completed and duly and fully performed, and this 
instrument is to be conclusive evidence of the satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 
the Agreement as they relate to the completion of the Project. All other covenants and conditions of the 
Agreement shall remain in effect and are not terminated hereby. 

Dated this ____ day of ____________, 20__. 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

  



D-2 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit A 

Development Property  

The real property and interests in such property located in the County of Carver, State of Minnesota 
and described as follows: 

 



E-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit E 

Form of Ground Lease 



F-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit F 

Form of Limited Tax Increment Revenue Note 

No. R-_____ $[__________] 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

CITY OF CHASKA 

LIMITED REVENUE TAXABLE TAX INCREMENT NOTE NO. [__] 
(Ernst House Redevelopment Project) 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $      INTEREST RATE: ____% 

The City of Chaska, Minnesota (the “City”) for value received, promises to pay, but solely from 
the source, to the extent and in the manner hereinafter provided, to Carver County Community Development 
Agency, or its registered assigns (the “Owner”), the principal sum of [___________ dollars] 
($[_________]), in semi-annual installments payable on August 1, 20__, and on each February 1 and 
August 1 thereafter up to and including February 1, 20__ (each being a “Scheduled Payment Date”), 
together with interest on the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of this Limited Tax Increment 
Revenue Note (Ernst House Redevelopment Project) (this “Note”) at the rate of four percent (4%) per 
annum. Installment payments shall be applied first to interest and then to a reduction of outstanding 
principal. Interest on the outstanding balance of this Note shall accrue from the date hereof as simple, non-
compounding interest. Each payment on this Note is payable in any coin or currency of the United States 
of America which on the date of such payment is legal tender for public and private debts and shall be made 
by check or draft made payable to the Owner and mailed to the Owner at the postal address within the 
United States designated from time to time by the Owner. 

This Note is subject to prepayment on any Scheduled Payment Date at the option of the City, in 
whole or in part, upon payment to the Owner of the principal amount of the Note to be prepaid, without 
premium or penalty. 

This Note is a special and limited obligation and not a general obligation of the City, which has 
been issued by the City in aid of financing a project pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Minnesota, including M.S., Sections 469.174 through 469.1794. This Note is issued 
pursuant to the provisions of that certain Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement, 
dated as of _____________, 202___, as the same may be amended from time to time (the “Redevelopment 
Agreement”), between the City and Carver County Community Development Agency (the “Developer”). 

THIS NOTE IS NOT PAYABLE OUT OF ANY FUNDS OR PROPERTIES OTHER THAN 
PLEDGED TAX INCREMENT, AS DEFINED BELOW. 

The Note Payment Amounts due hereon shall be payable solely from a portion of the tax increments 
calculated annually, less the City’s administrative fee of five percent (5%) from the Development Property 
within the City’s Tax Increment Financing (Redevelopment) District No. 22 (the “TIF District”) within its 
Redevelopment Project Area No. 4, which are paid to the City and which the City is entitled to retain 
pursuant to the provisions of M.S., Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time (the “Available Tax Increment”). Any increment remaining after retaining 
the percentage noted above for the City’s administrative fee and the payment of the Note Payment Amounts 
due shall be retained by the City. The City makes no representation or covenant, express or implied, that 





G-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit G 

Form of Project Funding Certificate 

Project Funding Certificate 
(Ernst House Redevelopment Project) 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“Developer”) has entered into 
that certain Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement with the CITY OF CHASKA, 
MINNESOTA, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), 
and the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA, a 
body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota (the “EDA”), dated effective as of 
___________________, 202___ (the “Redevelopment Agreement”). 

Developer hereby certifies to the City and the EDA, pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Redevelopment 
Agreement, that (i) Exhibit 1 attached hereto contains an updated Sources and Uses Budget for the Project 
that is true and correct as of the date hereof, (ii) that all funding sources identified on said Exhibit 1 have 
been fully committed and available to Developer for the construction of the Project and (iii) such funds are 
in a sufficient amount to fully fund acquisition of the Development Property and construction of the Project 
as required by the Redevelopment Agreement.  

Dated: __________________ 

DEVELOPER: 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

  



G-2 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit 1  
to  

Project Funding Certificate 
(Ernst House Redevelopment Project) 

SOURCE AMOUNT 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   



 

H-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit H 

Form of Trust Fund Grant Agreement 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

This Grant Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made this _____________________, 20____ (the 
“Effective Date”), by and between CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA, a municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), and CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Grantee”). 

Recitals: 

A. Grantee has proposed an affordable housing redevelopment project (the “Project”) on that 
certain real property located at 211 Walnut Street and 217 Walnut Street in the City (the “Development 
Property”), which Project consisted of (i) the rehabilitation of that certain existing historical structure 
located on that portion of the Development Property having an address of 211 Walnut Street and known as 
the “Ernst House” to create a new single-family housing unit (the “Ernst House”) and (ii) the construction 
of three (3) new single-family townhome housing units on that portion of the Development Property having 
an address of 217 Walnut Street (the “Residential Units”). 

B. Grantee, the City, and the Economic Development Authority of the City of Chaska, 
Minnesota, a body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota (the “EDA”) have entered into that certain 
Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement dated ____________ ___, 2023 (as may 
be amended from time to time, the “Redevelopment Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) the EDA sold the 
Development Property to Grantee for the development and construction of the Project and (ii) the City and 
the EDA agreed to provide certain financial assistance to Grantee to support the construction of the Project 
and development of new affordable housing therein. 

C. In accordance with the Redevelopment Agreement, as part of such financial assistance, the 
City has agreed a provide certain grant funding to Grantee from the City’s Housing Trust Fund (the 
“Grant”)in the original principal amount of up to $[300,000.00] (“Maximum Grant Amount”) to reimburse 
Grantee for Qualified Costs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, to induce the City to make the Grant to Grantee, and for good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

1. Recitals; Definitions. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, including the definitions set forth therein. Each 
capitalized term used herein and the Recitals, unless otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Redevelopment Agreement.  

2. Term of this Agreement. This Agreement shall take effect on the Effective Date, and shall 
expire the date that is 26th anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Termination Date”), unless earlier 
terminated or rescinded in accordance with the terms hereof.  

3. The Grant. Subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City agrees 
to make the Grant to Grantee in an amount not to exceed the Maximum Grant Amount, which Grant shall 
be disbursed pursuant to this Agreement. If the actual total Project costs reflected in the Disbursement 
Request (defined below) are less than such total Project costs initially reflected in the Project Funding 



 

H-2 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Certificate, thereby creating a Project funding surplus (the “Funding Surplus”), then such Funding Surplus 
shall be applied to reduce the Maximum Grant Amount hereunder. In consideration of the Grant, Grantee 
agrees to perform all of its obligations under this Agreement. Grantee’s obligation to repay to the City the 
amount of the Grant disbursed hereunder shall cease and terminate on Termination Date provided that as 
of such date Grantee has fully completed performance of Grantee’s obligations and agreements set forth in 
this Agreement. Grantee agrees that the Grant proceeds shall be used only for reimbursement of Qualified 
Costs as provided herein. 

4. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. The obligation of the City to disburse the Grant to 
Grantee, which shall be made one disbursement, shall be subject to satisfaction, or waiver in writing by the 
City, of all of the following conditions precedent: 

(a) the Certificate of Completion has been issued for the Project in accordance with 
Redevelopment Agreement; 

(b) Grantee has delivered to the City an instrument and disbursement request in form 
and substance reasonably acceptable to the City executed by Grantee (collectively, the 
“Disbursement Request”) which: 

(i) shows all costs and expenses of any kind actually paid or incurred in 
constructing the Project, the sources for funding such Project costs, and details any changes 
to the actual Project costs sources and uses from those described in the initial Project 
Funding Certificate, together with written evidence reasonably satisfactory to the City that 
such Project costs have been incurred for the Project and paid by Grantee; 

(ii) requests disbursement of the Grant in an amount not to exceed the 
Maximum Grant Amount (as may be adjusted as provided herein) and specifies the amount 
and nature of the Qualified Costs to be reimbursed by the Grant;  

(iii) includes a certified statement of Grantee that all Project costs have been 
paid to third parties unrelated to Grantee, or if any costs have been paid to third parties 
related to Grantee, that such costs do not exceed the reasonable and customary costs of 
services, labor or materials of comparable quality, dependability, availability and other 
pertinent criteria, together with written evidence reasonably satisfactory to the City of the 
payment by Grantee of such costs to be reimbursed (e.g., sworn construction statement and 
final mechanics’ lien waivers); and 

(iv) shall constitute a representation and warranty by Grantee to the City that 
all representations and warranties of Grantee set forth in this Agreement and the 
Redevelopment Agreement are true and correct as of the date of such Disbursement 
Request. 

(c) Grantee shall not be in default under the terms of this Agreement, the 
Redevelopment Agreement, or any Project Approvals beyond any applicable cure period, and 
Grantee shall have provided to the City such evidence of compliance with all of the provisions of 
the same as the City may reasonably request. 

5. Disbursement of Grant Proceeds. The City shall disburse the Grant to Grantee no later than 
30 days after Grantee has satisfied the conditions precedent to disbursement set forth in Section 3 above, 
so long as the condition set forth in Section 3(c) remains true and correct as of the date of disbursement.  



 

H-3 
4835-9996-3636\9 

6. Representations and Warranties; Agreements. Grantee represents and warrants to the City 
and agrees that: 

(a) Grantee is a local government agency created by the Minnesota Legislature and 
has power to enter into this Agreement and has duly authorized, by all necessary corporate action, 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance by Grantee of 
its obligations hereunder, do not and will not violate or conflict with any provision of law or any 
governing documents of Grantee and do not and will not violate or conflict with, or cause any 
default or event of default to occur under, any agreement binding upon Grantee. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly approved by all 
necessary action of Grantee, and this Agreement has in fact been duly executed and delivered by 
Grantee and constitutes its lawful and binding obligation, legally enforceable against it. 

(d) Grantee warrants and agrees that it shall keep and maintain books, records, and 
other documents relating directly to the receipt and disbursements of Grant proceeds and 
compliance by Grantee with the terms and conditions of the this Agreement (collectively, the 
“Records”). Grantee agrees that any duly authorized representative of the City shall, at all 
reasonable times, have access to and the right to inspect, copy, audit, and examine all Records. 

(e) Grantee warrants that it has fully complied with all applicable state and federal 
laws pertaining to its business and will continue said compliance throughout the term of this 
Agreement. If at any time Grantee receives notice of noncompliance from any governmental entity, 
Grantee agrees to take any necessary action to comply with the state or federal law in question. 

7. Restrictions on the Property. Grantee covenants and agrees that the use and ownership of 
the Development Property shall be made perpetually subject to the terms and conditions of the Carver 
County Community Land Trust (the “Land Trust”), such that the Development Property will be owned by 
the Land Trust for the purpose of preserving the affordability of housing units on the Development Property 
through the sale of the housing units and long-term leasing of the land under said housing units to 
households having incomes at or below 80% of the Area Median Income for the Minneapolis-Saint Paul-
Bloomington Metropolitan Statistical Area (including adjustments for household size) (“Qualified 
Households”) or other persons and families of low and moderate income in compliance with M.S. Section 
462A.31 and any successor statute, regulation, or law governing community land trusts in Minnesota (the 
“Land Trust Use”). Grantee shall otherwise cause the Development Property and Project to be in 
compliance with all of the conditions, covenants, restrictions and limitations imposed by this Agreement, 
the Redevelopment Agreement, and all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations.  

8. Event of Default by Grantee. The following shall be “Events of Default” under this 
Agreement and the term “Event of Default” shall mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement (unless the 
context otherwise provides), any one or more of the following events which occurs and continues for more 
than 15 days after written notice thereof to Grantee setting forth with specific particularity the default and 
the action required to cure or remedy the same (the “Default Notice”); provided, however, if a longer period 
is reasonably required to complete the cure, then the cure period shall be extended as may be reasonably 
required to complete the cure as soon as reasonably possible under the circumstances not to exceed 90 days 
and so long as Grantee is diligently and continuously attempting to cure such failure: 



 

H-4 
4835-9996-3636\9 

(a) Failure of Grantee to observe and perform any other covenant, condition, 
obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed hereunder or under the 
Redevelopment Agreement. 

(b) Failure of Grantee to pay any taxes on the Development Property prior to the same 
becoming delinquent. 

(c) Any representation or warranty made by Grantee herein or in any document, 
instrument, or certificate given in connection with this Agreement, is materially false when made; 
or 

(d) Filing of any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings by Grantee; 
general assignment for the benefit of creditors made by Grantee or admission in writing by Grantee 
of inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; or filing of any involuntary petition in 
bankruptcy or similar proceedings against Grantee which are not dismissed or stayed within 60 
days. 

9. The City’s Remedies upon Grantee’s Default.  

(a) Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the City may take any one 
or more of the following actions at any time prior to Grantee’s curing or remedying the Event of 
Default: 

(i) terminate this Agreement 

(ii) suspend its performance under this Agreement;  

(iii) demand, seek, and obtain repayment of the Grant proceeds from Grantee, 
plus interest thereon from the original date of disbursement of the Grant at the rate of 10% 
per annum, which amount shall be paid to the City within 10 days of written demand; and  

(iv) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable 
to the City to collect any payments due under this Agreement, or to enforce performance 
and observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant of Grantee under this 
Agreement; an 

(v) exercise any remedies available at law and in equity to enforce 
performance of this Agreement, including a right to specific performance. 

(b) No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the City 
is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this 
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall 
be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to 
time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the City to exercise any remedy 
reserved to them, it shall not be necessary to give notice, other than such notice as may be required 
under this Agreement. 

(c) Waivers. All waivers by any party to this Agreement shall be in writing. If any 
provision of this Agreement is breached by any party and thereafter waived by another party, such 



 

H-5 
4835-9996-3636\9 

waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any 
other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

(d) Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees. Whenever any Event of Default occurs and the 
City shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments due or to become 
due or for the enforcement or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the 
part of Grantee herein contained, Grantee agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the City 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred by the City. 

10. Indemnification. Grantee shall and does hereby agree to indemnify against and to hold the 
City, and its officers, agents, and employees, harmless of and from any and all liability, loss, or damage 
which it may or might incur by reason of or arising from any and all claims and demands whatsoever which 
may be asserted against it by reason of any alleged obligations or undertakings on its part to perform or 
discharge any of the terms, covenants or agreements contained herein. Should the City, or its officers, 
agents, or employees incur any such liability or be required to defend against any such claims or demands, 
or should a judgment be entered against the City, the amount thereof, including costs, expenses, and 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall bear interest thereon at 10% per annum, shall be added to the Grant, and 
Grantee shall reimburse the City for the same immediately upon demand. 

11. Insurance. Grantee shall obtain and continuously maintain insurance on the Project in the 
form and content required by the Redevelopment Agreement, and, from time to time at the request of the 
City, furnish proof to the City that the premiums for such insurance have been paid and the insurance is in 
effect. 

12. Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon Grantee and its successors and assigns 
and shall inure to the benefit of the City and its successors and assigns. All rights and powers specifically 
conferred upon the City may be transferred or delegated by the City to any of its successors and assigns. 
Except conveyances of the Development Property permitted under the Land Trust to Qualified Households 
made to in the ordinary course of business, Grantee has not made and will not make, or suffer to be made, 
any total or partial sale, assignment, conveyance, lease, or other transfer, with respect to this Agreement, 
the Project or Development Property or any part thereof or any interest therein (other than any Mortgage or 
Mortgages securing financing for the Project or other than any assignment of the payments to be made to 
Grantee under Section 5.6 of Redevelopment Agreement that is permitted under Section 5.6 of the 
Redevelopment Agreement), or any contract or agreement to do any of the same, without the prior written 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  

13. Damage or Destruction. Subject to any mortgage requirements, upon any damage or 
destruction of the Project, or any portion thereof, by fire or other casualty, Grantee shall within 60 days 
after such damage or destruction, commence the process required to repair, reconstruct and restore the 
damaged or destroyed Project, or portion thereof, to substantially the same condition or utility value as 
existed prior to the event causing such damage or destruction and shall diligently pursue such repair, 
reconstruction and restoration. 

14. Miscellaneous.  

(a) Conflicts of Interest; City Representatives Not Individually Liable. No member, 
official, employee, or consultant or employee of a consultant of the City shall have any personal 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, official, consultant or the 
consultant’s employees or employee participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which 
affects his or her personal interests or the interests of any corporation, partnership, or association 
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested. No member, official, consultant or 



 

H-6 
4835-9996-3636\9 

consultant’s employee, or employee of the City shall be personally liable to Grantee, or any 
successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount which may 
become due to Grantee or successors or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. No 
member, official, consultant or consultant’s employee, or employee of Grantee shall be personally 
liable to the City, or any successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by Grantee or 
for any amount which may become due to the City on any obligations under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

(b) Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, Articles, and 
Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded 
in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

(c) Provisions Surviving Termination. The following section will survive any 
termination, rescission, or expiration of this Agreement with respect to or arising out of any event, 
occurrence, or circumstance existing prior to the date thereof: Section 9 [The City’s Remedies upon 
Grantee’s Default] to the extent of any Event of Default arising prior to such termination or 
expiration Section 10 [Indemnification]; Section 11 [Insurance]; Section 14(d) [Notices and 
Demands]; and Section 14(e) [Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury]. 

(d) Notices and Demands. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, 
a notice, demand, or other communication under this Agreement by any party to another party shall 
be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested, or delivered personally as follows: 

(i) in the case of Grantee, addressed to or delivered personally to: 

Carver County Community Development Agency 
705 N. Walnut Street 
Chaska, MN 55318 
Attention: Executive Director  

(ii) in the case of the City, addressed or delivered personally to: 

City of Chaska 
500 4th Avenue NE  
Chaska, MN 55912 
Attention: City Administrator 

with a copy to:  

Jay R. Lindgren 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP 
50 South Sixth Street, Suite 1500 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

Each party, by notice given hereunder to the other parties, may designate different addresses to 
which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications should be sent. 

(e) Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury. All matters, 
whether sounding in tort or in contract, relating to the validity, construction, performance, or 
enforcement of this Agreement shall be controlled by, interpreted and determined in accordance 



 

H-7 
4835-9996-3636\9 

with the laws of the state of Minnesota without regard to its conflict and choice of law provisions. 
Any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be venued exclusively in Carver County District 
Court, state of Minnesota and shall not be removed therefrom to any other federal or state court. 
Grantee and the City hereby consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in the foregoing court. 
Grantee and the City hereby waive trial by jury for any litigation arising out of this Agreement. 

(f) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

(g) Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Agreement may be amended or 
any of its terms modified only by written amendment authorized and executed by the City and 
Grantee.  

(h) Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The City and Grantee agree that 
they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, 
acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may 
reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Development 
Property or the Project or for carrying out the expressed intention of this Agreement. 

(i) City Approval. Unless the City Council determines otherwise in its discretion, 
whenever this Agreement provides for the consent or approval by the City, such approval shall be 
given by the City Administrator (or his/her designee), unless (A) this Agreement explicitly provides 
for approval by the City Council, (B) approval by the City Council is required by law or (C) the 
approval, in the opinion of the City Administrator would result in a material change in the terms of 
this Agreement. 

(j) No Waiver of Governmental Immunity and Limitations on Liability. Nothing in 
this Agreement shall in any way affect or impair the City’s immunity or the immunity of the City’s 
employees, consultants and contractors, whether on account of official immunity, legislative 
immunity, statutory immunity, discretionary immunity or otherwise. Nothing in this Agreement 
shall in any way affect or impair the limitations on the City’s liability or the liability of the City’s 
employees, consultants and independent contractors. By entering into this Agreement, the City does 
not waive any rights, protections, or limitations as provided under law and equity for the City, or 
of their respective employees, consultants and contractors. 

(k) Superseding Effect. This Agreement reflects the entire agreement of the parties 
with respect to the items covered by this Agreement, and supersedes in all respects all prior 
agreements of the parties, whether written or otherwise, with respect to the items covered by this 
Agreement. 

(l) Data Practices Act. Grantee acknowledges that all of the data created, collected, 
received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by Grantee with regard to the performance of 
its duties under this Agreement are subject to the requirements of Chapter 13, Minnesota Statutes. 

(m) City a Regulatory Authority. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit 
or modify the City’s regulatory authority. 

(n) Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and 
every term and condition hereof; provided, however, that if any date herein set forth for the 
performance of any obligations by Grantee or the City or for the delivery of any instrument or 



 

H-8 
4835-9996-3636\9 

notice as herein provided should not be on a business day, the compliance with such obligations or 
delivery shall be deemed acceptable on the next following business day. 

(o) Relationship of Parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or shall be 
construed, to create a partnership or joint venture among or between the parties hereto, and the 
rights and remedies of the parties hereto shall be strictly as set forth in this Agreement. 

(p) Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of intent of any provisions or Sections of this 
Agreement. 

(q) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature(s) on following page(s)] 





 

H-10 
4835-9996-3636\9 

GRANTEE: 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF CARVER ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 
202___, by _________________, the ________________, and _________________, the 
________________, of the Carver County Community Development Agency, on behalf of the agency. 

 

  
Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

I-1 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit I 

Form of Memorandum of Agreement 

Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement 

This Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement (this “Memorandum”) is entered into as of 
______________ ___, 202___, by and among the CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA, a municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), the ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CHASKA, MINNESOTA, a body corporate and 
politic of the State of Minnesota (the “EDA”), and CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (the “Developer”). 

RECITALS: 

A. The City, EDA, and Developer (collectively, the “Parties”) have entered into a certain 
Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement dated as of __________________, 
202___ (as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, the “Redevelopment 
Agreement”), whereby the Parties have agreed to various aspects of the redevelopment of certain real 
property more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A, together with all improvements, tenements, 
easements, rights and appurtenances pertaining to such real property, lying and being in Carver County, 
Minnesota (the “Property”). 

B. The Parties wish to give notice of the existence of the Redevelopment Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. The above recitals are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

2. Capitalized terms, when not defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 
the Redevelopment Agreement. 

3. The Parties have entered into the Redevelopment Agreement to set forth the terms and 
provisions governing the redevelopment of the Property. 

4. This Memorandum has been executed and delivered by the Parties for the purpose of 
recording and giving notice that a contractual relationship for the redevelopment of the Property has been 
created between the Parties in accordance with the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Redevelopment 
Agreement. 

5. The terms and conditions of the Redevelopment Agreement are incorporated by reference 
into this Memorandum as if fully set forth herein, specifically including, without limitation, the following 
provisions: 

(a) Developer’s covenant that the use and ownership of the Development Property 
shall be perpetually subject to the terms and conditions of the of the Carver County Community 
Land Trust (the “Land Trust”) such that the Residential Units constructed thereon shall be sold only 
to households having incomes at or below 80% of the Area Median Income for the Minneapolis-
Saint Paul-Bloomington Metropolitan Statistical Area (including adjustments for household size) 
(“Qualified Households”) and the land underlying each such Residential Unit shall be leased only 



 

I-2 
4835-9996-3636\9 

to such Qualified Household pursuant to long-term ground lease in substantially the form set forth 
in the Redevelopment Agreement such that the Development Property will be owned by the Land 
Trust for the purpose of preserving the affordability of housing units on the Development Property, 
all as further provided in the Redevelopment Agreement; and  

(b) a right of reverter of the Development Property in favor of the EDA if Developer 
fails to cause the Commencement of construction of the Project by ________, 2023. 

6. This Memorandum may be executed separately in counterparts which, when taken 
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally; signature pages follow] 







 

I-5 
4835-9996-3636\9 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

 

By:   
                   ________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF CARVER ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 
202__, by _________________, the ________________, and _________________, the 
________________, of the Carver County Community Development Agency, on behalf of the agency. 

 

  
Notary Public 

 

THIS DOCUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP (ACS) 
50 South Sixth Street 
Suite 1500 
Minneapolis, MN 55402-1498 



 

I-6 
4835-9996-3636\9 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description  

The real property and interests in such property located in the County of Carver, State of Minnesota 
and described as follows: 

Parcel 1: 

Lot 2, Block 37, except the Northerly 6 feet of the Westerly 48 feet thereof and also including the 
South 4 feet of the Easterly 94 feet of Lot 1, Block 37, City of Lots of Chaska, Carver County, Minnesota. 

Parcel 2: 

Lot 3, Block 37, City of Lots Chaska, Carver County, Minnesota. 

 

 



Board of Commissioners 

Request for Board Action 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023 Agenda number: 5C 

DEPARTMENT: Community & Economic Development 

FILE TYPE: Regular Agenda 

TITLE: Approval of 2023 Community Growth Partnership Initiative RFP Applications 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approve recommendation of scoring committee. 

SUMMARY: The Community Growth Partnership Initiative Grant Program (CGPI) started in 

January 2016 with the goals to increase the tax base and improve the quality of life in Carver 

County through Affordable Housing, Community Development, and Predevelopment strategies.  

As part of the 2023 CDA budget $400,000 was allocated to the CGPI program.  10% ($40,000) 

is reserved for Predevelopment grants leaving $360,000 for Community Development & 

Housing grants. 

We received four (4) Predevelopment applications requesting a total of $30,000. 

Laketown Township Sewer Feasibility Study $7,500 

NYA  Comprehensive Housing Study $7,500 

Chanhassen Downtown Design Guidelines $7,500 

New Germany  Black Forest/Trophy Lake Wastewater $7,500 

We received six (6) Community Development/Housing applications requesting a total of 

$600,000. 

Waconia Trails Edge Senior    $100,000 

Waconia Township Sovereign Estates Tasting Rm Kitchen/Bath $100,000 

Mayer  Old Firehall Commercial Redevelopment $100,000 

Carver  Mizzy’s Pizza  $100,000 

Watertown Watertown Warehouses $100,000 

NYA  Tacoma West Industrial Park Phase II $100,000 



RECOMMENDATION: Based on the totals for the submitted scoring sheet tabulations and 

scoring committee discussions, the recommendations are as follows: 

Pre-Development:  Fund all four (4) submitted applications at $7,500 for a total of $30,000 

Community Development/Housing:  Fund the top four (4) scoring applications at $90,000 for a 

total of $360,000 

 Waconia Township $90,000 

 Mayer   $90,000 

 Carver   $90,000 

 Watertown  $90,000 

 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested  

 

RESOLUTION: 

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) established a Community Growth 

Partnership Initiative program (Initiative) in 2016 to assist Carver County cities with redevelopment goals and 

promote the development of affordable housing; and   

WHEREAS, the Initiative program has an approved budget of available grant funds of $400,000 for the fiscal 

year ending December 31, 2023; and    

WHEREAS, Carver County cities and townships can apply up to $100,000 per community development 

project (through one or a combination of projects per local government) and up to $7,500 per pre-development 

grant (one per local government);    

WHEREAS, the CDA received four pre-developments grants and six community development applications 

from Carver County cities and townships on May 26th, 2023, for a total request of $630,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Initiative Review Panel reviewed applications based upon the threshold and competitive 

criteria; and   

WHEREAS, the Initiative Review Panel recommends four pre-development grants and four community 

development grants; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of 

Commissioners as follows: 

 

 

 



That the following projects be awarded upon the grantees meeting program guidelines, and entering into grant 

agreements with the CDA, in form and content acceptable to the Executive Director of the CDA; and  

APPLICANT PROJECT GRANT SOURCE 
FUNDING 

AMOUNT 

Laketown 

Township 
Sewer Feasibility Pre-Development $7,500 

City of NYA Comp Hsg Study Pre-Development $7,500 

City of Chanhassen Downtown Design Pre-Development $7,500 

City of New 

Germany 

Black Forest/Trophy 

Lake Wastewater 
Pre-Development $7,500 

Waconia Township 

Sovereign Estates 

Tasting Rm Kitchen 

& Bathroom 

Community Development $90,000 

City of Mayer 
Old Firehall 

Redevelopment 
Community Development $90,000 

City of Carver Mizzy’s Pizza Community Development $90,000 

City of Watertown 
Watertown 

Warehouses 
Community Development $90,000 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

NA 

ATTACHMENTS 

2023 CGPI Applications 

BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 

Author: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 

































































City of Mayer

Carver County GIS, City of Mayer, Carver County

Parcels

5/22/2023, 8:16:11 AM

0 0.15 0.30.07 mi

0 0.25 0.50.13 km

1:9,028

Carver County GIS | City of Mayer, Carver County |



TOP OF SLAB

100' - 0"

ROOF

120' - 0"

T.O.CMU

112' - 8"

TOP OF SLAB

100' - 0"

ROOF

120' - 0"

T.O.CMU

112' - 8"

TOP OF SLAB

100' - 0"

ROOF

120' - 0"

T.O.CMU

112' - 8"

TOP OF SLAB

100' - 0"

ROOF

120' - 0"

T.O.CMU

112' - 8"

GENERAL NOTES

1. XXX

2. XXX

3. XXX

4. XXX

PROJECT #

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

SHEET TITLE

SHEET

2022 OLESON+HOBBIE ARCHITECTS, LLC.C

REVISIONS

330 Stadium Road, Suite 202, Mankato, MN 56001

T: 507.385.1158

ARCHITECTURE  +  INTERIORS  +  PLANNING  +  SUSTAINABILITY

W  W  W    .    O  H  A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  S    .    C  O  M

ARCHITECT OF RECORD

CONSULTANT

XX

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

QUAAS BUILDING

EXTERIOR

CONCEPTS

400 ASH AVE N.

MAYER, MN 55360

A3.1

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

MMC

22-060MA

TAO

10/5/22

SCALE:A3.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

1 SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE:A3.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

2 EAST ELEVATION

SCALE:A3.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

3 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:A3.1 1/8" = 1'-0"

4 WEST ELEVATION

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Text Box
SIGNAGE

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Text Box
SIGNAGE

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Text Box
STANDING SEAM METAL AWNING OPTIONS

Eric Oleson
Text Box
WAINSCOTE OPTIONS BETWEEN STOREFRONT ENTRANCES (CULTURED STONE)

Eric Oleson
Text Box
STEEL SCREEN OVER EXTERIOR PAINTED CMU OPTIONS

Eric Oleson
Text Box
PAINTED CMU WITH WOOD (LP SMART-SIDE) OPTIONS

Eric Oleson
Text Box
PAINTED CMU WITH METAL PANEL &  WOOD (LP SMART-SIDE) OPTIONS

Eric Oleson
Callout
NEW OPENINGS FOR WINDOWS (ENLARGE OPENING AT EXISTING DOOR)

Eric Oleson
Callout
EXISTING OVERHEAD DOOR LOCATIONS WITH STOREFRONT WINDOWS AND ENTRY DOORS

Eric Oleson
Callout
EXISTING OVERHEAD DOOR LOCATION WITH NEW GLASS OVERHEAD DOOR FOR PATIO

Eric Oleson
Callout
NEW OPENINGS FOR WINDOWS (ENLARGE OPENING AT EXISTING DOOR)

Eric Oleson
Arrow

Eric Oleson
Callout
SIGNAGE AREA COULD BE WOOD - LP SMART-SID

Eric Oleson
Callout
END GABLE COULD BE WOOD - LP SMART-SIDE

Eric Oleson
Callout
END GABLE COULD BE WOOD - LP SMART-SIDE

Eric Oleson
Callout
END GABLE COULD BE WOOD - LP SMART-SIDE

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Text Box
SIGNAGE

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Text Box
SIGNAGE

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Polygon

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Image

Eric Oleson
Text Box
QUAAS BUILDING EXTERIOR CONCEPTS REVIEW - NOVEMBER 18, 2022

Eric Oleson
Arrow

Eric Oleson
Callout

Eric Oleson
Arrow

Eric Oleson
Line

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Callout

Eric Oleson
Rectangle

Eric Oleson
Text Box
UNIT 1

Eric Oleson
Text Box
UNIT 2

Eric Oleson
Text Box
UNIT 3

Eric Oleson
Text Box
UNIT 4

Eric Oleson
Text Box
UNIT 5























































































































































































































































































Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  1 

CCommunity Growth Partnership Initiative 
 Grant Application 

Project name: 

Applicant: 

Contact name: 

Contact email and phone: 

Authorized official for contract execution (name and title): 

Project Summary 

1. Request Details

1a. Request Amount: 

1b. Proposed activities/use of CGPI funds (check all applicable boxes) 

Acquisition Utilities  Sidewalks/Trails 
Lighting Site Work Demolition 
Landscaping Roadways Stormwater 
Streetscaping Soil Remediation Environmental cleanup 
Parking Relocation 
Other (list) 

Chanhassen Downtown Design Guidelines Zoning Update

City of Chanhassen

Eric Maass

EMaass@chanhassenmn.gov (651)-724-1717

Eric Maass, Planning Director

In 2018 the City of Chanhassen completed a downtown visioning plan to help shape the
future direction of the downtown chanhassen area. An outcome of that visioning
process was a desire and necessity to update the design guidelines which govern
development within the Central Business District (CBD) zoning district. The City is
aware of several properties within the downtown area that could redevelop in the near
term. Updating the zoning codes and its design guidelines now will ensure that the
private market has a full understanding of what design expectations consist of when
preparing various redevelopment proposals.

$7,500.00

✔ Zoning Study



Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  2 

2. Readiness Details

Milestone Commitment date or 
anticipated date Amount 

Construction Timeline 
Market/feasibility study Not Applicable 
Land use approvals (including any zoning, 
comprehensive plan amendments, 
variances, etc.) 

Not Applicable 

Environmental approvals Not Applicable 
Construction bids Not Applicable 
Permits Not Applicable 
Site control Not Applicable 
Financial closing Not Applicable 
Clean up/demolition Not Applicable 
Begin construction Not Applicable 
Project completion Not Applicable 

Project Funding Sources 
First mortgage 
General partner cash/other equity 
Syndication proceeds 
Deferred loans 
TIF 
Sales tax/energy rebates 
Deferred developer fee 
Met Council TOD/LCDA/TBRA 
DEED Redevelopment/Cleanup 
DEED MIF/JCF 
Carver County CDA CGPI 
Other: 
Other: 
Other: 

2a. Total development cost: Percentage of funds committed: 

2b. List other sources of funds requested or considered but not obtained for the project 
and explain why. 

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

6/15/2023 $7,500
5/22/2023 $52,250

$59,750 100%100%$59,750

City Staff considered applying for Metropolitan Council LCDA Pre-Development grant 
funds however the timing of review as well as the scoring metrics resulted in Staff not 
pursuing those funds as the potential to recieve funding was very low and the timing 
was problematic to the desired timing of the study to be conducted.

 City Funds
 N/A

 N/A



Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  3 

3. Project Details

3a. Site address(es) 

3b. Site size  

3c. Number of parcels 

3d. Parcel ID(s): 

Housing  
3e. Are there any existing housing units on the site: Yes No 

If so, how many? 

Are any of the units vacant? Yes No N/A 

3f. Are any of the existing units affordable? Yes No 

3g. Housing Units (Indicate the number of housing units planned in the project) 
Total 
Units 

New 
Units 

Retained 
Units 

Owner-
Occupied 

Rental 
Units 

Market 
Rate 

Affordable 
Units 

Affordability 
Level (% AMI) 

Single Family 
Townhome 
Apartments/ 
Condos 
Duplexes 
Other (Specify) 

3h. Is there a mechanism to ensure long term affordability?  Yes No 

3i. If yes, please describe the type and length of affordability. 

3j. Who is the target population for these units (seniors, families, etc.)? 

3k. If the project is a rental project, is the owner willing to accept Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance (Housing Choice Voucher and other tenant based rental assistance)?  

Yes No 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  4 

Commercial  
3l. Are there existing commercial buildings on the site:     Yes   No   If so, how many? 

Are any of the units vacant?            Yes   No   N/A 

3m. Commercial square footage (Indicate the square footage and jobs planned for the project)
Total 

square 
footage 

New 
square 
footage 

Retained 
square 
footage 

New 
FTEs 

Retained 
FTEs 

Jobs with 
wages 
$15/hour 

Retail/commercial 
Industrial 
Office 
Other (Specify) 

3n. List and describe any businesses that will be located on the site.  Identify any that are Small 
Business Enterprises (SBE), Women Business Enterprises (WBE), Minority Business 
Enterprises (MBE) or Veteran owned. 

4. Project Costs
4a. Current taxable market value of the site: 

4b. Anticipated taxable market value after redevelopment: 

4c. Development costs 
Acquisition cost   Total development cost 

4d. Proposed cost of activities/use of CGPI funds 
Activity Total Cost CGPI Request 

Acquisition 
Utilities 
Sidewalks/Trails 
Lighting 
Site Work 
Demolition 
Landscaping 
Roadways 
Stormwater 
Streetscaping 
Soil Remediation 
Environmental cleanup 
Parking 
Other 
Other 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

$59,750.00 $7,500.00
N/A N/A

N/A
✔

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

Zoning Study



Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  5 

5. Narrative
5a. Describe how this project fits into the Redevelopment Plan, including the city’s goals, public 
purpose, extraordinary costs, and the community’s need for the project. Describe any other 
projects completed or underway as part of the Redevelopment Plan ,  
describe how this project may catalyze additional (re)development. 

5b. Provide a brief history of the site including previous uses, slum or blight, activities, 
contamination and other attempts at redevelopment. 

5c. How does your project create a more livable community? Include information about the mix 
of uses, proximity to transit, reduced/shared parking, walkable neighborhoods, green space, 
increased density, benefits to businesses/organizations, and community building elements. 

5d. Describe any contamination on the project site or in the redevelopment plan area.  Was a 
Response Action Plan developed?  Will the project be cleaning up any contaminated soils, 
hazardous waste or other elements? If so, describe the type of clean up.   

5e. Describe how the project is maximizing the potential of the site. 

The updating of the downtown design guidelines will govern redevelopment within the
Central Business District (CBD) zoning district. This effort is crucial to ensure that future
redevelopment by the private market is done so in a way in which the community desires
to ensure the long term viability and excitement for downtown Chanhassen.

Downtown Chanhassen has gone through some redevelopment, most recently with the
addition of "The Venue" a market rate mixed use building that includes apartment units as
well as an 18,000sf Aldi's grocery store. The Chanhassen Cinema recently closed and that
building is blighted and likely to redevelop. These design guidelines will ensure that the
redevelopment of that blight is done so in a way that is supported by the community.

The downtown design guidelines will ensure that with redevelopment projects that the
downtown area of Chanhassen becomes more walkable and better leverages the SW
Transit parking ramp and its transit opportunities while also reducing the number of surface
parking lots and promotion of shared parking wherever possible. Redevelopment will allow
for other downtown businesses to benefit from the elimination of blight and uniform building
elements.

No known contaminants within the CBD district.

The planning study to update the design guidelines within the city's CBD zoning district will
ensure that future redevelopment maximizes sites positioned for redevelopment by
updating architectural standards, parking minimum/maximums, improved pedestrian
connectivity and the opportunity for promotion of all modes of transportation.



Carver County CDA 
Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
Redevelopment Grant Application  6 

5f. Will any existing tenants or businesses be temporarily or permanently relocated as a part of 
this project?  If so, please describe how relocation will occur. 

5g. Describe the biggest challenges or extraordinary costs facing your project and explain why 
the project is not feasible with  CGPI funds. Please include any challenges not previously 
described such as status of site control, financing, rents and returns, tenants/leasing and other 
items pertinent to a successful project. 

Attachments 

City Resolution (sample is attached and must contain all provisions listed)

Location map

Site plan and elevations (if available)

Existing conditions photos

Redevelopment plan

Relocation plan (if applicable)

Copies of any funding commitments

Evidence of site control

Development pro forma that includes such things as sources and uses, financing
assumptions of any debt, debt service coverage ratio, loan to value, loan to cost, percent
equity and cash on cash return.

No businesses will be temporarily or permanently relocated as part of the planning/zoning 
project.

The largest challenge to completing this work is funding. The City Council is supportive of 
the work but with strong indication the need to offset direct City costs through the use of 
grant funding.  Due to the lack of fit with the LCDA pre-development grant funding, the 
CGPI grant funding is the best opportunity for the City to be approved for grant funds to 
help ensure this important planning work is completed in a timely fashion. 

✔



 

 

CITY OF CHANHASSEN 

CARVER AND HENNEPIN COUNTIES, MINNESOTA 

 

DATE:  May 22, 2023    RESOLUTION NO:  2023-49   

 

MOTION BY:  von Oven   SECONDED BY:   Kimber   

 

     A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SIGNATURE OF APPLICATION TO THE 

CARVER COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CDA) FOR GRANT 

FUNDING THROUGH THEIR COMMUNITY GROWTH PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Chanhassen has identified a proposed project within the city that 

meets the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) Community Growth 

Partnership Initiative Grant Program’s purpose and criteria; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City has established a Redevelopment Plan of which the proposed 

project is a component; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City has the capacity and capability to ensure the proposed project will 

be completed and administered within the Community Growth Partnership Initiative 

predevelopment program guidelines; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City has the legal authority to apply for financial assistance; and  

  

 WHEREAS, the City is supportive of affordable housing and of the CDA’s mission to 

improve the lives of Carver County residents through affordable housing and community 

development.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Chanhassen approves the 

application for funding from the Carver County CDA Community Growth Partnership Initiative 

Grant program.  

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the application is approved by the Carver 

County CDA, Eric Maass, the City of Chanhassen Planning Director, is hereby authorized to 

execute such agreements as are necessary to receive and use the funding for the proposed project.  

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Chanhassen City Council this 22nd day of May 2023. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

              

Kim Meuwissen, City Clerk    Elise Ryan, Mayor 

 

  YES    NO    ABSENT 

 

  Ryan        McDonald 

  Schubert 

  von Oven 

  Kimber 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 03721F50-A1BA-4FC1-AEF8-5927FB13B051









































7 
 

Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
2023  

Community Development Grant Application 
 
Project name: Black Forest & Trophy Lakes Developements 
 
Applicant: City of New Germany 
 
Contact name:  Twyla Menth, City Clerk 
 
Contact email and phone:  ngcityhall@gmail.com   952.353.2488 
 
Authorized official for contract execution (name and title):  Twyla Menth, City Clerk  
 
Project Summary 
 
The City of New Germany needs to expand the wastewater treatment capacity to allow new homes and businesses to be 
constructed.  This funding is being sought for pre-development work including soil testing, a topographic survey, and an 
archeological survey, which would advance the project towards being shovel ready.  The recently completed Wastewater 
Facility Plan identifies cost effective, viable options that will allow the City of New Germany to expand the sanitary 
sewer treatment system to accommodate the addition of new homes and businesses, increasing the City's tax base. The 
Facility Plan has been completed and approved by MPCA. 
 
The ultimate goal for the City is to add much-needed housing to our community.  The project will allow construction of 
the Black Forest and Trophy Lakes developments, which includes more than 140 acres of land available for new housing.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:ngcityhall@gmail.com


8 
 

1. Request Details 
 
1a. Request Amount: $7,500 
 
1b. Proposed activities/use of CGPI funds (check all applicable boxes) 
 

 Acquisition    Utilities     Sidewalks/Trails 
 Lighting     Site Work    Demolition 
 Landscaping    Roadways    Stormwater 
 Streetscaping    Soil Remediation    Environmental cleanup 
 Parking     Relocation 
  Other (list) – pre-development, including soil borings, a topographic survey, and an 

archeological survey 

2. Readiness Details 
 

Milestone Commitment date or 
anticipated date Amount 

Construction Timeline   
Market/feasibility study  Not Applicable 
Land use approvals (including any zoning, 
comprehensive plan amendments, variances, etc.)  Not Applicable 

Environmental approvals March 2024 Not Applicable 
Construction bids August 2024 Not Applicable 
Permits  Not Applicable 
Site control  Not Applicable 
Financial closing  Not Applicable 
Clean up/demolition  Not Applicable 
Begin construction Fall 2024 Not Applicable 
Project completion Spring 2026 Not Applicable 
   
Project Funding Sources   
First mortgage   
General partner cash/other equity   
Syndication proceeds   
Deferred loans   
TIF   
Sales tax/energy rebates   
Deferred developer fee   
Met Council TOD/LCDA/TBRA   
DEED Redevelopment/Cleanup   
DEED MIF/JCF   
Carver County CDA CGPI July 2023 $7,500 
City June 2023 $48,400 
Other: Congressionally Directed Spending August 2023 $5,000,000 
Other: Minnesota Bond Funds May 2024 $3,900,000 

 
 



9 
 

 
 
2a. Total development cost:$8,900,000  Percentage of funds committed: All currently pending. 
 
2b. List other sources of funds requested or considered but not obtained for the project and explain why. 
 
The City of New Germany has sought funding through multiple programs for this project, but several barriers 
exist.  The City does not have any additional debt capacity to take on this project, so cannot utilized a loan 
through the United States Department of Agriculture or the Public Facilities Authority.  Bond funds were 
sought during the 2022 and 2023 legislative sessions, but funds were not approved.    
 
Construction funding has been requested through Congressionally Directed Spending in an amount of 
$5,000,000 and was selected by Senator Klobuchar, Senator Smith, and Congressman Emmer to advance to the 
next step of the process.  It is currently anticipated that information on awards will be made in late summer of 
2023.  The City is in the process of applying for the 2024 Minnesota Bonding bill.   

3. Project Details 
 
3a. Site address(es)  Black Forest Road, New Germany  and 62nd Street West, New Germany, MN 55367 
 
3b. Site size Black Forest 39.45 / Trophy Lakes 102 acres    
 
3c. Number of parcels: Black Forest has approximately 100 lots, with infrastructure in place 
 
3d. Parcel ID(s): Black Forest 39.45 acres is 55.0860410 / Trophy Lakes has 34 lake lots, 11 non lake lots all 
with different PID #. 
 
Housing  
3e. Are there any existing housing units on the site:  Yes  No  

If so, how many? 

 Are any of the units vacant?    Yes  No  N/A 
 
3f. Are any of the existing units affordable?   Yes  No  N/A 
 
 
3g. Housing Units (Indicate the number of housing units planned in the project) 

 Total 
Units 

New 
Units 

Retained 
Units 

Owner-
Occupied 

Rental 
Units 

Market 
Rate 

Affordable 
Units 

Affordability 
Level (% AMI) 

Single Family 150 150 N/A 150 N/A    
Townhome         
Apartments/ 
Condos 

        

Duplexes         
Other (Specify) 
 

        

 
3h. Is there a mechanism to ensure long term affordability?  Yes  No   



10 
 

Homes prices in New Germany are more affordable than homes in the eastern portion of Carver County and it is 
not anticipated that will change in the future.   
 
3i. If yes, please describe the type and length of affordability.  Affordable homes for first time home buyers.  
 
 
3j. Who is the target population for these units (seniors, families, etc.)?  Families, or could be seniors with patio 
homes (slab on grade). We currently have a 3 in Black Forest with retired seniors.  
 
 
 
3k. If the project is a rental project, is the owner willing to accept Tenant Based Rental Assistance (Housing 
Choice Voucher or other tenant based rental assistance)?   Not applicable.  

Yes   No  



11 
 

Commercial  
 

3l. Are there existing commercial buildings on the site:  Yes         No If so, how many? 

 Are any of the units vacant?        Yes         No N/A 
  
3m. Commercial square footage (Indicate the square footage and jobs planned for the project) 
  Total 

square 
footage 

New 
square 
footage 

Retained 
square 
footage 

New 
FTEs 

Retained 
FTEs 

Jobs with 
wages 

≥$17/hour 
Retail/commercial       
Industrial       
Office       
Other (Specify) 
 

      

 

3n. List and describe any businesses that will be located on the site.  Identify any that are Small Business 
Enterprises (SBE), Women Business Enterprises (WBE), Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) or Veteran 
owned. 
 
 

4. Project Costs 
 

4a. Current taxable market value of the site: Black Forest $312,000.00 Property tax estimate market value. 
Trophy Lakes is estimated at property tax market value of $35,000 per lot x 34 lake lots is $1,190,000.00, non-
lake lots are estimated at $1,000.00 each x 11 = $11,000.00. Total value of Trophy Lakes $1,201,000.00 
 
4b. Anticipated taxable market value after redevelopment: Trophy Lakes would most likely double or triple and 
the same with Black Forest.  
 
4c. Development costs 
 Acquisition cost: N/A          Total development cost: $8,900,000 for WWTP project 
 
4d. Proposed cost of activities/use of CGPI funds 

Activity Total Cost CGPI Request 
Acquisition   
Utilities   
Sidewalks/Trails   
Lighting   
Site Work   
Demolition   
Landscaping   
Roadways   
Stormwater   
Streetscaping   
Soil Remediation   
Environmental cleanup   
Parking   
Other – Surveys and soil borings $55,900 $7,500 
Other   



12 
 

 
5. Narrative 
5a. Describe how this project fits into the city’s goals and the Redevelopment Plan, its public purpose, any 
extraordinary costs, and the community’s need for the project. Describe other projects completed/underway as 
part of the Redevelopment Plan or in the area and how this project may catalyze additional (re)development. 
 
The City's goal is to add much-needed housing and allow for business growth and expansion.  The current wastewater 
treatment plant is at capacity and needs updates and expansion to allow any sewer extension permits to be issued for new 
construction of homes or businesses.  The City has completed the Wastewater Facility Plan and it was approved by the 
MPCA.  The cost to undertake this project is substantial for a community the size of New Germany.  The City is still 
paying on loans for a large infrastructure project completed in 2014 and has no additional debt capacity to take on more 
loans.  Many communities in the metro area are connected to Met Council’s regional wastewater system, but Met Council 
has determined that is not a viable option in the near or mid-term, so the City has worked to move forward with the 
needed improvements.  Completion of the project will allow development of more than 100 acres of land for new housing 
and will accommodate future business growth opportunities.   
 
 
5b. Provide a brief history of the site including previous uses, slum or blight, activities, contamination and other 
attempts at redevelopment. 
 
Knowledge of previous uses at the site is limited.  These pre-development grant funds are being sought for soil 
borings and an archeological survey, both of which will provide more information on past uses.  While this isn’t 
a redevelopment project, it will address a high priority need within the community and allow for new homes to 
be constructed.   
 
 
5c. How does your project create a more livable community? Include information about the mix of uses, 
proximity to transit, reduced/shared parking, resiliency, walkable neighborhoods, green space, increased 
density, benefits to businesses/organizations, and community building elements. 
 
The project will result in positive environmental impacts at the wastewater treatment plant and will make the 
community more livable by adding housing units and options to the community.  Housing in New Germany is 
substantially more affordable than in many other areas of the County and this project will add more than 150 
new units to the housing stock.  It will also help to make living in New Germany more affordable.  New 
Germany has the lowest median household income in Carver County and unfortunately has the highest 
household utility bills in Carver County by far.  The project will help to stabilize utility rates for current and 
future residents.   
 
 
 
5d. Describe any contamination on the project site or in the redevelopment plan area.  Was a Response Action 
Plan developed?  Will the project be cleaning up any contaminated soil, hazardous waste or other elements? If 
so, describe the type of clean up.   
 
Contamination at the site is not anticipated.  Funding is being sought to complete soil borings and surveys at the 
wastewater treatment facility.   
 
 
5e. Describe how the project is maximizing the potential of the site. 
 



13 
 

The project will allow more than 150 new units of housing to be constructed, which is needed in New Germany 
and Carver County.  The Black Forest Phase 2 developer is considering small lot sizes to maximize the site.   
 
 
 
 
 
5f. Will any existing residents, tenants or businesses be temporarily or permanently relocated as a part of this 
project?  If so, please describe how relocation will occur. 
 
No, there are no existing residents, tenants, or businesses on the project site.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5g. Describe the biggest challenges or extraordinary costs facing your project and explain why the project is not 
feasible without CGPI funds. Please include any challenges not previously described such as status of site 
control, financing, rents and returns, tenants/leasing and other items pertinent to a successful project. 
 
Funding for the wastewater treatment project has been the biggest barrier for the City to be able to add housing 
units.  The MPCA will not allow any new sewer extension permits to be issued until the wastewater treatment 
improvements are completed, but the City does not have any debt capacity (due to prior infrastructure projects) 
to take on a new loan and grant resources are limited.  CGPI funds would help the City to complete the next 
pre-development activities that would advance the project.   
 
 

Attachments 
 

1. City Resolution (sample is attached and must contain all provisions listed) 
 

2. Location map 
 

3. Site plan and elevations (if available) 
 

4. Existing conditions photos 
 

5. Redevelopment plan (if it is a redevelopment project) 
 

6. Relocation plan (if applicable) 
 

7. Copies of any funding commitments 
 

8. Evidence of site control 
 

9. Development pro forma that includes such things as sources and uses, financing assumptions of any 
debt, debt service coverage ratio, loan to value, loan to cost, percent equity and cash on cash return. 













Carver County GIS

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 4/18/2023

50
0’

16.5’

20
’

20’

Parcel ID: 020041400

Parcel ID: 020041505

Parcel ID: 020040440

Parcel ID: 020041300

Parcel ID: 020030100

GRAVEL DRIVE
ACCESS EASEMENT

AIR RELIEF STRUCTURE
TOC, INVERT, PIPE CROWN TRANSFER STRUCTURE

TOC, INVERT, BENCH

DISCHARGE STRUCTURE
TOC, INVERT, BENCH

INFLUENT STRUCTURE
TOC, INVERT, BENCH

PVC OUTFALL
INVERT

EXISTING 3-WIRE
FENCE

APPROX. EDGE
OF RIP RAP (BOTH PONDS)



jhedin
Text Box
Primary Pond (Existing)

jhedin
Text Box
Secondary Pond (Existing)

jhedin
Rectangle

jhedin
Text Box
Proposed Future Polishing Reactor

jhedin
Text Box
Proposed Future Aerated Pond

jhedin
Rectangle

jhedin
Text Box
Proposed Future Chemical Feed and Disinfection Building

jhedin
Text Box
Existing Ponds Built in 1971

jhedin
Arrow

jhedin
Arrow

jhedin
Text Box
Current Discharge

jhedin
Arrow

jhedin
Text Box
Future Discharge

jhedin
Arrow

jhedin
Cloud+

jhedin
Cloud+
County Ditch 9 to Crow River

jhedin
Arrow

jhedin
Text Box
N

jhedin
Text Box
NEW GERMANY STABILIZATION POND SYSTEM





















Board of Commissioners 

Request for Board Action 

Meeting date: July 20, 2023 Agenda number: 5D 

DEPARTMENT: Community & Economic Development 

FILE TYPE: Regular Agenda 

TITLE: 2023 CGPI Pre-Development application for the City of Waconia Waterford Evolution 

Townhouses project 

PURPOSE/ ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of CGPI Pre-Development Application 

SUMMARY: The Community Growth Partnership Initiative Grant Program (CGPI) started in 

January 2016 with the goals to increase the tax base and improve the quality of life in Carver 

County through Affordable Housing, Community Development, and Predevelopment strategies.  

As part of the 2023 CDA budget $400,000 was allocated to the CGPI program.  10% ($40,000) 

is reserved for Predevelopment grants leaving $360,000 for Community Development & 

Housing grants. 

We received one (1) additional application for Pre-development funds 

Waconia $7,500  Waterford Evolution Townhomes project 

RECOMMENDATION: CDA staff recommends the CDA Board fund the following project. 

Pre-Development:  Fund the City of Waconia Pre-Development grant application in the amount 

of $7,500. 

EXPLANATION OF FISCAL/ FTE IMPACTS: 

 None    Current budget    Other   Amendment requested    New FTE(s) requested 

continued on next page 



RESOLUTION: 

WHEREAS, the Carver County Community Development Agency (CDA) established a Community Growth 

Partnership Initiative program (Initiative) in 2016 to assist Carver County cities with redevelopment goals and 

promote the development of affordable housing; and   

WHEREAS, the Initiative program has an approved budget of available grant funds of $400,000 for the fiscal 

year ending December 31, 2023; and    

WHEREAS, Carver County cities and townships can apply up to $100,000 per community development 

project (through one or a combination of projects per local government) and up to $7,500 per pre-development 

grant (one per local government);    

WHEREAS, the CDA received one pre-development grant application for the month of June 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the CDA staff reviewed the application based upon the threshold and grant guidelines;  

WHEREAS, the CDA staff recommends approving one pre-development grant application; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Carver County Community Development Agency Board of 

Commissioners as follows: 

That the following projects be awarded upon the grantees meeting program guidelines, and entering into grant 

agreements with the CDA, in form and content acceptable to the Executive Director of the CDA; and  

APPLICANT PROJECT GRANT SOURCE 
FUNDING 

AMOUNT 

City of Waconia 
Waterford Evolution 

Townhomes 
Pre-Development $7,500 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

NA 

ATTACHMENTS 

2023 CGPI Waconia Waterford Evolution Townhomes 

BOARD GOALS 

 Focused Housing Programs    Collaboration   Development/Redevelopment 

 Financial Sustainability   Operational Effectiveness 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL 

 Inform and Listen   Discuss   Involve   N/A 

CONTACT 

Department Head: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 

Author: Chuck Swanson, Director of Community and Economic Development 



7 

Community Growth Partnership Initiative 
2023  

Community Development Grant Application 
Project name: 

Applicant: 

Contact name: 

Contact email and phone: 

Authorized official for contract execution (name and title): 

Project Summary 

Waterford Evolution Townhomes

City of Waconia

Lane Braaten, Community Development Director

lbraaten@waconia.org        (952) 442-3106

Shane Fineran, City Administrator

The City is working with the homeowners located in the Waterford 2nd Addition/ Waterford Evolution CIC 
neighborhood. The Waterford Evolution CIC Plat was originally approved and recorded in 2006.The 
majority of the townhomes were constructed, but due to the economic downturn a number of the properties 
were re-platted single-family residential. The remaining three townhome lots were constructed in 2016 and 
instead of being combined with the master association, the properties were developed under two additional 
CIC plats and their own homeowners associations. The platted properties are included in the WATERFORD 
EVOLUTION II CIC NUMBER 150 (4 units) and WATERFORD EVOLUTION III CIC NUMBER 151 (9 
units). Evolution II is a Community Land Trust building, which the City contributed to as a continued 
support for affordable housing within our community. 

The homeowners of the two latest CIC plats have found that the viability of their individual homeowners 
associations are troubling and/or not viable.  So, they are working with the master association to combine all 
three associations into one.

The City is requesting $7,500 in funding as part of the CDA's predevelopment grant. The affordable housing 
aspect of this project requires additional contribution to allow for the necessary surveyor and legal fees 
associated with the project. 



8 

1. Request Details

1a. Request Amount: 

1b. Proposed activities/use of CGPI funds (check all applicable boxes) 

 Acquisition Utilities Sidewalks/Trails 

Lighting  Site Work Demolition 

Landscaping Roadways Stormwater 

Streetscaping Soil Remediation  Environmental cleanup 

Parking Relocation 

Other (list) 

2. Readiness Details

Milestone 
Commitment date or 

anticipated date 
Amount 

Construction Timeline 

Market/feasibility study Not Applicable 

Land use approvals (including any zoning, 

comprehensive plan amendments, variances, etc.) 
Not Applicable 

Environmental approvals Not Applicable 

Construction bids Not Applicable 

Permits Not Applicable 

Site control Not Applicable 

Financial closing Not Applicable 

Clean up/demolition Not Applicable 

Begin construction Not Applicable 

Project completion Not Applicable 

Project Funding Sources 

First mortgage 

General partner cash/other equity 

Syndication proceeds 

Deferred loans 

TIF 

Sales tax/energy rebates 

Deferred developer fee 

Met Council TOD/LCDA/TBRA 

DEED Redevelopment/Cleanup 

DEED MIF/JCF 

Carver County CDA CGPI 

City 

Other: 

Other: 

$7,500

X Surveyor and legal fees associated with affordable housing

$7,500

CDA $5,400



9 

2a. Total development cost:   Percentage of funds committed: 

2b. List other sources of funds requested or considered but not obtained for the project and explain why. 

3. Project Details

3a. Site address(es) 

3b. Site size  

3c. Number of parcels 

3d. Parcel ID(s): 

Housing 
3e. Are there any existing housing units on the site: Yes 

If so, how many? 13

Are any of the units vacant? No 

3f. Are any of the existing units affordable? Yes 

3g. Housing Units (Indicate the number of housing units planned in the project) 

Total 

Units 

New 

Units 

Retained 

Units 

Owner-

Occupied 

Rental 

Units 

Market 

Rate 

Affordable 

Units 
Affordability 

Level (% AMI) 

Single Family 

Townhome 

Apartments/ 

Condos 

Duplexes 

Other (Specify) 

3h. Is there a mechanism to ensure long term affordability?  Yes 

3i. If yes, please describe the type and length of affordability. 

3j. Who is the target population for these units (seniors, families, etc.)? 

3k. If the project is a rental project, is the owner willing to accept Tenant Based Rental Assistance (Housing 

Choice Voucher or other tenant based rental assistance)?  

N/A

Approx. $20,000 $5,400

532, 538, 544, 550, 556, 568, 574, 580, 586 Tiffany Lane
555, 561, 567, 573 Ravencroft Road

1.3 Acres

13 parcels

755330010, 755330020, 755330030, 755330040, 755320050, 755320040, 755320030,
755320020, 755320010, 755310104, 755310103, 755310102, 755310101  

13 13 13

The target population is a mix of seniors, families, first time homeowners, etc.

9 4 80%



10 

Commercial 

3l. Are there existing commercial buildings on the site:          No 

Are any of the units vacant?         N/A 

3m. Commercial square footage (Indicate the square footage and jobs planned for the project)

Total 

square 

footage 

New 

square 

footage 

Retained 

square 

footage 

New 

FTEs 

Retained 

FTEs 

Jobs with 

wages 

≥$17/hour 

Retail/commercial 

Industrial 

Office 

Other (Specify) 

3n. List and describe any businesses that will be located on the site.  Identify any that are Small Business 

Enterprises (SBE), Women Business Enterprises (WBE), Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) or Veteran 

owned. 

4. Project Costs
4a. Current taxable market value of the site: 2023 Value = $3,514,600.00

4b. Anticipated taxable market value after redevelopment: Retain value of property with the help of the funds.

4c. Development costs 

Acquisition cost:        Total development cost: 

4d. Proposed cost of activities/use of CGPI funds 

Activity Total Cost CGPI Request 

Acquisition 

Utilities 

Sidewalks/Trails 

Lighting 

Site Work 

Demolition 

Landscaping 

Roadways 

Stormwater 

Streetscaping 

Soil Remediation 

Environmental cleanup 

Parking 

Other 

Other 

- Legal & Surveyor Plat Fees $20,000 $7,500



11 

5. Narrative
5a. Describe how this project fits into the city’s goals and the Redevelopment Plan, its public purpose, any 

extraordinary costs, and the community’s need for the project. Describe other projects completed/underway as 

part of the Redevelopment Plan or in the area and how this project may catalyze additional (re)development. 

5b. Provide a brief history of the site including previous uses, slum or blight, activities, contamination and other 

attempts at redevelopment. 

5c. How does your project create a more livable community? Include information about the mix of uses, 

proximity to transit, reduced/shared parking, resiliency, walkable neighborhoods, green space, increased 

density, benefits to businesses/organizations, and community building elements. 

5d. Describe any contamination on the project site or in the redevelopment plan area.  Was a Response Action 

Plan developed?  Will the project be cleaning up any contaminated soil, hazardous waste or other elements? If 

so, describe the type of clean up.   

5e. Describe how the project is maximizing the potential of the site. 

The City's goals include additional housing affordability, housing for the elderly and housing diversity. The 
replatting of the Waterford Evolution townhome association properties will allow for us to continue our work for 
additional affordable housing by maintaining the existing affordable townhomes. The townhomes currently house 
some elderly and are also a key component in the diversity of our housing supply in the City.

The initial development was approved in 2005/2006. Due to the economic downturn it was not completed by the 
original developer. As such, the final three properties, 13 townhomes, were developed at a later date as part of 
their own associations, which is now limiting the viability of the associations.

By resolving this issue we will go a long way in making a walkable neighborhood much more resilient and stable 
for it's existing population. The combination of the three associations will be a benefit to all members by assuring 
that all structures and green spaces are maintained to a certain standard and insulating each of the property owners 
with more association members providing funds to resolve any future issues that may arrise.

N/A

The clustering of the townhomes within the residential development  was a way to maximize the site potential.



12 

5f. Will any existing residents, tenants or businesses be temporarily or permanently relocated as a part of this 

project?  If so, please describe how relocation will occur. 

5g. Describe the biggest challenges or extraordinary costs facing your project and explain why the project is not 

feasible without CGPI funds. Please include any challenges not previously described such as status of site 

control, financing, rents and returns, tenants/leasing and other items pertinent to a successful project. 

Attachments 

1. City Resolution (sample is attached and must contain all provisions listed)

2. Location map

3. Site plan and elevations (if available)

4. Existing conditions photos

5. Redevelopment plan (if it is a redevelopment project)

6. Relocation plan (if applicable)

7. Copies of any funding commitments

8. Evidence of site control

9. Development pro forma that includes such things as sources and uses, financing assumptions of any

debt, debt service coverage ratio, loan to value, loan to cost, percent equity and cash on cash return.

No.

A number of the properties were developed with an affordability component, so the underlying property owners 
are limited in what they can afford to pay to resolve the issue, which was created by the previous developer. 
Without CGPI funds, two of the three associations may not be viable moving forward. If the homeowners 
associations were ultimately dissolved it may cause unintentional affects on the remaining master association.





LOCATION MAP—WATERFORD EVOLUTION 



EXISTING CONDITIONS—1  of 3 



EXISTING CONDITIONS—2  of 3 



EXISTING CONDITIONS—3  of 3 



IX. ADJOURNMENT


	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July agenda.pdf
	CARVER COUNTY CDA
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
	Agenda
	Meeting Date: July 20, 2023          5:00 pm   CDA Boardroom, Chaska, MN
	1. Call To Order and Roll Call
	2. Audience
	Anyone wishing to address the CDA Board on an item not on the agenda, or an item on the consent agenda, may notify Kari Steen (karis@carvercda.org or 952-448-7715) and instructions will be given to participate during the meeting or provide written com...
	3. Approval of Agenda and Meeting Minutes
	A. Approval of Meeting Minutes – June 15, 2023 Regular Meeting
	4. Consent Agenda
	For More Information, call 952-448-7715
	Carver County CDA Board meeting agendas are available online at:
	https://www.carvercda.org/about-cccda/board-of-commissioners/
	Next Meeting:
	CDA Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
	August 17, 2023 at 5:00 pm
	Carver County CDA Boardroom, 705 N Walnut St Chaska, MN 55318

	Meeting Minutes - June 2023.pdf
	Meeting Date: June 15, 2023          5:00 pm   CDA Boardroom, Chaska, MN


	Dashboard Report - July.pdf
	July Board Packet
	December Board Packet 1.pdf
	November Board Packet.pdf
	November Board Packet.pdf
	October Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet.pdf
	August Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	June Board Packet.pdf
	June Board Packet.pdf
	May Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	March Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	January Board Packet.pdf
	January Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	October Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet.pdf
	August Board Packet.pdf
	August Board Packet.pdf
	Revised July Board Packet.pdf
	Revised July Board Packet.pdf
	Revised July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	Cover Pages ZOOM Mtg.pdf























































	Request for Board Action.pdf
	July Board Packet

	Carver Co_CompHsg_Revised Updated.pdf
	DESCRIPTION AND BIOGRAPHY OF FIRM
	RESEARCH STAFF
	SCOPE AND COST OF SERVICES – Comprehensive Housing Needs Analysis
	F. For-Sale Housing Market Analysis
	G. General Occupancy Rental Market Analysis
	H. Senior Housing Market Analysis
	I. Housing Affordability
	J. Conclusions and Recommendations
	L. Meetings and Client Contact


	GIS MAPPING

	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	December Board Packet 1.pdf
	November Board Packet.pdf
	November Board Packet
	October Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	June Board Packet.pdf
	June Board Packet.pdf
	May Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet
	Binder1.pdf
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	January Board Packet
	January Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	October Board Packet
	September Board Packet
	September Board Packet.pdf
	September Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	Revised July Board Packet.pdf
	Revised July Board Packet.pdf
	Revised July Board Packet
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet.pdf
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet




















































	December Board Packet 1
	November Board Packet
	November Board Packet
	October Board Packet
	September Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	July Board Packet
	June Board Packet
	June Board Packet.pdf
	May Board Packet.pdf
	March Board Packet
	Binder1.pdf
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	March Board Packet
	January Board Packet
	January Board Packet.pdf
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	December Board Packet
	October Board Packet
	September Board Packet
	September Board Packet
	September Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	August Board Packet
	Revised July Board Packet
































	Amended Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (Chaska - Ernst House).pdf
	Article I  Recitals; Exhibits, Definitions
	1.1 Recitals
	1.2 Exhibits
	1.3 Definitions

	Article II  Representations and Warranties
	2.1 City Representations
	(a) The City a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State. Under the provisions of the Act and the TIF Act, the City has the power to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder.

	2.2 EDA Representations
	(a) The EDA is a public body corporate and politic and a governmental subdivision of the State, duly organized and existing under State law and the EDA has the authority to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder.

	2.3 Developer Representations
	(a) Developer is a local government agency created by the Minnesota Legislature and has power to enter into this Agreement and has duly authorized, by all necessary corporate action, the execution and delivery of this Agreement.
	(b) Developer will, subject to and as required by Agreement, construct the Project in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the TIF Plan and all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations.
	(c) At such time or times as may be required by law, Developer will have complied with all local, state and federal environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Project, and will have obtained any and all necessary environmental reviews, licen...
	(d) Neither the execution or delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement is prevented by, limited by, conflicts with, or res...
	(e) Developer has no actual knowledge that any member of the City Council, or any other officer of the City has any direct or indirect financial interest in Developer, the Development Property, or the Project.
	(f) Developer reasonably expects that it will be able to obtain financing in the amount shown in the preliminary Sources and Uses Budget attached hereto as Exhibit B, which amounts will be sufficient, together with funds provided by the City and the E...
	(g) Developer would not undertake the Project without the financial assistance to be provided by the City pursuant to this Agreement and the TIF Plan.


	Article III  Property Transfer; Land Write Down; Right of Reverter
	3.1 Property Transfer
	3.2 Use and Ownership of Development Property
	3.3 Time and Place
	3.4 Purchase Price; Land Write Down
	3.5 Title to the Development Property
	3.6 Due Diligence
	3.7 Conditions Precedent to Closing
	(a) EDA Contingencies. The EDA’s obligation to close on the Land Transfer is expressly conditioned upon each of the following contingencies being satisfied or waived by the EDA on or before the Outside Closing Date:
	(i) Developer shall have performed all of its obligations required to be performed by Developer under this Agreement as of the date of Closing Date and shall not be in default under this Agreement.
	(ii) Developer shall have delivered to the EDA all of the Developer Deliveries in accordance with Section 3.8(a).
	(iii) Developer shall have delivered Project Funding Certificate to the EDA and the EDA shall have approved the same.
	(iv) Developer shall have obtained all Project Approvals, which may be conditioned only on Developer’s acquisition of the Development Property.
	(v) Developer shall have obtained all required construction and building permits necessary to immediately Commence construction of the Project.

	(i) The representations and warranties of Developer hereunder shall be true and correct as the Closing Date.
	(b) Developer Contingencies. Developer obligation to close on the Land Transfer is expressly conditioned upon each of the following contingencies being satisfied or waived by Developer on or before the Outside Closing Date:
	(i) The EDA shall have delivered to Developer all of the EDA Deliveries in accordance with Section 3.8(b).
	(ii) The EDA shall have approved the Financing Commitment.
	(vi) Developer shall have obtained all Project Approvals, which may be conditioned only on Developer’s acquisition of the Development Property.

	(iii) The EDA shall have cured any objections to the title of the Development Property agreed to cured by the EDA in writing in accordance with Section 3.5, if any
	(c) EDA and Developer Options. In the event that any of the foregoing contingencies are not satisfied on or before the Outside Closing Date Developer or the EDA, as applicable, may:
	(i) terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other party; or
	(ii) waive such failure and proceed to Closing.


	3.8 Land Transfer Closing
	(a) Developer Deliveries. At the Closing, Developer shall execute, where appropriate, and deliver all of the following to the City and/or EDA, as applicable (collectively, the “Developer Deliveries”):
	(i) The Purchase Price in immediately available funds.
	(ii) Developer’s original executed counterpart to the Trust Fund Grant Agreement.
	(iii) Such affidavits of Developer and/or the Land Trust or other documents as may be reasonably required by the Escrow Agent (including a Certificate of Real Estate Value) to record the Deed and issue any title insurance policy required by Developer.
	(iv) A resolution of the governing body of Developer authorizing and approving the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, certified as true and correct by an officer of Developer.
	(v) Any other instruments or other deliveries required by this Agreement or otherwise reasonably requested by the Escrow Agent, the City, or the EDA to consummate the Closing.

	(a) EDA Deliveries. At the Closing, the City and/or the EDA, as applicable, shall execute, where appropriate, and deliver all of the following (collectively, the “EDA Deliveries”):
	(i) A quit claim deed in the Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank form properly executed on behalf of the EDA conveying the Development Property to the Land Trust (the “Deed”).
	(ii) A Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank Form 50.1.3 Affidavit Regarding Business Entity.
	(iii) A non-foreign affidavit containing such information as required by Internal Revenue Code Section 1445(b)(ii) and any regulations relating thereto.
	(iv) A Minnesota Well Disclosure Certificate unless the Deed includes this Statement: “Seller certifies that Seller does not know of any wells on the described real property.”
	(v) The City’s and EDA’s original executed counterpart to the Memorandum.
	(vi) The City’s original executed counterpart to the Trust Fund Grant Agreement.
	(vii) Such information as required by Developer or Escrow Agent to permit Developer or Escrow Agent to file an electronic certificate of real estate value.
	(viii) Any other instruments or other deliveries required by this Agreement or otherwise reasonably requested by the Escrow Agent or Developer to consummate the Closing.

	(b) Prorations. The EDA and Developer shall make the following prorations and allocations of costs and expenses of each Land Transfer:
	(i) Developer will be responsible for title examination costs, title insurance premiums and the cost of any survey.
	(ii) Developer will be responsible for all costs and expenses associated with the Project Approvals.
	(iii) Developer will pay the closing fee and any escrow fees imposed by the Escrow Agent in connection with the Land Transfer.
	(iv) Developer shall pay the state deed tax due on the Deed to be delivered by the EDA under this Agreement.
	(v) Developer shall pay the cost of recording the Deed and all other documents.
	(vi) All real estate taxes, special assessments, utility charges and other costs of the Development Property will be prorated to the Closing Date.
	(vii) All costs incidental to the Land Transfer and Closing not otherwise specifically allocated in this Agreement shall be allocated in accordance with the custom and practice for similar transactions in the area in which the Project is located.

	(c) “AS IS” Sale. Developer HEREBY EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT IS PURCHASING THE Development Property “AS IS,” AND “WITH ALL FAULTS,” AFTER SUCH INSPECTION, ANALYSIS, EXAMINATION AND INVESTIGATION Developer CARES TO MAKE AND EXPRESSLY WI...

	3.9 Right of Reverter
	(a) Subject to an Unavoidable Delay, if Developer fails to cause the Commencement of construction of the Project by November 1, 2023, then the EDA may, in addition to such other rights and remedies that are available to the EDA hereunder, require that...
	(b) Within 15 days following Developer’s receipt of the EDA’s notice exercising its right of reverter (the “Reverter Closing Date”), Developer will convey fee title to the Development Property and all improvements thereon to the EDA by deed (the “Reve...
	(i) The EDA will pay Developer $325,000.00 as consideration for receiving the Reverter Deed, with the balance of the original Purchase Price paid to the EDA at the Closing to be retained by the EDA as liquidated damages for Developer’s default in fail...
	(ii) Developer will convey the Development Property and any improvements thereon to the EDA free and clear of all encumbrances other than encumbrances that existed when the EDA conveyed the Development Property to Developer and easements or other encu...
	(iii) Upon Developer’s delivery of the Reverter Deed to the EDA, this Agreement shall terminate, Developer shall have no further rights to the Development Property or any improvements thereon, and neither the EDA nor Developer will have any rights or ...
	(iv) On or before the Reverter Closing Date, Developer will execute and deliver to the EDA a Minnesota Uniform Conveyancing Blank Form 50.3.1 Affidavit Regarding Business Entity confirming that there has been no labor or materials provided to the Deve...
	(v) Developer shall deliver an updated title insurance commitment to the EDA evidencing the status of title to the Development Property.



	Article IV  Project Requirements
	4.1 Commencement and Completion of Project
	(a) . Developer shall cause the Commencement of the Project no later than November 1, 2023 and Completion of the Project by no later than December 31, 2024.

	4.2 Zoning Land Use Approvals; Building Permit
	(a) . Developer shall use diligent, commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, in a timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a timely manner, all requirements of all local, state and federal laws and regulations, ...

	4.3 EDA Review of Development Plans
	4.4 Undertaking of Project
	(a) All work with respect to the Project shall be in substantial conformity with the Project Approvals.
	(b) Developer shall not interfere with, or construct any improvements over, any public street or utility easement without the prior written approval of the City. All connections to public utility lines and facilities shall be subject to approval of th...

	4.5 Certificate of Completion
	(a) Upon Developer’s request following the EDA’s certification that the Project is completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the EDA, the EDA will furnish Developer with a Certificate of Completion for the Project, in substantially the form attached...
	(b) If the EDA shall refuse or fail to provide a Certificate of Completion following Developer’s request, the EDA shall, within 10 business days after Developer’s request, provide Developer with a written statement specifying in what respects Develope...

	4.6 Progress Reports
	4.7 Access to Development Property

	Article V  Project Financing; Public Assistance
	5.1 Project Financing
	5.2 Grant Applications
	5.3 Waiver of Area Fees
	(a) . In consideration of Developer’s fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement, the City hereby agrees to waive the following City development fees: (a) water area, (b) sanitary sewer area, (c) storm water area, (d) parkland dedication and ...

	5.4 City Contribution to Design Fees
	5.5 Housing Trust Fund Contribution
	5.6 TIF Assistance
	(a) Generally. The City, in order to encourage Developer to proceed with the construction of the Project, and to assist Developer in paying the costs thereof, is willing to provide certain TIF assistance as permitted by the TIF Act and in accordance w...
	(i) The total principal amount of the TIF Note issued for the Project will not exceed $180,000.
	(ii) The unpaid principal of the TIF Note shall bear simple non-compounding interest from the date of issuance of the TIF Note, at 4.0% per annum. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve (12) 30-day months.
	(iii) The City shall be obligated to make the payments to Developer required pursuant to the TIF Note and this Section 5.6 only from and to the extent of the Available Tax Increment actually received from the TIF District for any tax year, and such pa...
	(iv) Calculated on an annual basis, the City will retain five percent (5.0%) of the Tax Increment generated from the Project for administrative costs and apply the retained Tax Increment first to pay any administrative expenses relating to the Develop...
	(v) Upon 30 days’ written notice to Developer, the City may prepay all or a portion of the outstanding principal balance due to Developer pursuant to this Section 5.6 without penalty, on any date at a prepayment price equal to the outstanding principa...
	(vi) The City shall not be obligated to make any payments hereunder subsequent to the termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 7.2 hereof, and any amounts remaining unpaid as of such date (other than by reason of failure of the City to com...
	(vii) Developer may assign its rights under this Agreement (including the payments to be made to Developer hereunder) to secure financing incurred by Developer to pay costs of the Project, including but not limited to any Mortgagee.
	(b) Evidence of Qualified Costs. Upon payment by Developer of Qualified Costs for the Project, Developer will deliver to the City an instrument executed by Developer (i) specifying the amount and nature of the Qualified Costs to be reimbursed and (ii)...
	(c) Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the City’s obligation to reimburse Developer for Qualified Costs under the TIF Note shall be subject to satisfaction, or waiver in writing by the City...
	(i) the Certificate of Completion has been issued for the Project;
	(ii) Developer has provided written evidence reasonably satisfactory to the City that Qualified Costs in the amount to be reimbursed from the Available Tax Increment have been incurred for the Project and paid by Developer; and
	(iii) Developer shall not be in default under the terms of this Agreement or any Project Approvals beyond any applicable cure period.


	5.7 Funding Gap; Funding Surplus; Public Assistance Adjustment
	5.8 Legal and Administrative Expenses

	Article VI  Prohibitions Against Assignment and Transfer
	6.1 Transfer of Property and Assignment

	Article VII  Event of Default; Fees
	7.1 Events of Default
	(a) Subject to Unavoidable Delay, failure of Developer to achieve Commencement and Completion of the Project by the applicable dates set forth in Section 4.1.
	(b) Failure of Developer to otherwise construct or reconstruct the Project as required hereunder.
	(c) Failure of Developer to obtain the EDA’s approval of any development plans for the Project as required by Section 4.3.
	(d) Failure of Developer to pay to the City or the EDA any amounts required to be paid by Developer hereunder.
	(e) Failure of Developer to observe and perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed hereunder.
	(f) Failure of Developer to pay any taxes on the Development Property prior to the same becoming delinquent.
	(g) Filing of any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings by Developer; general assignment for the benefit of creditors made by Developer or admission in writing by Developer of inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; ...

	7.2 Remedies on Default
	(a) terminate this Agreement;
	(b) suspend its performance under this Agreement and/or the TIF Note until Developer cures its default to the satisfaction of the City and the EDA and thereafter continues its performance under this Agreement.
	(c) withhold the Certificate of Completion.
	(a) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to the City or the EDA to collect any payments due under this Agreement, or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant of Developer und...
	(b) exercise any remedies available at law and in equity to enforce performance of this Agreement, including a right to specific performance.

	7.3 No Remedy Exclusive
	7.4 Waivers
	7.5 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees

	Article VIII  Indemnification; Insurance
	8.1 Indemnification
	(a) Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and the EDA and their respective governing body members, officers, and agents including the independent contractors, consultants, and legal counsel, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, ...
	(b) Developer agrees to protect and defend the Indemnified Parties, and further agrees to hold the aforesaid harmless, from any claim, demand, suit, action or other proceeding whatsoever by any person or entity arising or purportedly arising from the ...
	(c) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City and the EDA contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City or the EDA, as applicable, and not of an...

	8.2 Insurance
	(a) Developer shall obtain and continuously maintain insurance on the Project and, from time to time at the request of the City or the EDA, furnish proof to the City and the EDA that the premiums for such insurance have been paid and the insurance is ...
	(i) Builder’s risk insurance, written on the so-called “Builder’s Risk-Completed Value Basis,” in an amount equal to 100% of the insurable value of the Project at the date of Completion, and with coverage available in non-reporting form on the so-call...
	(ii) Fire, extended coverage perils, vandalism and malicious mischief, boiler explosion (but only if steam boilers are present), collapse on a replacement cost basis in an amount equivalent to the full insurable value thereof. (“Full insurable value” ...
	(iii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations and contractual liability insurance) together with an Owner’s/Contractor’s Policy naming the City and the E...
	(iv) Workers compensation insurance, for employees of Developer if and to the extent required by Law.

	(b) All insurance required in this Article shall be obtained and continuously maintained by responsible insurance companies selected by Developer which are authorized under the laws of the State to assume the risks covered by such policies. If availab...


	Article IX  Other Covenants
	9.1 Real Property Taxes
	Developer agrees that prior to the Termination Date:
	(a) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability of any tax statute relating to the ad valorem property taxation of real property contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable t...
	(b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or...
	(c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or prospectively authorized under M.S., Section 469.1813, or any other State or federal law, of the ad valorem property taxation of the Development Property between the date of execu...

	9.2 Action to Reduce Taxes
	9.3 Damage or Destruction
	9.4 Relocation Costs
	9.5 Restrictions on Use

	Article X  General Provisions
	10.1 Conflicts of Interest; City Representatives Not Individually Liable
	10.2 Equal Employment Opportunity
	10.3 Titles of Articles and Sections
	10.4 Business Subsidies Act
	10.5 Term of Agreement
	10.6 Provisions Surviving Termination
	10.7 Notices and Demands
	(a) in the case of Developer, addressed to or delivered personally to:
	(b) in the case of the City, addressed or delivered personally to:
	(c) in the case of the EDA, addressed or delivered personally to:

	10.8 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury
	10.9 Binding Effect
	10.10 Severability
	10.11 Amendments, Changes and Modifications
	10.12 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments
	10.13 City/EDA Approval
	10.14 No Waiver of Governmental Immunity and Limitations on Liability
	10.15 Memorandum of Agreement
	10.16 Superseding Effect
	10.17 Data Practices Act
	10.18 City and EDA Regulatory Authority
	10.19 Time is of the Essence
	10.20 Relationship of Parties
	10.21 Captions
	10.22 Counterparts
	10.23 Amendment and Restatement

	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MINNESOTA CITY OF CHASKA
	LIMITED REVENUE TAXABLE TAX INCREMENT NOTE NO. [__] (Ernst House Redevelopment Project)
	A. Grantee has proposed an affordable housing redevelopment project (the “Project”) on that certain real property located at 211 Walnut Street and 217 Walnut Street in the City (the “Development Property”), which Project consisted of (i) the rehabilit...
	B. Grantee, the City, and the Economic Development Authority of the City of Chaska, Minnesota, a body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota (the “EDA”) have entered into that certain Amended and Restated Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement ...
	C. In accordance with the Redevelopment Agreement, as part of such financial assistance, the City has agreed a provide certain grant funding to Grantee from the City’s Housing Trust Fund (the “Grant”)in the original principal amount of up to $[300,000...
	(a) Failure of Grantee to observe and perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed hereunder or under the Redevelopment Agreement.
	(b) Failure of Grantee to pay any taxes on the Development Property prior to the same becoming delinquent.
	(c) Any representation or warranty made by Grantee herein or in any document, instrument, or certificate given in connection with this Agreement, is materially false when made; or
	(d) Filing of any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or similar proceedings by Grantee; general assignment for the benefit of creditors made by Grantee or admission in writing by Grantee of inability to pay its debts generally as they become due; or fil...

	GRANTEE:


	23 CGPI CD MAYER APPLICATION.pdf
	doc20230524080121.pdf
	City Resolution
	Location Map
	2022_1118 - Quaas Building Exterior Concepts
	Existing Condition Photos
	20230522_082156
	20230522_082322
	20230522_082336
	20230522_082349
	20230522_082419
	20230522_082434
	20230522_082537
	20230522_082558

	Approval Letter
	Evidence of Site Control Letter

	23 CGPI PD NEW GERMANY APPLICATION.pdf
	2023 CGPI application - New Germany 5.30.23.pdf
	1. Request Details
	2. Readiness Details
	3. Project Details
	Housing
	Commercial

	4. Project Costs
	5. Narrative
	Attachments

	Black Forest map.pdf
	6.2.07 TLE IV preliminary plat.pdf
	2006-06-22_Black Forest Estates 2nd Addition.pdf
	Boundaries and Structures for Survey and Soils Investigation.pdf
	New Germany - Google Maps.pdf







